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Group’s Revenue

Group’s Revenue by Segments Profit Attributable to Owners of  
the Company

Group’s Revenue mix in Year 2014
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

2014 was a year full of challenges and changes. Although 

the economy in mainland China remained stable and the 

US economy showed signs of recovery, the Eurozone 

and Japanese economies were both weaken ing. 

Besides, the quantitative easing measures launched in 

turn by Europe and Japan also led to increased global 

capital flow. Furthermore, in an attempt to control the 

risks imposed on the banking system by an overheated 

property market, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority 

recently launched a new round of supervisory measures 

on property mortgages. We believe these measures will 

have a calming effect on the future property market, and 

expect to see continued stable market growth.

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to report that 

despite last year’s challenging business environment, 

the Group recorded groundbreaking performances by 

achieving a historical high of HK$2,937 million in revenue 

in last year. This was mainly attr ibuted to the sales 

recognition of Park Haven, one of the Group’s high-

end residential developments with outstanding sales 

performance, achieving breakthrough result. Moreover, 

the official grand opening of Soundwill Plaza II - Midtown 

was also happened in 2014. Together with Soundwill 

Plaza I and 10 Knutsford Terrace, these high quality 

properties and investments provided the Group with 

sustained growth in terms of recurring revenues and 

rental adjustments.

Look ing ahead, a l though the prospects of the US 

economy are expected to improve, uncertain factors 

remain ahead of g loba l economies. The proper t y 

market in Hong Kong and other Asian countries wil l 

continue to be af fected by the r ise of construction 

costs. However we expect the Hong Kong economy 

wi l l remain robust due to the ongoing large-scale 

infrastructure development projects, healthy job market 

and favourable business climate. The Group will adjust 

its tactics according to market sentiment and implement 

development strategies that grasp new investment 

opportunities as well as overcome future challenges. 

The Group maintains f lagship projects for long-term 

rental income, and at the same time developing other 

new projects to increase asset turnover and cash flow, 

thereby optimising our sales revenue and rental income, 

which will in turn contribute a stable profit for the Group.

Last but not least, I would like to take this opportunity 

to express my sincere thanks to our shareholders, the 

Board and business par tners for their suppor t and 

trust during the past year. The solid foundation laid by 

the Group throughout the year was the result of the 

continuous efforts of all our staff. I hereby thank all our 

hard-working staf f for their contributions in previous 

years. Looking ahead, we will continue to work hard 

and our management team and staff will work closely 

together to achieve outstanding results.

FOO Kam Chu, Grace

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

FOO Kam Chu, Grace, aged 71, 

is the founder and Chairman of the 

Group. Madam Foo has extensive 

experience in the property market. 

S h e  h a s  b e e n  e n g a g e d  i n  t h e 

property business in Hong Kong 

s i nce  ea r l y  1970s ,  pa r t i cu l a r l y 

specialised in the acquisition of old 

bui ld ings for redevelopment into 

commercial or residential buildings. 

Madam Foo is the mother of Ms. 

Chan Wai Ling, Executive Director 

of the Company. Madam Foo is 

currently responsible for the Group’s 

overall development direction and 

strategies. Furthermore, she serves 

as a standing committee member of 

the 10th, 11th and 12th Guangzhou 

Committee of the Chinese People’s 

Polit ical Consultative Conference 

and has been elected as an honorary 

citizen of Guangzhou and executive 

commi t tee member o f  the 10th 

Guangdong P rov i nce  (Women ) 

Members Association. She is familiar 

w i th the po l i t ica l  and economic 

affairs of the PRC.

CHAN Wai Ling, aged 44, is an 

Executive Director of the Company. 

S h e  i s  i n  c h a r g e  o f  t h e  H o n g 

Kong proper ty  depar tment  and 

i s  respons ib le  fo r  the p roper t y 

development and leasing of Hong 

Kong properties of the Group. She 

graduated from the University of 

Toronto, Canada with a bachelor 

d e g r e e  i n  c o m m e r c e  a n d  a l s o 

ob ta ined a Mas te r  o f  Bus iness 

A d m i n i s t r a t i o n  D e g r e e  f r o m 

University of Strathclyde, United 

Kingdom. Before joining the Group in 

September 1998, she had worked in 

an international property consultant 

f i rm and had operated her own 

property investment business. She 

is the daughter of Chairman of the 

Group.

KONG Siu Man, Kenny, aged 52, 

is the Executive Director in charge 

o f  the proper ty deve lopment o f 

the Group. Mr. Kong graduated 

from the Hong Kong Polytechnic 

U n i v e r s i t y .  H e  i s  a  C h a r t e r e d 

Surveyor of The Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors of Hong Kong, 

a Registered Professional Surveyor 

and an Author ized Person under 

Buildings Ordinance of Hong Kong 

SAR Government. He jo ined the 

Group in 2009 and has over 27 years 

experience in the Mainland and Hong 

Kong property market.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

C H A N  K a i  N a n g ,  a g e d  6 9 , 

appointed as Independent Non-

Executive Director of the Company 

o n  1 1  M a r c h  2 0 0 9 ,  r e c e i v e d 

a  P o s t g r a d u a t e  D i p l o m a  i n 

Management  S tud ies  f rom The 

U n i v e r s i t y  o f  H o n g  K o n g  a n d 

Bachelor of Laws from the University 

of London. Mr. Chan is an associate 

member of The Chartered Institute 

of Management Accountants in the 

UK and The Hong Kong Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants and a 

fellow member of The Association 

of Chartered Certified Accountants 

in the UK. He is also a member of 

the Chartered Global Management 

A ccoun tan t .  M r .  Chan  wo rked 

for more than 40 years as senior 

execut ive in major mul t inat iona l 

and local corporations. Mr. Chan 

w a s  t h e  e x e c u t i v e  d i r e c t o r  o f 

G a l a x y  E n t e r t a i n m e n t  G r o u p 

Limited (formerly known as K. Wah 

Const ruct ion Mater ia ls L imi ted ) 

and managing director of K. Wah 

Construction Materials Limited from 

February 2002 to May 2008. The 

shares of the above-named company 

are listed on the Stock Exchange. 

He served as an adviser of K. Wah 

Cons t ruc t ion Mate r i a l s  L im i ted 

until his retirement on June 2014. 

Mr. Chan was also appointed as 

independent non-executive director 

of Asian Capital Holdings Limited and 

Steed Oriental (Holdings) Company 

Limited, the shares of which are 

l i s ted on the Growth Enterpr ise 

Market of the Stock Exchange and 

Prosperity Internat ional Holdings 

(H.K.) Limited, a company listed on 

Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

PAO Ping Wing,  aged 67, was 

appointed as Independent Non-

Executive Director of the Company 

on 6 November 2009,  rece ived 

a  Mas te r  o f  Sc i ence deg ree  i n 

H u m a n  S e t t l e m e n t s  P l a n n i n g 

and Development from the Asian 

Institute of Technology in Bangkok, 

Thailand. Mr. Pao was elected as 

one of the Ten Outstanding Young 

Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and 

one of the Ten Outstanding Young 

Persons of the World in 1983. He 

was also an ex-Urban Council lor. 

In the past 20 years plus, he has 

been actively serving on government 

pol icy committees and statutory 

bodies, especial ly those of town 

p lann ing, urban renewal ,  publ ic 

h o u s i n g ,  c u l t u r e  a n d  a r t s  a n d 

environment matters. Mr. Pao is 

an Hon. Fellow of The Hong Kong 

Institute of Housing. He is also an 

independent non-executive director 

of several other companies l isted 

on the Stock Exchange including 

Oriental Press Group Limited, UDL 

Holdings Limited, Sing Lee Software 

(Group) Limited, Capital Environment 

Hold ings L imi ted, Zhuzhou CSR 

Times Electr ic Co., Ltd. , Maoye 

International Holdings Limited, HL 

Technology Group Limited and JC 

Group Holdings Limited.

NG Ch i  Keung ,  aged 66 ,  was 

appointed as Independent Non-

executive Director of the Company 

on 18 March 2011. Mr. Ng holds 

a  M a s t e r  D e g r e e  i n  B u s i n e s s 

Administration and is an associate 

member of the Hong Kong Institute 

of Certified Public Accountants, the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants 

i n  Eng l and and Wa les  and t he 

Chartered Institute of Management 

A c c o u n t a n t s .  H e  h a s  o v e r  3 0 

yea rs  o f  f i nanc ia l  management 

experience with renowned mult i-

national corporations. Mr. Ng was 

the executive director of Fairwood 

Holdings Limited for 15 years until his 

retirement at the end of year 2009 

and re-designated as non-executive 

director after his retirement.

Soundwill Holdings Limited6 Annual Report 2014 7



Soundwill Holdings Limited8 Annual Report 2014 9

Overview

In 2014, the U.S. economy maintained its recovery and growth in Mainland China gradually stabilised, thus resulting 
in a healthy global economy. However, as the U.S. tapered off its Quantitative Easing monetary policy, this led to 
expectations of an interest rate hike in the U.S. and caused market volatility. Nevertheless, the current market still 
largely operates in an environment with low interest rates favouring further economic recovery in the local residential 
property market.

Although certain data indicate signs of weakening purchasing power in Mainland China which indirectly affected retail 
sales and the rental market in Hong Kong, the Group’s rental performance remain sound, as its main commercial 
properties are located in prime areas of Hong Kong. The Group is therefore confident for the prospect of its 
commercial property business and was able to record positive growth in total revenue from property leasing.

Located on 1-29 Tang Lung Street, Causeway Bay, Soundwill Plaza II – Midtown officially opened for business in 
December 2014. It has become the newest landmark for food & beverage and leisure in the area. The marketing 
campaigns organized during the year have provided a diversified experience in drinking and dining out, attracting 
more customer traffic and driving up sales of our tenants. Together with the synergies generated with the Group’s 
Soundwill Plaza I, Soundwill Plaza II has provided a solid foundation for the Group’s investment properties portfolio 
and has further increased the weight of the Group’s recurring income.

As for the Hong Kong residential property market, small-sized residential units were highly sought after on the back of 
a sustained increase in personal disposable income, a reasonable housing-affordability rate and a strong demand for 
housing. This in turn drove up the total property transaction volume. However, the Group has remained prudent with 
the local property market amidst rising construction costs, continuous policy measures relating to property sales, 

cautious mortgage approval by banks together with expectations of an imminent rate hike.

OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The delivery of Park Haven, the Group’s major residential development project, was completed in the fourth quarter of 

2014 and revenue was accordingly booked. In addition, the Group jointly developed Jones Hive, a residential project 

located on 8 Jones Street, Tai Hang, with Henderson Land Development Company Limited. Presales of the project 

commenced in early 2015. The project is expected to be delivered in the second half of 2017. The delivery will help 

increase the contribution of property development to the Group’s revenue.

With its acute market sense, the Group will seize every opportunity to redevelop projects based on their respective 

advantages in order to stay current with the market and to maximize the efficiency in the use of limited land resources.
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14-18 Mosque Street, 
Mid Levels West

105-113 Ta Chuen Ping Street, 
Kwai Chung

57 Kin Wah Street and 66 Fort
Street, North Point

Property Portfolio

Dur ing the year, the Group act i ve ly acqu i red o ld 

properties in various areas on Hong Kong Island. At 

the same time, it sought to acquire superior land at 

opportune times and continued to step up its investment 

in projects with high appreciation potential in order to 

widen the scope and enhance the quality of the Group’s 

property portfolio. Moreover, the Group is committed 

to rev i ta l ize the env ironment of the areas that the 

Group’s properties locate in, raise building quality and 

offer support facilities to benefit both new and existing 

owners.

In order to fully capitalize on business opportunities in 

the Hong Kong market, the Group focused on operations 

in multiple areas with potential investment value. The 

Group actively participated in urban redevelopment and 

other high-quality projects and will continue to selectively 

acquire parcels of land through various channels to 

expand its market share.

The Group will also search for parcels of land with high 

potential outside of Hong Kong Island and acquire such 

lands to replenish its land reserves at a reasonable cost. 

The Group will prudently assess its investment property 

por t fol io and retain projects with high appreciation 

potential for the Group’s property development in order 

to increase earnings.

105-113 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung
The project is located on 105-113 Ta Chuen Ping Street, 

Kwai Chung with gross floor area of approximately to 

190,000 square feet.

14-18 Mosque Street, Mid-levels West
The project is located on 14-18 Mosque Street, Mid-

levels West with gross floor area of approximately 44,000 

square feet.

57 Kin Wah Street and 66 Fort Street, 
North Point
The project is located on 57 Kin Wah Street and 66 

Fort Street, North Point with total gross floor area of 

approximately 30,000 square feet.

12-24 Lun Fat Street, Wan Chai
The Group successfully sold the project located on 12-

24 Lun Fat Street, Wan Chai to Wkinv HK Holdings Ltd. in 

March 2014 for HK$860 million. The transaction provided 

strong cash flow for the Group.
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Property Assembly Business
The Group has been endeavouring to capture business 

oppor tunit ies in the local market through proper ty 

assembly and the acquisition of old buildings. It seeks 

to acquire land reserves with high appreciation potential 

at a reasonable cost and actively retain projects with 

strong potential for its own development purposes. This 

strategy allows the Group to enrich earnings and expand 

its development potential as well as to maximize the 

efficiency in the use of land resources.

The proper t y assembly bus iness has set a so l id 

foundation for the Group’s property development and 

earnings growth over the next few years.

OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Property Leasing
For the year ended 31 December 2014, this business 

segment recognised revenue of HK$457,225,000, 

representing 15% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

While the Group capitalized on geographical advantages 

and sustained local demand, the Group continued to put 

efforts in enhancing property quality and optimization 

of tenant mix in order to more closely match changes 

in consumer preferences. The above factors, combined 

with strategic marketing campaigns, allowed the tenants 

of the Group’s proper t ies to ach ieve bet ter sa les 

growth compared to the market despite a slowdown in 

retail sales. During the year, the Group’s commercial 

properties continued to see steadily increased rental rate 

for lease renewal while occupancy rates still remained at 

high level.

Soundwill Plaza I
Soundwill Plaza I is located on 38 Russell Street, in 

the heart of Causeway Bay. Buoyed by the market’s 

enthus ias t i c demand fo r h igh-qua l i t y loca l  shop 

spaces, the occupancy rate of Soundwi l l  P la za I 

remained high and rental revenue totalled approximately 

HK$342,214,000. Most of the leases expired in 2014 

were renewed and the renewal rental rate continued to 

increase. The Group believes continuous improvement 

is the key to maintain the competitiveness of the office 

building.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Midtown
Soundwil l Plaza II – Midtown is a 31-storey building 

located on 1-29 Tang Lung Street, the heart of Causeway 

Bay. The building is just adjacent to Russell Street. It 

possesses panoramic view of the Victoria Harbour and 

sights of the busy, metropolitan Causeway Bay. The 

project of f icial ly opened in December 2014 and has 

become the most eye-catching new landmark for food & 

beverage and leisure. With its outstanding location and 

top-notch positioning, prestigious restaurants have been 

enticed to set up base at the establishment. Soundwill 

Plaza I I – Midtown is expected to ef fective ly seize 

opportunities arising from ever-growing spending in the 

area.



Jones HiveCOHO

10 Knutsford Terrace, 
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

10 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
The proper t y i s cu r rent l y a 23-s to rey in tegrated 

commercial project located in the core tourist and retail 

district in Tsim Sha Tsui with only three minutes’ walk 

to the Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. The Group values 

the unlimited development potential and future capital 

appreciation of properties in core districts, and optimize 

and expand its investment property portfolio in Hong 

Kong when opportunities 

a r i s e .  S o u n d w i l l  P l a z a 

I  a n d  S o u n d w i l l  P l a z a 

I I  – Midtown, which are 

t h e  G r o u p ’ s  f l a g s h i p 

proper ties, together with 

10 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim 

Sha Tsui are all located in 

the core tourist and retail 

district, which is expected 

to  so l i d i f y  the G roup’s 

r eve nu e f ro m p ro p e r t y 

leasing.

units and superior industrial projects. In light of the prime 

locations and excellent design of the projects, the Group 

has recorded outstanding sales per formance for its 

projects and has successfully built an excellent brand. 

The Group will continue to seek opportunities to expand 

its land reserves and advance its property development 

business with prudence. Moreover, the Group will launch 

new projects at opportune times as planned in order to 

bring higher returns to shareholders.

Residential projects
Jones Hive
The Group jointly developed Jones Hive, a residential 

pro ject located on 8 Jones Street, Ta i Hang wi th 

Henderson Land Development Company Limited. The 

project is expected to be delivered in the second half of 

2017 which provides 119 units with the size from 333 to 

558 square feet.

COHO
The Group’s residential development project located at 

18-21 School Street, Tai Hang, comprises a total of 46 

units with two units per floor, including 44 standard units 

and 2 special units with flat roof together with 24-hour 

clubhouse.

Property development
For the year ended 31 December 2014, this business 

s e g m e n t  r e c o g n i s e d r eve n u e o f  a p p rox i m a te l y 

HK$2,466,099,000, representing 84% of the Group’s 

revenue for the year.

Small to medium-sized residential 

and industr ia l projects in Hong 

Ko n g a r e  i n  s t r o n g  d e m a n d . 

The Group adequately captured 

oppo r tun i t i e s  and deve loped 

selected land reserves with high 

potential into boutique residential 
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Park Haven
Park Haven, the Group’s major residential development 

project, is located on 38 Haven Street, a luxur ious 

residential area near Lee Garden, Causeway Bay. The 

project provides 190 residential units with the size from 

510 to 1,154 square feet.

A tota l of 174 units of the project have been sold, 

recording total revenue of approximately HK$2.38 billion 

in which the sales has achieved the Group’s target 

and made an impressive record. The units sold were 

completed and delivered in the forth quarter of 2014 and 

corresponding revenue was booked.

The Group is committed to construct quality property 

development projects, and has successful ly bui l t a 

trusted reputation for the exceptional designs and quality 

of its properties. The Group’s development project Park 

Haven have been named “Accredited Sub-contractor” 

at the “2014 Construction and Renovation Outstanding 

Awards” (2014年度建造及裝修業優秀大獎 )  organ ised 

by the Hong Kong Professional Bui lding Inspection 

Academy.
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WarrenWoods
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

WarrenWoods
Wa r re nWo ods ,  the  G roup’s  l a ndma r k  l u xu r i ous 

residential project is located on 23 Warren Street, Tai 

Hang. The project provides 163 residential units of 

diversified designs. Beneath the prestigious Jardine’s 

Lookout coupled with an excellent planning and design 

concept, the development was honoured with the “Best 

Developer – Project Planning” award in the f inance 

magazine Capital. A total of 162 units was sold and 

delivered by the end of 2012.
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301-305 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Commercial project
The Sharp
Situated on 11-13 Sharp Street East and 1-1A Yiu Wah 

Street, in Causeway Bay, the project is expected to 

be developed into an integrated commercial property 

project that combines retai l and of f ice spaces. The 

project provides 29 f loors for sale which were sold 

out within a day on 3 January 2013. The highest price 

was HK$48,100 per square foot (based on gross area). 

To capitalize on the unlimited appreciation potential 

street-level commercial shop space in Causeway Bay, 

the Group decided to retain shops from ground floor 

to the second floor for leasing. The rental rates will be 

determined with reference to the top-grade street-level 

commercial shops in Causeway Bay area. The project is 

expected to be completed in the second half of 2015.

Industrial project
301-305 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung
The project is located on 301-305 Castle Peak Road, 

Kwai Chung with the site area of approximately 13,300 

square feet.
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Property management
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the business 

s e g m e n t  r e c o g n i s e d r eve n u e o f  a p p rox i m a te l y 

HK$13,921,000, representing 1% of the Group’s revenue 

for the year.

The Group’s subsidiar ies for proper ty management 

and maintenance are engaged in the prov is ion of 

management services, quality customer service, and 

maintenance services to the properties and facilities of 

large-scale commercial buildings, as well as small and 

medium sized estates. These subsidiaries constantly 

launch innovative services to raise the overall service 

standard. With the backing of its extensive experience 

and enthusiasm, the team follows through with the desire 

of customers in order to provide high-quality service 

to owners and tenants. During the year, the property 

management team upholded qual i t y of the indoor 

environments and reduced waste by employing energy-

efficient measures to reduce its carbon footprint.

“The Concierge” – French-style 
hotel management services
The Group pioneered and introduced “The Concierge” – 

French-style Hotel Management Services to the property 

management of Park Haven, the luxury residentia l 

project. The Group provides a wide range of value-

added services, French-style management including 

concierge ser v ices, d in ing and cater ing ser v ices, 

household maintenance serv ices, laundry and dry 

cleaning arrangement services as well as home and car 

cleaning referral services. Through the premium and 

comprehensive personal services, we aim to create an 

environment for tenants to enjoy a high quality lifestyle.

Customer services
The Group’s excellent services are extended to the 

offer of a comprehensive range of after-sales services 

subsequent to the del ivery of units to owners. The 

Group set up a professional team which is dedicated 

to the deta i led examinat ions of each of the newly 

completed units for providing considerate services 

during the delivery of units. To boost the confidence 

of homeowners, the newly occupied new properties 

are entitled to the warranty of repair and maintenance 

services for the first two years.
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To ensure that each newly completed unit is in perfect 

condition, thorough quality inspections are conducted 

repeatedly to ensure the highest standard of quality 

upon delivery to the owners. The handover team will 

a lso provide comprehensive and at tentive services 

during the handover period to ensure smooth completion 

of required procedures. The handover team not only 

ensures the quality of newly completed units, but also 

enables the Group to more directly and effectively collect 

the opinions of homeowners. The Group’s proper ty 

management subsidiaries are committed to providing 

high-quality customer services and further enhancing 

service standards through continuous innovation.

Business in Mainland China
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the business 

in Mainland China recorded revenue of approximately 

HK$80,056,000.

Property development
In late 2013, the Group ad justed and rea l located 

resources of i ts proper t y pro jects in Guangdong 

Province to re inforce i ts resources to regions with 

favourab le market cond i t ions. In the shor t te rm, 

economic growth in Mainland China is expected to 

decelerate slightly but the government is expected to 

implement measures to simulate the real estate market. 

This will allow steady growth of the property market 

in Mainland China and hence facilitate the long-term 

development of the market.

Long Feng Chun Xiao, a residential development project 

located in Doumen District, Zhuhai, in which the Group 

has 51% interest, has been sold out. In addition, the 

f irst phase of Shang Hui Hai An (The Lakeview Bay), 

an integrated project wholly owned by the Group and 

featuring villa and highrise residences located in Gaoyao 

City, Zhaoqing, has been completed. Over half of these 

villas have been sold and delivered to the owners. The 

high-rise residences in Phase 2 are under construction 

and was rolled out in the market in the fourth quarter of 

2014.

Construction of the first phase of Yu Ming Du (Shan Shui 

Xiang Ri), a project located in Doumen District, Zhuhai, is 

basically completed. The project will be launched once 

the presales permit is issued. Construction of Zhen Hui 

(Yi Jing Yuan), a high-rise residential project located in 

Kaiping, Jiangmen, is expected to commence by the end 

of 2015.

Soundwill Club
Founded by the Group, Soundwi l l Club provides a 

platform for individuals with exceptional tastes including 

prospective property buyers, retail tenants and visitors 

to the Group’s properties to exchange intelligence in 

lifestyle. Soundwill Club covers a variety of high-quality 

living information promoted by Soundwill Group, and 

enhances the interaction of art and taste with members. 

Soundwill Club also provides customers with superb 

services and activities, which are further elaborations 

of Soundwi l l  Group’s unwaver ing commitment to 

excellence and eminence.



Soundwill Holdings Limited20 Annual Report 2014 21

OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Corporate Citizen
The Group remains f irmly to pursue excellence in all 

its business operations and social responsibilities. The 

pursuit of perfection has become an integral and guiding 

element of its corporate culture.

With the opening of Soundwill Plaza II – Midtown, the 

Group took the opportunity to support arts and promote 

local culture. The Group has actively organized various 

ar t exhibitions and activities over the years, and its 

ef for ts have been well recognized by the public. For 

instance, the Group set up the first-ever Lamborghini 

Pop-Up Museum and organized various international 

art exhibitions and activities in Midtown POP, the art 

exhibition space located on 17/F, Soundwill Plaza II – 

Midtown.

During the year, Midtown POP successfully became a 

platform for the development of local art and culture. 

World-class visual and performing arts were introduced 

to the public. Through various forms of art and cultural 

activities, the Group aims to provide visitors with the 

option to enjoy art in the busy metropolis.

The 28th International ARC Awards
The Group’s 2013 Annual Results Report received Silver 
Award in the category of “Real Estate Development/
Services: Residential Properties” in the 28th International 
ARC awards. 

“ARC Awards” is a globally recognised international 
annua l repor t compet i t ion. Th is year, over 2,000 
organ izat ions f rom 31 countr ies took par t in th is 
competition.

2013 International LACP’s Awards 
The Group’s 2013 Annual Results Repor t received 
Bronze Award in the category of “Real Estate/REIT” in 
2013 International LACP’s Awards. “LACP’s Awards” is 
international annual report competition, which evaluates 
contents and designs in the per iodicals publ ished 
by For tune 500 companies and other la rge-s ized 
companies. This year, about 1,000 companies from 25 
countries took part in this competition.
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Soundwill Volunteer Team
To play an active role in the community, in 2012, the 

Group established Soundwill Volunteer Team, a social 

cause to encourage its employees and their families 

to give helping hands to people who are in need. The 

Group regularly sponsors and participates in the Little 

Sprouts Storytelling Activity of the “Story Family Fun” 

Ne ighbourhood Deve lopment Plan, hosted by the 

Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women’s Association, to 

share stories with children living in Tung Chung District. 

Soundwill Volunteer Team teaches positive attitudes 

among school children and spread the spirits of love and 

care through story-telling.

Caring Company
With the concerted efforts of the Group’s management 

and employees in making positive contribution to the 

communi ty, the Group was honoured as a Car ing 

C ompa ny by  T he Hong Kong C ounc i l  o f  So c i a l 

Service. The Group, in conjunction with its member 

companies and property projects, received a number 

of commendations, in recognition of its dedication and 

efforts to fulfil social responsibilities and assume social 

corporate responsibilities over the years.

The Group is committed to making positive contributions 

to the community. During the year, the Group sponsored 

the Concert of Tung Chung Youth Marching Band 2014 

(東涌青少年步操樂團演奏會2014) held by the Hong Kong 

Outlying Islands Women’s Association. It provided the 

youth with marching band training and per formance 

opportunities, thereby proactively supported cultural 

exchanges in society. Furthermore, the Group cares 

about the needs of impoverished pupils and people living 

in the mountainous area in Mainland China. During the 

year, the Group made a donation to The Caring Hearts 

Photographic Society to sponsor the “2014 Gansu Water 

Supply Project”. The donations collected from the project 

were used to build water supply projects in Gansu to 

thoroughly address the problem of safe water in the area.
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Run for Fun
The Group par tic ipated in the Run for Fun city run 

organized by Vanke Group in December 2014. The Group 

donated to WWF Hong Kong, one of the organizations 

of the run to support natural resource conservation and 

education of WWF Hong Kong. This enables the Group 

to fulfil its social responsibilities as well as to care for the 

employees’ physical and mental health.

Community Chest – Hong Kong and 
Kowloon Walk
To assist families and children in need in Hong Kong, 

the Group sponsored the 2014/2015 Hong Kong 

and Kowloon Walk organized by Community Chest. 

The donat ions w i l l  be de l i ve red to soc ia l we l fa re 

organizations providing family and chi ldren welfare 

services on counselling and support service to families in 

need.

Corporate Governance
The Group places great s igni f icance on corporate 
integrity, business ethics and good governance. Coupled 
with the strong support of an excellent management 
team, we have established a highly effective Board of 
Directors to actively participate in investor relations 
activities.

The Group is committed to the pract ice of sound 
corporate governance. Efforts are made to maintain 
interactive communication with stakeholders including 
investors, analysts and credit rating agencies and the 
media. We provide and disclose information relating 
to the Group’s corporate strategy and latest business 
development. In order to ensure the highest level of 
corporate transparency, the Company will distribute 
relevant corporate information to shareholders and other 
stakeholders in a timely manner. In addition, the Group 
will further strengthen its connection with global investors 
through frequent involvement in large-scale investors 
meetings and briefings.

Communication with Shareholders 
and Investors/Investor Relations
The Group believes that effective communication with 
shareholders is a crucial key of improving investor relations 
and will ultimately assist the investment community in 
understanding the Company’s business performance and 
strategies. Through regular, comprehensive, and interactive 
communication, we strive to enhance communication 
with investors through various communication channels. 
These include in-person meetings, telephone conferences, 
overseas roadshows, and project-site visits organized for 
the investor community. The Group seeks to establish a 
trustful and fruitful relationship with its shareholders and 
investors. The Annual General Meeting was held in May 
2014. The Group organized briefings and media interviews 
for results announcements and proactively stayed in touch 
with the press through press releases, announcements, 
and other promotional materials. The Group is committed 
to enhancing corporate transparency and providing timely 
disclosure of information on the Group’s developments 
to help shareholders and investors make informed 
investment decisions. The Group is devoted to enhancing 
corporate governance practices on business growth and 
strives to attain a balance between corporate governance 
requirements and performance. The Board of Directors 
believes that sound corporate governance is essential to the 
success of the Group and will enhance shareholders’ value.
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Prospects
In the year ahead, the global economy is expected to 
move forward at a moderate pace with little inflation amid 
an improved economic outlook in the US and a relatively 
slower pace of growth in other major economies. The 
major uncertainties ahead are the great volati l i ty in 
the global financial markets arising from the changing 
expectations on possible interest rate hikes in the US 
and competitive devaluations of currency by various 
economies. Nevertheless, loose monetary pol ic ies 
adopted by major economies such as the Eurozone, 
Japan and China will cushion the downside risks for the 
world economy.

Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect was implemented 
to promote mainland investors to invest in the Hong Kong 
market. The Group expects the Chinese economy to 
recover steadily and lead healthy economic, financial and 
social development in various regions.

Although retail sales slowed in Hong Kong, demand 
fo r  consumer goods rema ined in tact  amidst  low 
interest rates and a low unemployment rate, which will 
continue to drive the economic development of Hong 
Kong. For Hong Kong property market, the Hong Kong 
Monetary Authority issued guidance to banks regarding 
property mortgage loan business on 27 February 2015, 
introducing a new round of regulatory measures for 
property mortgage to further tighten the maximum loan-
to-value ratio for self-use residential properties priced 
below HK$7 mil l ion. Furthermore, the debt-service-
to-income ratio for non-self-use properties, including 
res ident ia l ,  industr ia l  and commercia l propert ies, 

was lowered from 50% to 40%. As a result of the 
government’s implementation of the above mentioned 
property policy measures, the primary market property 
sales are expected to slow down, and the investment 
expenditure was soft and sentiment turned cautious.

Looking into 2015, the Group will remain committed to 
strike a balance between revenue from property sales 
and revenue from investment properties as well as to 
seek investment opportunities to enrich shareholders’ 
return. The Group will continue to selectively acquire 
land plots through various channels and prudently 
develop its businesses. With the premise of maintaining 
project quality, the Group will minimize the impact of 
the continuing upward local construction costs and 
increase the profit margin of development projects. With 
the strong market analytical power of the Group’s senior 
management, the Group wil l bolster its competit ive 
advantages to solidify the Group’s position in the property 
industry.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Highlights

Results of Operations
During the year, the Group’s revenue recorded of approximately HK$2,937,245,000 (2013: HK$610,385,000), 
representing a significant increase as compared with last year. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase 
in income recorded from the property development projects in Hong Kong.

Selling expenses mainly represents the sales commission paid for a luxury residential development “Park Haven” which 
is located in Causeway Bay during the year. Decrease in administrative expenses were mainly due to the cost saving 
exercise on various teams such as marketing team, construction team and project development team in order to cope 
with the market condition. Decrease in finance cost was mainly due to repayment of borrowings.

Furthermore, the increase in fair value of investment properties was mainly due to the revaluation gain of the Group’s 
investment properties located in Hong Kong.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
During the year, the Group has achieved a profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately 
HK$1,625,160,000 (2013: HK$1,340,112,000), an increase of 21% as compared with last year. This rise was mainly 
due to the increase in income recorded from the property development projects despite decrease in the net gain on fair 
value adjustments on investment properties during the year.

Net Assets
The net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2014 amounted to HK$16,662,727,000 (2013: HK$15,036,992,000). 
Net asset value per share as at 31 December 2014 is HK$58.7 (2013: HK$53.5).

 Year ended 31 December
From continuing and discontinued operations  2014  2013

Turnover
    – from continuing operations  HK$2,937 million  HK$601 million
    – from discontinued operation  –  HK$9 million
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  HK$1,625 million  HK$1,340 million
Basic earnings per share  HK$5.77  HK$4.77
Dividend per share
    – proposed final dividend  HK$0.2  HK$0.2
    – proposed special dividend  HK$0.1  –

 At  At
 31 December  31 December
 2014  2013

Total assets  HK$20.0 billion  HK$20.8 billion
Net assets  HK$16.7 billion  HK$15.0 billion
Total borrowings  HK$2.2 billion  HK$4.0 billion
Gearing ratio  13%  26%
Net asset value per share  HK$58.7  HK$53.5
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Financial Resources and Liquidity
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted to HK$1,070,403,000 (2013: 
HK$310,629,000). Total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$2,221,931,000 (2013: HK$3,955,820,000) as at 31 
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio (which was expressed as a percentage of total borrowings 
over total equity) was 13% (2013: 26%). As at 31 December 2014, the net assets of the Group amounted to 
HK$16,662,727,000 (2013: HK$15,036,992,000).

The Group mainly operates and invests in Hong Kong and the PRC with most of the transactions denominated and 
settled in HK$ and RMB respectively. No foreign currency risk has been identified for the financial assets in the PRC 
as they were denominated in a currency same as the functional currencies of the Group entities to which these 
transactions relate.

During the year, the Group did not engage in any derivative activities or use any financial instruments to hedge its 
balance sheet exposures.

Acquisition and development of properties are financed partly by internal resources and partly by bank loans. 
Repayment of bank loans are scheduled to match asset lives and project completion dates. Loans are mainly 
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and bear interest at floating rates.

Contingent Liabilities
(a)  During the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened and held in the name of certain subsidiaries 

on behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided building management services. As at the reporting 
date, those bank balances which were held on behalf of third parties and were not accounted for in the financial 
statements of the Group amounted to HK$19,577,000 (2013: HK$7,558,000).

(b)  Since the Group commenced legal proceedings HCA 1902/2009 (“the Action”) against a joint venture partner in 
2009, with whom the Group has a joint venture agreement for the development and construction of village houses 
in the New Territories, the Action has been stayed pending the outcome of the proceedings in HCMP 1760/2009 
which concerns the same subject matter. The Group filed a re-amended statement of claim in December 2012 in 
HCMP 1760/2009 and the pleadings of the case have been closed in or about April 2013. The case has come to 
the stage of discovery of documents and thereafter it will proceed to the mutual exchange of factual witnesses’ 
statement. The Group’s legal advisor is in the course of locating all documents for discovery purpose. No date for 
case management conference has been fixed by the Court yet.

As the Group’s legal advisor is unable to anticipate the likely outcome, provision for amount due from a joint 
venture and provision for legal costs have been made which amounted to HK$15,565,000 and HK$3,598,000 
(2013: HK$15,565,000 and HK$3,598,000) respectively.

Employees Remuneration
The Group had 354 and 96 employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China respectively as at 31 December 2014. 
Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance, experience and prevailing market practice. 
Remuneration packages comprise salary, medical insurance, mandatory provident fund and year-end discretionary 
bonus. Total salaries and wages incurred in 2014, if excluding share option expenses of approximately HK$5,989,000 
(2013: HK$19,079,000), were approximately HK$159,038,000 (2013: HK$151,768,000).
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The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in 
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Code sets out two levels of recommendations, namely, (a) code provisions that a listed company must either 
comply with or explain its non-compliance, and (b) recommended best practices that listed companies are encouraged 
to comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance.

Board of Directors
The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors of the Company”) is responsible for overseeing the Group’s 
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The management has been delegated the authority and 
responsibility by the Board for the operations of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various 
responsibilities to the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the 
Nomination Committee. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

Board Composition
The Board is composed of the following directors who, unless otherwise indicated, have served throughout the year 
under review and up to the date of this report:

Executive Directors:
Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Wai Ling
Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kai Nang
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Ng Chi Keung

Board Meetings and Attendance
During the year, the Board met five times with attendance as follows:

Directors Attendance

Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace (Chairman) 5/5
Ms. Chan Wai Ling 5/5
Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny 5/5
Mr. Chan Kai Nang 5/5
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 5/5
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 5/5
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The biographies of the Directors are set out in pages 6 to 7, which illustrate their diverse skills, expertise, experience 
and qualifications.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the Independent Non-executive Directors in 
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the 
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained 
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014 except that.

(1) Code Provision A.2.1
Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and 
should not be performed by the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are not separated and performed by two different 
individuals. Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace is the founder and Chairman of the Group. She is responsible for the 
Group’s overall development direction and strategies. The Chairman ensures the Board functions effectively 
and discharges its responsibilities. There is no chief executive officer appointed and the daily operations of the 
Group are delegated to other executive directors, the management and various department heads. The Board 
is of the view that the current management structure can effectively facilitate the Company’s operation and 
business development.

(2) Code Provision A.4.1
Code Provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term.

The non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term as they are subject to retirement by rotation 
and re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
In accordance with the Bye-laws, not less than one-third of the Directors for the time being will retire from office by 
rotation at each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least 
once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing 
Board shall hold office only until the following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election 
at such meeting.

Responsibilities of Directors
Every newly appointed Director is ensured to have a proper understanding of the operations and business of the Group 
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable 
legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business and governance policies of the Company. 
The Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, business and market changes and the 
strategic development of the Group to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
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Board Committees
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises all the three Independent Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Chan Kai 
Nang, who possesses professional accountancy qualifications. The Committee has specific written terms of reference 
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in the code provisions. It is responsible for reviewing with 
management, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discuss auditing, internal controls 
and financial reporting including the interim and final results of the Company. It also acts as an important link between 
the Board and the Company’s external auditor in matters within the scope of the audit of the Group.

During the year, the Committee met twice with attendance shown below. The final results for the year ended 
31 December 2014 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2014 have been reviewed and 
commented by the Committee.

Directors Attendance

Mr. Chan Kai Nang (committee chairman) 2/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 1/2
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 2/2

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was set up on 12 September 2005 with specific written terms of reference.

Its functions are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ 
remuneration, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. The 
Committee reviews and approves the directors’ remuneration proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals 
and objectives, and also determines with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive 
directors.

During the year, the Committee held four meetings (attendance as shown below) to review and determine (with the 
relevant Directors where applicable abstained from voting as far as his/her own remuneration is concerned so that no 
director would decide on his/her own remuneration) the remuneration package of executive directors.

Directors Attendance

Mr. Chan Kai Nang (committee chairman) 4/4
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 4/4
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 4/4
Ms. Chan Wai Ling 4/4

Soundwill Holdings Limited28 Annual Report 2014 29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 with specific written terms of reference. The 
responsibilities of the Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board; identifying 
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board 
on selection of individuals nominated for directorship; making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or 
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive 
(if any); and determining the policy for nomination of directors.

A board diversity policy (the “Policy”) was adopted in October 2013. Diversity of board members can be achieved 
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational 
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. In informing its perspective on 
diversity, the Company will also take into account aspects based on its own business model and specific needs from 
time to time.

On 28 October 2013, the Board approved to revise the terms of reference of Nomination Committee by including duties 
to review the Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

During the year, the Committee comprises the following Directors and held two meetings with attendance shown below:

Directors Attendance

Madam Foo Kam Chu, Grace (committee chairman) 2/2
Mr. Chan Kai Nang 2/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 2/2

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
As part of the ongoing process of directors’ training, the Company Secretary continuously updates all directors on 
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of 
the same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training courses on relevant topics 
which may count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 which has come into effect from 1 April 2012, directors should participate in continuous 
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution 
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous 
professional development activities either by attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to the 
Company’s business and to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Company Secretary
Mr. Tang Man Joe is the Company Secretary of the Company and the Financial Controller of the Group. He is a member 
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountant, and also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 
Accountant. He reports to the Board and assists the Board in functioning effectively and efficiently. During the year, he 
undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to update his skill and knowledge.
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Code for Securities Transactions of Directors
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting 
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the 
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, the 
Company confirms that all of them have complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

Access to Information by Directors
In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying Board 
papers are sent to all Directors in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting to give 
all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice 
is given.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes and related materials at all times. During the year, 
all Directors have been provided with the Group’s management information updates to keep them informed of the 
Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
In determining the remuneration levels and packages of the Directors and senior management, the Company took 
into account of the prevailing practices and trends to reflect on the commitments, duties and responsibilities of the 
Directors and senior management and their contributions to the Group. Long-term inducements in the form of share 
options and performance bonuses were also employed.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, the fee incurred for audit and non-audit services for the Group are approximately HK$3,757,000 (2013: 
HK$3,341,000) and HK$600,000 (2013: HK$574,000) respectively.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the Group and presenting a 
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. The Directors are not 
aware of any material events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

Internal Control
During the year, the Directors reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system covering material controls, 
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
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Communications with Shareholders
The Company strives to establish communications with its shareholders and investors. In efforts to enhance such 
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company’s business in its interim and annual 
reports, and on its website.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an opportunity for direct communications between the Board and 
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and the external auditor make efforts to attend the annual general 
meetings to address shareholder queries. The Chairman and all Directors of the Company for the time being along 
with key management and the external auditor attended the Annual General Meeting and addressed questions raised 
by Shareholders about the Company’s business. The Company also responds to queries from its shareholders and 
investors and welcomes their views and concerns at shareholders’ meetings to the Board or management directly.

Shareholders’ Rights
(i) Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting

A special general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company 
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company. 
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s Head Office 
and Principal Place of Business.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, 
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting, and all 
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by 
the Company.

(ii) Procedures for which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing at the Company’s Head Office and 
Principal Place of Business.

(iii) Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at shareholders’ meeting
The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(a) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of the 
requisition; or

(b) not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to 
meet the Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, 
at the Company’s Head Office and Principal Place of Business in case of:-

(a) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(b) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board 
will proceed with the necessary procedures.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to submit herewith their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries include property 
assembly, property development, property leasing and provision of building management services in Hong Kong and 
property development in Mainland China. Other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the financial 
statements.

Results and Dividends
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs 
as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 90 to 228. The Board recommends a payment of a final 
dividend of HK$0.20 (2013: HK$0.20) per share and a special dividend of HK$0.10 (2013: Nil) per share for the year 
ended 31 December 2014, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to 
be held on Wednesday, 20 May 2015 (“Annual General Meeting”). The final and special dividend will be payable on or 
about 30 June 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 12 June 2015.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in notes 21 and 46 to the financial statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of the borrowings of the Group at the reporting date are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial 
statements.

Reserves
Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity on pages 98 to 101 and in note 35 to the financial statements respectively.
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Share Options
Particulars of the share option scheme, share options granted and movement are set out in note 36 to the financial 
statements.

Properties/Properties under Development
Particulars of the major properties held by the Group and properties under development of the Group are set out on 
pages 38 and 39.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on 
page 40.

Directors
The Directors of the Company are listed on page 2. Their biographical information is set out on pages 6 to 7.

Pursuant to Bye-laws 86(2) & 87(1), Mdm. Foo Kam Chu, Grace and Ms. Chan Wai Ling, will retire from office at the 
Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts
Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance 
with the Bye-laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with 
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than 
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and 
Underlying Shares
1. Directors’ Interests in the Company

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and 
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and 
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which are required to be (i) notified to the 
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of 
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such 
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or 
(iii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by 
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares:

Name of Director Capacity
Number of

Shares

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

Foo Kam Chu, Grace Interest of controlled corporation 196,114,528(Note) 68.97

Beneficial owner 96,602 0.03

Kong Siu Man, Kenny Beneficial owner 102,000 0.04

Note: These 196,114,528 shares represented the aggregate of (i) 193,728,528 shares held by Ko Bee Limited, a company wholly-owned by 
Foo Kam Chu, Grace and (ii) 2,386,000 shares held by Full Match Limited, a company wholly-owned by Foo Kam Chu, Grace.

(ii) Long positions in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company — interests in share options of the 

Company (having been granted and remained outstanding):

Name Capacity

Number of
Shares in

the Option Exercisable Period
Price

of Grant

Subscription
Price per

Share
(HK$) (HK$)

Foo Kam Chu, Grace Beneficial owner 137,500 06/12/2012 to 05/12/2015 1.00 8.71
316,000 03/01/2014 to 02/01/2017 1.00 15.76

Chan Wai Ling Beneficial owner 500,000 06/12/2012 to 05/12/2015 1.00 8.71
2,000,000 03/01/2014 to 02/01/2017 1.00 15.76

Kong Siu Man, Kenny Beneficial owner 300,000 06/12/2012 to 05/12/2015 1.00 8.71
250,000 03/01/2014 to 02/01/2017 1.00 15.76
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Directors’ Interests and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and 
Underlying Shares (Continued)
2. Directors’ Interests in Associated Corporations

Name of Director

Name of
Associated
Corporation Capacity

Number
and Class of

Shares
Percentage of
Shareholding

Foo Kam Chu, Grace Ko Bee Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100

Foo Kam Chu, Grace Full Match Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had 
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated 
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be (i) notified to the Company and the 
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which 
he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) entered in the register kept by the 
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to 
the Model Code.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares and Debentures
Save as disclosed above and note 36 to the financial statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 
were rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company granted to any Director or chief executive of the 
Company or to the spouse or children under 18 years of age of any such Director or chief executive as recorded in the 
register required to be kept under Part XV of the SFO, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, 
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable any such persons to acquire any 
such rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders
As at 31 December 2014, the persons other than a Director or chief executive of the Company who have an interest or 
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under 
section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity
Number

of Shares

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

Ko Bee Limited Beneficial owner 193,728,528 68.16

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company has not been notified of any interest or short 
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under 
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts
Save as disclosed in (i) the paragraph under the heading of “Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares and Debentures” above; 
and (ii) paragraphs (a) to (i) under the heading of “Related Party Transactions” in note 41 to the financial statements, 
no contract of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party, and in which a 
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the 
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, approximately 8% of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and 
approximately 26% of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers.

During the year, approximately 3% of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the Group’s largest customer and 
approximately 12% of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the Group’s five largest customers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Connected Transaction
During the year, other than those disclosure of which are exempted pursuant to Rule 14A.31 and 14A.65 of the Listing 
Rules (Details of such connected transaction being also related party transactions are mentioned in note 41 to the 
financial statements), the Group has not entered into any connected transaction.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
The Company is empowered by the applicable laws of the Bermuda and its articles of association to repurchase its own 
shares subject to certain restrictions and the Board may only exercise this power on behalf of the Company subject 
to any applicable requirements imposed from time to time by the Stock Exchange. During the year, the Company 
had repurchased a total of 368,000 shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration 
of HK$4,561,223. All of the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled. The repurchases were effected by the 
Directors for the enhancement of shareholders’ value. Details of the repurchases are as follows:

Month of the repurchases

Total number
 of shares

 repurchased
Highest price

 paid per share
Lowest price

 paid per share
Aggregate

 consideration
HK$ HK$ HK$

August 2014 48,000 13.48 13.34 645,719
September 2014 34,000 13.34 13.08 451,314
November 2014 4,000 12.18 12.18 48,875
December 2014 282,000 12.18 11.96 3,415,315

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the 
Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the 
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is 
confirmed that there is sufficient public float of the Company’s shares in the market as at the date of this report.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting
The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 18 May 2015 to Wednesday, 20 May 2015 
(both days inclusive). In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General 
Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the 
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s 
Road East, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. Friday, 15 May 2015.

Closure of Register of Members for Dividend
The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 11 June 2015 to Friday, 12 June 2015 (both 
days inclusive), during which no transfer of share will be registered. In order to qualify for the final and special dividends, 
all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the 
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s 
Road East, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. Wednesday, 10 June 2015.

By order of the Board
Foo Kam Chu, Grace
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015
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LIST OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Location

Approximate 
gross 

floor area 

Interest 
attributable 

to the Group Land use Lease term
(sq.ft.)

Soundwill Plaza 
38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,  

Hong Kong

245,100 100% Commercial Long-term lease

Soundwill Plaza II – Midtown 
1-29 Tang Lung Street, Causeway Bay,  

Hong Kong

218,000 100% Commercial Long-term lease

10 Knutsford Terrace
10-11 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim Sha Tsui, 

Kowloon, Hong Kong

114,000 100% Commercial Long-term lease

The Sharp 
G/F-2/F, 11-13 Sharp Street East  

and 1-1A Yiu Wa Street in  
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

4,500 100% Commercial Long-term lease

中國廣東省珠海市斗門區井岸鎮 
五福村五福圍

822,980# 100% Residential Medium-term lease

# Based on latest plan submitted.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT  
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Location

Approximate 
gross 

floor area 

Interest 
attributable 

to the Group Project status
Expected 
completion date

(sq.ft.)

The Sharp 
11-13 Sharp Street East,  

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

43,700 100% Construction in 
progress

2H 2015

COHO
18-21 School Street, 

Tai Hang, Hong Kong

23,300 100% Construction in 
progress

1H 2016

301-305 Castle Peak Road, 
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

126,400 100% Construction in 
progress

1H 2017

Jones Hive
8 Jones Street, 

Tai Hang, Hong Kong

65,300 20.24% Construction in 
progress

2H 2017

尚薈海岸（景湖灣）二期

高要市金渡鎮世紀大道旁

798,211 100% Construction in 
progress

2H 2015
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets and liabilities of Soundwill 
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial 
statements and restated upon the adoption of the revised/amended Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards as 
appropriate. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue/Turnover (from 
continuing and discontinued 
operations) 2,937,245 610,385 1,801,968 901,690 913,714

Profit before income tax 
expenses 1,801,060 1,387,551 3,439,041 2,183,422 2,122,979

Income tax expense (156,443) (49,373) (117,785) (64,372) (56,551)      

Profit for the year 1,644,617 1,338,178 3,321,256 2,119,050 2,066,428      

Profit for the year attributable to 
owners of the Company 1,625,160 1,340,112 3,330,143 2,111,219 2,059,658

Non-controlling interests 19,457 (1,934) (8,887) 7,831 6,770      

1,644,617 1,338,178 3,321,256 2,119,050 2,066,428      

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets 16,013,123 16,743,701 13,525,364 11,296,772 10,220,206
Net current  

assets/(liabilities) 744,557 (1,643,889) 342,025 (959,984) (2,297,027)
Non-current liabilities (94,953) (62,820) (65,183) (59,054) (50,373)
Non-controlling interests (257,890) (240,019) (255,653) (98,967) (90,998)      

Equity attributable to owners 
 of the Company 16,404,837 14,796,973 13,546,553 10,178,767 7,781,808      

Gearing ratio* 13% 26% 22% 34% 39%      

* expressed as a percentage of total borrowing over total equity

Soundwill Holdings Limited40 Annual Report 2014 PB



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be 
held at 3:00 p.m., on Wednesday, 20 May 2015 at 36th Floor, Soundwill Plaza, 38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong 
Kong for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the reports of the directors and auditor for the year 
ended 31 December 2014;

2. To declare final and special dividends for the year ended 31 December 2014;

3. To elect directors and to authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the directors;

4. To re-appoint auditor and to authorise the board of directors of the Company to fix their remuneration; and

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following ordinary resolutions, with or without 
modifications:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A. “THAT:
(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during the 

Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$0.10 
each in the capital of the Company (“Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the 
Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on which the shares of the Company may be listed 
and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for 
this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules 
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended 
from time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate number of Shares to be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in 
paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the number of Shares in issue at the date 
of passing of this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; or

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required 
by applicable laws of Bermuda or the Company’s Bye-laws to be held; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution 
of the shareholders in general meeting.”
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B. “THAT:
(a)  subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the Company during the 

Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with 
additional shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company (“Shares”) and to make or grant offers, 
agreements and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities which carry 
rights to subscribe for or are convertible into Shares) which would or might require the exercise of such 
power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b)  the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the directors of the Company during 
the Relevant Period to make and grant offers, agreements and options (including warrants, bonds, 
debentures, notes and other securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into Shares) 
which would or might require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

(c)  the aggregate number of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted or issued 
or dealt with (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the directors of the Company pursuant 
to the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as 
hereinafter defined); or (ii) an issue of Shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time 
being adopted for the grant or issue to the grantees as specified in such scheme or similar arrangement 
of Shares or rights to acquire Shares; or (iii) an issue of Shares upon the exercise of subscription or 
conversion rights under the terms of any existing warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other securities 
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into Shares; or (iv) an issue of Shares as scrip 
dividends pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time, shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the 
number of Shares in issue at the date of passing of this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited 
accordingly; and

(d)  for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; or

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required 
by applicable laws of Bermuda or the Company’s Bye-laws to be held; or

(iii)  the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution 
of the shareholders in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares or issue of option, warrants or other securities giving the right 
to subscribe for Shares, open for a period fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of Shares 
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company (and, where appropriate, to holders 
of other securities of the Company entitled to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion to their then 
holdings of such Shares (or, where appropriate, such other securities) (subject to such exclusions or other 
arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional 
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of 
any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to the Company).”
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C. “THAT conditional upon the passing of Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 5A and 5B set out in the notice convening 
this meeting (“this Notice”), the general mandate granted to the directors of the Company to exercise the 
powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of 
the Company (“Shares”) pursuant to Resolution No. 5B set out in this Notice be and is hereby extended 
by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate number of Shares repurchased by the 
Company under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution No. 5A set out in this Notice, provided that such 
extended amount shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the number of Shares in issue at the date of passing of this 
Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Soundwill Holdings Limited

Foo Kam Chu, Grace
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 April 2015

Head Office and Principal Place of Business:
21st Floor, Soundwill Plaza
38 Russell Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Notes:

1.  Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and to vote instead of him. A proxy need 
not be a member of the Company.

2.  For Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 18 May 2015 to Wednesday, 20 May 2015 
(both days inclusive). In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all 
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong 
Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. Friday, 15 May 2015.

3.  In order to be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a certified copy thereof, 
must be delivered to the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at 21/F, Soundwill Plaza, 38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong not less 
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

4.  For Final and Special Dividends, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 11 June 2015 to Friday, 12 June 2015 
(both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final and special dividends, all transfer of shares 
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor 
Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 10 June 2015.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
獨立核數師報告

致金朝陽集團有限公司列位股東

（於百慕達註冊成立之有限公司）

本核數師（以下簡稱「我們」）已審計列載於第90
至228頁金朝陽集團有限公司（「貴公司」）及其附
屬公司（統稱「貴集團」）的綜合財務報表，包括

於二零一四年十二月三十一日的綜合及公司財

務狀況表與截至該日止年度的綜合損益及其他

全面收入表、綜合權益變動表和綜合現金流量

表，以及主要會計政策概要及其他解釋資料。

董事就綜合財務報表須承擔的責任
貴公司董事須負責根據香港會計師公會頒佈的

《香港財務報告準則》及香港《公司條例》的披露

規定編製綜合財務報表，以令綜合財務報表作

出真實而公平的反映，及落實其認為編製綜合

財務報表所必要的內部控制，以使編製綜合財

務報表不存在由於欺詐或錯誤而導致的重大錯

誤陳述。

核數師的責任
我們的責任是根據我們的審計對該等綜合財務

報表作出意見，並按照百慕達一九八一年公司

法第90條僅向整體股東報告，除此之外別無其
他目的。我們概不就本報告之內容，向任何其

他人士負上或承擔任何責任。

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
金朝陽集團有限公司
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soundwill 
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together 
the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 228, which comprise the 
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement 
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation 
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued 
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the 
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, 
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary 
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely 
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies 
Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume 
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the 
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
獨立核數師報告

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards 
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the 
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong 
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared 
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong 
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Jonathan Russell Leong
Practising Certificate Number P03246

Hong Kong, 18 March 2015

核數師的責任（續）
我們已根據香港會計師公會頒佈的《香港審計準

則》進行審計。該等準則要求我們遵守道德規

範，並規劃及執行審計，以合理確定綜合財務

報表是否不存在任何重大錯誤陳述。

審計涉及執行程序以獲取有關綜合財務報表所

載金額及披露資料的審計憑證。所選定的程序

取決於核數師的判斷，包括評估由於欺詐或錯

誤而導致綜合財務報表存在重大錯誤陳述的風

險。在評估該等風險時，核數師考慮與該公司

編製綜合財務報表以作出真實而公平的反映相

關之內部控制，以設計適當的審計程序，但目

的並非對公司內部控制的有效性發表意見。審

計亦包括評價董事所採用會計政策的合適性及

作出會計估計的合理性，以及評價綜合財務報

表的整體列報方式。

我們相信，我們所獲得的審計憑證能充足和適

當地為我們的審計意見提供基礎。

意見
我們認為，綜合財務報表已根據《香港財務報告

準則》真實而公平地反映　貴公司及　貴集團於

二零一四年十二月三十一日之事務狀況及截至

該日止年度的溢利及現金流量，並已按照香港

《公司條例》的披露規定妥為編製。

香港立信德豪會計師事務所有限公司
執業會計師

梁兆基
執業證書編號P03246

香港，二零一五年三月十八日
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
綜合損益及其他全面收入表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

Continuing operations 持續經營業務
Revenue/Turnover 收益╱營業額 6 2,937,245 600,507
Cost of sales 銷售成本 (1,560,771) (153,242)
     

Gross profit 毛利 1,376,474 447,265

Other income 其他收入 6 33,897 27,346
Selling expenses 銷售費用 (56,615) (54,223)
Administrative expenses 行政費用 (212,461) (219,631)
Other operating expenses 其他經營費用 (40,969) (17,270)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 出售附屬公司之收益 42 114,250 –
Net gain on fair value adjustments on 

investment properties
投資物業公平值調整之 
增值淨值 18 638,801 1,276,502

Finance costs 融資成本 8 (52,266) (51,335)
Share of results of a joint venture 應佔一家合營企業業績 22 (51) (7)

     

Profit before income tax expense 除所得稅開支前溢利 9 1,801,060 1,408,647
Income tax expense 所得稅開支 13 (156,443) (48,836)

     

Profit for the year from  
continuing operations

年內持續經營業務溢利
1,644,617 1,359,811

     

Discontinued operation 已終止經營業務
Loss for the period from  

discontinued operation
期內已終止經營業務虧損

10 – (21,633)
     

Profit for the year 年內溢利 1,644,617 1,338,178
     

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 其他全面收入，扣除 
稅項後 15

Items that will not be reclassified to  
profit or loss:

以下項目將不會重新分類
到損益：

Surplus/(Deficit) on revaluation of  
leasehold buildings, net of deferred tax

租賃樓宇重估 
盈餘╱（虧損）， 
扣除遞延稅項後 3,956 (40,858)

Items that may be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss:

以下項目其後可能重新 
分類到損益：

Exchange gain on translation of financial 
statements of foreign operations

換算海外業務財務 
報表之匯兌收益 358 12,766

Release of exchange reserve upon  
disposal of subsidiaries

於出售附屬公司後 
撥回之匯兌儲備 1,409 (18,840)

     

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax

年內其他全面收入， 
扣除稅項後 5,723 (46,932)

     

Total comprehensive income for the year 年內總全面收入 1,650,340 1,291,246
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
綜合損益及其他全面收入表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

Profit for the year attributable to: 應佔年內溢利：
Owners of the Company 本公司擁有人 14

Profit for the year from  
continuing operations

年內持續經營 
業務溢利 1,625,160 1,353,118

Loss for the period from  
discontinued operation

期內已終止經營 
業務虧損 – (13,006)

     

Profit for the year attributable to owners 
of the Company

本公司擁有人應 
佔年內溢利 1,625,160 1,340,112

     

Non-controlling interests 非控制權益
Profit for the year from continuing 

operations
年內持續經營業務 
溢利 19,457 6,693

Loss for the period from discontinued 
operation

期內已終止經營 
業務虧損 – (8,627)

     

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to 
non-controlling interests

非控制權益應佔年內 
溢利╱（虧損） 19,457 (1,934)

     

Total comprehensive income 
 attributable to:

應佔總全面收入：

Owners of the Company 本公司擁有人 1,631,175 1,287,291
Non-controlling interests 非控制權益 19,165 3,955

     

1,650,340 1,291,246
     

Earnings per share for profit from 
continuing and discontinued operations 
attributable to owners of the Company 
during the year

本公司擁有人應佔 
年內持續經營及 
已終止經營業務 
溢利之每股溢利 17

Basic 基本 HK$港幣5.77元 HK$港幣4.77元
     

Diluted 攤薄 HK$港幣5.76元 HK$港幣4.72元
     

Earnings per share for profit from 
continuing operations attributable  
to owners of the Company during  
the year

本公司擁有人應佔 
年內持續經營業務 
溢利之每股溢利

17

Basic 基本 HK$港幣5.77元 HK$港幣4.82元
     

Diluted 攤薄 HK$港幣5.76元 HK$港幣4.77元
     

Loss per share for loss from discontinued 
operation attributable to owners of  
the Company during the year

本公司擁有人應佔 
年內已終止經營業務 
虧損之每股虧損 17

Basic 基本 N/A 不適用 HK$港幣(0.05)元
     

Diluted 攤薄 N/A 不適用 HK$港幣(0.05)元
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As at 31 December 2014 於二零一四年十二月三十一日

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
綜合財務狀況表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 資產及負債
Non-current assets 非流動資產
Investment properties 投資物業 18 15,730,226 16,464,234
Property, plant and equipment 物業、廠房及設備 19 190,699 190,809
Properties held for development 待發展物業 20 27,187 46,497
Interest in a joint venture 一家合營企業權益 22 29,211 29,158
Available-for-sale financial assets 可供出售財務資產 23 10 10
Intangible assets 無形資產 24 – –
Other receivable 其他應收款項 42(b) 35,790 –
Deferred tax assets 遞延稅項資產 33 – 12,993
Goodwill 商譽 25 – –

     

16,013,123 16,743,701

Current assets 流動資產
Properties under development 發展中物業 26 2,558,459 3,252,963
Trade and other receivables 貿易及其他應收款項 27 85,060 112,453
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties 收購物業之已付訂金 3,105 456
Bank deposit at escrow account 於託管賬戶之銀行存款 28 179,007 298,236
Structured bank deposits 結構性銀行存款 29 94,591 104,506
Cash and bank balances 現金及銀行結餘 29 1,070,403 310,629

     

3,990,625 4,079,243

Current liabilities 流動負債
Trade and other payables 貿易及其他應付款項 30 515,668 458,770
Deposit received in advance 預收訂金 31 421,108 1,277,891
Borrowings 借貸 32 2,197,920 3,955,820
Provision for income tax 所得稅撥備 111,372 30,651

     

3,246,068 5,723,132
     

Net current assets/(liabilities) 淨流動資產╱（負債） 744,557 (1,643,889)
     

Total assets less current liabilities 總資產減流動負債 16,757,680 15,099,812

Non-current liabilities 非流動負債
Borrowings 借貸 32 24,011 –
Deferred tax liabilities 遞延稅項負債 33 70,942 62,820

     

94,953 62,820
     

Net assets 淨資產 16,662,727 15,036,992
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As at 31 December 2014 於二零一四年十二月三十一日

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
綜合財務狀況表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

EQUITY 權益

Equity attributable to owners of the 
Company

本公司擁有人 
應佔權益

Share capital 股本 34 28,407 28,082
Reserves 儲備 35 16,376,430 14,768,891

     

16,404,837 14,796,973
Non-controlling interests 非控制權益 257,890 240,019

     

Total equity 權益總額 16,662,727 15,036,992
     

Foo Kam Chu, Grace Chan Wai Ling
傅金珠 陳慧苓
Director Director
董事 董事
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As at 31 December 2014 於二零一四年十二月三十一日

Statement of Financial Position
財務狀況表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 資產及負債

Non-current assets 非流動資產

Interests in subsidiaries 附屬公司權益 21 545,000 545,000
     

Current assets 流動資產

Amount due from a subsidiary 應收一家附屬公司款項 21 2,726,234 226,972
Other receivables 其他應收款項 346 291
Tax recoverable 可收回稅項 63 –
Cash and bank balances 現金及銀行結餘 75 63

     

2,726,718 227,326

Current liabilities 流動負債

Accrued expenses and other payables 應付費用及其他應付款項 316 223
     

Net current assets 淨流動資產 2,726,402 227,103
     

Net assets 淨資產 3,271,402 772,103
     

EQUITY 權益

Share capital 股本 34 28,407 28,082
Reserves 儲備 35 3,242,995 744,021

     

Total equity 權益總額 3,271,402 772,103
     

Foo Kam Chu, Grace Chan Wai Ling
傅金珠 陳慧苓
Director Director
董事 董事
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
綜合現金流量表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

Cash flows from operating activities of 
continuing and discontinued operations

持續經營業務及已終止 
業務帶來之現金流量

Profit/(Loss) before income tax from 來自下列業務除所得稅 
前溢利╱（虧損）

– continuing operations －持續經營業務 1,801,060 1,408,647
– discontinued operation －已終止業務 10 – (52,362)

     

1,801,060 1,356,285
Adjustments for: 就下列各項作出調整：
Share of results of a joint venture 應佔一家合營企業業績 51 7
Bank interest income 銀行利息收入 (12,538) (4,213)
Interest expenses 利息支出 52,266 51,335
Depreciation of property, plant  

and equipment
物業、廠房及設備折舊

5,227 7,413
Amortisation of properties held  

for development
待發展物業攤銷

709 1,311
Amortisation of intangible assets 無形資產攤銷 – 405
Equity-settled share based  

payment expenses
以股權結算以股份為 
基礎之付款開支 5,989 19,079

Provision for obsolete inventories 過期存貨撥備 – 18,106
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 呆賬撥備撥回 – (101)
Provision for impairment loss on  

trade receivables
貿易應收款項減值 
虧損撥備 – 38,505

Provision for impairment loss 
on other receivables 

其他應收款項減值 
虧損撥備 – 91

Provision for impairment loss on deferred 
and contingent consideration

遞延及或然代價減值 
虧損撥備 40,879 –

Provision for impairment loss on  
intangible asset

無形資產減值虧損撥備
– 1,301

Bad debts written off 壞賬撇銷 70 92
Reversal of provision for vacant land tax 土地閒置稅撥回撥備 – (8,861)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment
出售物業、廠房及設備 
之（收益）╱虧損 (65) 16

Property, plant and equipment written off 物業、廠房及設備撇銷 309 341
Net gain on fair value adjustments on 

investment properties
投資物業公平值調整 
之增值淨額 (638,801) (1,276,502)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 出售附屬公司之收益 (114,250) –
     

Operating profit before working  
capital changes

營運資金轉變前之 
經營溢利 1,140,906 204,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
綜合現金流量表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and  
other receivables

貿易及其他應收款項 
（增加）╱減少 (25,904) 45,182

(Increase)/Decrease in deposits paid for 
acquisition of properties

收購物業之已付訂金 
（增加）╱減少 (2,649) 123,263

Increase in inventories 存貨增加 – (14,234)
Decrease/(Increase) in properties  

under development
發展中物業減少╱ 
（增加） 1,303,653 (151,261)

Decrease/(Increase) in bank deposit at 
escrow account

於託管賬戶之銀行 
存款減少╱（增加） 119,229 (7,149)

Increase in trade and other payables 貿易及其他應付款項增加 82,004 28,985
(Decrease)/Increase in deposit received  

in advance
預收訂金（減少）╱增加

(856,783) 795,774
     

Net cash generated from operations 業務所得現金淨額 1,760,456 1,025,170
Interest paid 已付利息 (61,802) (74,480)
Income tax paid 已付所得稅 (56,479) (113,866)

     

Net cash generated from  
operating activities

經營業務所得現金淨額
1,642,175 836,824

     

Cash flows from investing activities 投資活動帶來之現金流量
Decrease/(Increase) in structured  

bank deposits
結構性銀行存款 
減少╱（增加） 9,915 (104,506)

Placement of bank deposit with original 
maturity over three months

存入原到期日超出三個月

之銀行存款 (199,015) –
Additions to property, plant and equipment 增添物業、廠房及設備 (1,222) (3,647)
Increase in amount due from a joint venture 應收一家合營企業款項 

增加 (104) (629)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 

and equipment
出售物業、廠房及設備之

所得款項 342 19
Payment to acquire investment properties 收購投資物業之付款 (145,978) (1,941,577)
Payment to acquire properties held  

for development
收購待發展物業之付款

– (1,113)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal  

of subsidiaries
出售附屬公司之現金 
流入╱（流出）淨額 42 993,227 (16,088)

Bank interest received 已收銀行利息 12,538 4,213
     

Net cash generated from/(used in) 
investing activities

投資活動產生╱（所用） 
現金淨額 669,703 (2,063,328)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
綜合現金流量表

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
附註 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

Cash flows from financing activities 融資活動帶來之現金流量

Repayments of bank loans 償還銀行貸款 (2,641,845) (1,590,383)
Repayments of other loans 償還其他貸款 (207,943) –
Bank loans raised 籌集銀行貸款 883,945 2,552,702
Other loans raised 籌集其他貸款 231,954 –
Repurchase and cancellation of  

ordinary shares
購回及註銷普通股

34 (4,561) –
Capital injection from minority shareholders 少數股東注資 10,140 27,374
Payment for acquisition of  

non-controlling interest
收購非控制權益之付款

– (6,930)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 行使購股權之所得款項 31,466 523
Final dividend paid 支付末期股息 16(b) (56,205) (56,165)

     

Net cash (used in)/generated from 
financing activities

融資活動（所用）╱ 
產生現金淨額 (1,753,049) 927,121

     

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and  
cash equivalents

現金及現金等價物 
增加╱（減少） 558,829 (299,383)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 於一月一日之現金及 
現金等價物 310,629 615,421

Effect of foreign exchange rate  
changes, net

匯率變動影響，淨額

1,930 (5,409)
     

Cash and cash equivalents at  
31 December

於十二月三十一日之 
現金及現金等價物 29 871,388 310,629
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
綜合權益變動表

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

本公司擁有人應佔權益 本公司擁有人應佔權益
   

Share 
capital

Share 
premium

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve

Employee 
share-based 

equity 
reserve

Retained 
profits

Exchange 
reserve

Special 
reserve

Proposed 
final and 

special
dividends Total

Non-
controlling 

interests
Total 

equity

股本 股份溢價

資本贖回

儲備

資產重估

儲備

員工股份

權益儲備 保留溢利 匯兌儲備 特別儲備

建議末期

及特別

股息 總計

非控制

權益 權益總額
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

               

At 1 January 2014 於二零一四年一月一日 28,082 659,840 – 1,495 27,788 13,989,841 31,914 1,848 56,165 14,796,973 240,019 15,036,992
               

Exercise of share options 行使購股權 362 38,924 – – (7,820) – – – – 31,466 – 31,466
Share repurchased and cancelled (note 34) 購回及註銷股份（附註34） (37) (4,524) 37 – – (37) – – – (4,561) – (4,561)
Equity-settled share based payment (note 36) 以股權結算以股份為基礎之付款（附註36） – – – – 5,989 – – – – 5,989 – 5,989
Capital injection from minority shareholders 少數股東注資 – – – – – – – – – – 10,140 10,140
Release of non-controlling interest upon disposal of 

subsidiaries (note 42(b))
於出售附屬公司後撥回非控制權益（附註42(b)）

– – – – – – – – – – (11,434) (11,434)
Final dividend paid for 2013 (note 16(b)) 已付二零一三年末期股息（附註16(b)） – – – – – – – – (56,205) (56,205) – (56,205)

               

Transactions with owners 與擁有人交易 325 34,400 37 – (1,831) (37) – – (56,205) (23,311) (1,294) (24,605)
               

Profit for the year 年內溢利 – – – – – 1,625,160 – – – 1,625,160 19,457 1,644,617
Other comprehensive income 其他全面收入
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 以下項目將不會重新分類到損益：
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold buildings, net of 

deferred tax (note 15)
租賃樓宇重估盈餘，扣除遞延稅項後（附註15）

– – – 3,956 – – – – – 3,956 – 3,956
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or 

loss:
以下項目其後可能重新分類到損益：

Exchange gain on translation of financial statements of 
foreign operations

換算外國業務財務報表之匯兌收益
– – – – – – 650 – – 650 (292) 358

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of 
subsidiaries (note 42(b))

於出售附屬公司後撥回之匯兌儲備（附註42(b)）
– – – – – – 1,409 – – 1,409 – 1,409

               

Total comprehensive income for the year 年內全面收入總額 – – – 3,956 – 1,625,160 2,059 – – 1,631,175 19,165 1,650,340
               

Proposed final and special dividends for 2014  
(note 16(a))

建議二零一四年末期及特別股息（附註16(a)）
– – – – – (85,221) – – 85,221 – – –

Lapse of share option 購股權失效 – – – – (64) 64 – – – – – –
Under-provision for final dividend for 2013 二零一三年末期股息撥備不足 – – – – – (40) – – 40 – – –

               

At 31 December 2014 於二零一四年十二月三十一日 28,407 694,240 37 5,451 25,893 15,529,767 33,973 1,848 85,221 16,404,837 257,890 16,662,727
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
綜合權益變動表

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

本公司擁有人應佔權益 本公司擁有人應佔權益
   

Share 
capital

Share 
premium

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve

Employee 
share-based 

equity 
reserve

Retained 
profits

Exchange 
reserve

Special 
reserve

Proposed 
final and 

special
dividends Total

Non-
controlling 

interests
Total 

equity

股本 股份溢價

資本贖回

儲備

資產重估

儲備

員工股份

權益儲備 保留溢利 匯兌儲備 特別儲備

建議末期

及特別

股息 總計

非控制

權益 權益總額
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

               

At 1 January 2014 於二零一四年一月一日 28,082 659,840 – 1,495 27,788 13,989,841 31,914 1,848 56,165 14,796,973 240,019 15,036,992
               

Exercise of share options 行使購股權 362 38,924 – – (7,820) – – – – 31,466 – 31,466
Share repurchased and cancelled (note 34) 購回及註銷股份（附註34） (37) (4,524) 37 – – (37) – – – (4,561) – (4,561)
Equity-settled share based payment (note 36) 以股權結算以股份為基礎之付款（附註36） – – – – 5,989 – – – – 5,989 – 5,989
Capital injection from minority shareholders 少數股東注資 – – – – – – – – – – 10,140 10,140
Release of non-controlling interest upon disposal of 

subsidiaries (note 42(b))
於出售附屬公司後撥回非控制權益（附註42(b)）

– – – – – – – – – – (11,434) (11,434)
Final dividend paid for 2013 (note 16(b)) 已付二零一三年末期股息（附註16(b)） – – – – – – – – (56,205) (56,205) – (56,205)

               

Transactions with owners 與擁有人交易 325 34,400 37 – (1,831) (37) – – (56,205) (23,311) (1,294) (24,605)
               

Profit for the year 年內溢利 – – – – – 1,625,160 – – – 1,625,160 19,457 1,644,617
Other comprehensive income 其他全面收入
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 以下項目將不會重新分類到損益：
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold buildings, net of 

deferred tax (note 15)
租賃樓宇重估盈餘，扣除遞延稅項後（附註15）

– – – 3,956 – – – – – 3,956 – 3,956
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or 

loss:
以下項目其後可能重新分類到損益：

Exchange gain on translation of financial statements of 
foreign operations

換算外國業務財務報表之匯兌收益
– – – – – – 650 – – 650 (292) 358

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of 
subsidiaries (note 42(b))

於出售附屬公司後撥回之匯兌儲備（附註42(b)）
– – – – – – 1,409 – – 1,409 – 1,409

               

Total comprehensive income for the year 年內全面收入總額 – – – 3,956 – 1,625,160 2,059 – – 1,631,175 19,165 1,650,340
               

Proposed final and special dividends for 2014  
(note 16(a))

建議二零一四年末期及特別股息（附註16(a)）
– – – – – (85,221) – – 85,221 – – –

Lapse of share option 購股權失效 – – – – (64) 64 – – – – – –
Under-provision for final dividend for 2013 二零一三年末期股息撥備不足 – – – – – (40) – – 40 – – –

               

At 31 December 2014 於二零一四年十二月三十一日 28,407 694,240 37 5,451 25,893 15,529,767 33,973 1,848 85,221 16,404,837 257,890 16,662,727
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
綜合權益變動表

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

本公司擁有人應佔權益 本公司擁有人應佔權益
   

Share 
capital

Share 
premium

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve

Employee 
share-based 

equity 
reserve

Retained 
profits

Exchange 
reserve

Special 
reserve

Proposed 
final 

dividend Total

Non-
controlling 

interests
Total 

equity

股本 股份溢價

資產重估

儲備

員工股份

權益儲備 保留溢利 匯兌儲備 特別儲備

建議末期

股息 總計

非控制

權益 權益總額
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

              

At 1 January 2013 於二零一三年一月一日 28,076 659,198 42,353 8,902 12,706,146 43,877 1,848 56,153 13,546,553 255,653 13,802,206
              

Exercise of share options 行使購股權 6 642 – (125) – – – – 523 – 523
Equity-settled share based payment  

(note 36)
以股權結算以股份為基礎之付款

（附註36） – – – 19,079 – – – – 19,079 – 19,079
Capital injection from minority shareholders 少數股東注資 – – – – – – – – – 27,374 27,374
Acquisition of additional interest  

in subsidiaries
收購附屬公司額外權益

– – – – (308) – – – (308) (37,414) (37,722)
Release of non-controlling interest upon 

disposal of subsidiaries (note 42(d))
於出售附屬公司後撥回非控制權益

（附註42(d)） – – – – – – – – – (9,549) (9,549)
Final dividend paid for 2012 (note 16(b)) 已付二零一二年末期股息 

（附註16(b)） – – – – – – – (56,165) (56,165) – (56,165)
              

Transactions with owners 與擁有人交易 6 642 – 18,954 (308) – – (56,165) (36,871) (19,589) (56,460)
              

Profit for the year 年內溢利 – – – – 1,340,112 – – – 1,340,112 (1,934) 1,338,178
Other comprehensive income 其他全面收入
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 

loss:
以下項目將不會重新分類到損益：

Deficit on revaluation of leasehold buildings, 
net of deferred tax (note 15)

租賃樓宇重估虧損，扣除遞延 
稅項後（附註15） – – (40,858) – – – – – (40,858) – (40,858)

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss:

以下項目其後可能重新分類 
到損益：

Exchange gain on translation of financial 
statements of foreign operations

換算外國業務財務報表之 
匯兌收益 – – – – – 6,877 – – 6,877 5,889 12,766

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of 
subsidiaries (note 42(d))

於出售附屬公司後撥回之 
匯兌儲備（附註42(d)） – – – – – (18,840) – – (18,840) – (18,840)

              

Total comprehensive income for the year 年內全面收入總額 – – (40,858) – 1,340,112 (11,963) – – 1,287,291 3,955 1,291,246
              

Proposed final dividend for 2013 (note 16(a)) 建議二零一三年末期股息 
（附註16(a)） – – – – (56,165) – – 56,165 – – –

Lapse of share option 購股權失效 – – – (68) 68 – – – – – –
Under-provision for final dividend for 2012 二零一二年末期股息撥備不足 – – – – (12) – – 12 – – –

              

At 31 December 2013 於二零一三年十二月三十一日 28,082 659,840 1,495 27,788 13,989,841 31,914 1,848 56,165 14,796,973 240,019 15,036,992
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
綜合權益變動表

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

Equity attributable to owners 
of the Company

本公司擁有人應佔權益 本公司擁有人應佔權益
   

Share 
capital

Share 
premium

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve

Employee 
share-based 

equity 
reserve

Retained 
profits

Exchange 
reserve

Special 
reserve

Proposed 
final 

dividend Total

Non-
controlling 

interests
Total 

equity

股本 股份溢價

資產重估

儲備

員工股份

權益儲備 保留溢利 匯兌儲備 特別儲備

建議末期

股息 總計

非控制

權益 權益總額
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

              

At 1 January 2013 於二零一三年一月一日 28,076 659,198 42,353 8,902 12,706,146 43,877 1,848 56,153 13,546,553 255,653 13,802,206
              

Exercise of share options 行使購股權 6 642 – (125) – – – – 523 – 523
Equity-settled share based payment  

(note 36)
以股權結算以股份為基礎之付款

（附註36） – – – 19,079 – – – – 19,079 – 19,079
Capital injection from minority shareholders 少數股東注資 – – – – – – – – – 27,374 27,374
Acquisition of additional interest  

in subsidiaries
收購附屬公司額外權益

– – – – (308) – – – (308) (37,414) (37,722)
Release of non-controlling interest upon 

disposal of subsidiaries (note 42(d))
於出售附屬公司後撥回非控制權益

（附註42(d)） – – – – – – – – – (9,549) (9,549)
Final dividend paid for 2012 (note 16(b)) 已付二零一二年末期股息 

（附註16(b)） – – – – – – – (56,165) (56,165) – (56,165)
              

Transactions with owners 與擁有人交易 6 642 – 18,954 (308) – – (56,165) (36,871) (19,589) (56,460)
              

Profit for the year 年內溢利 – – – – 1,340,112 – – – 1,340,112 (1,934) 1,338,178
Other comprehensive income 其他全面收入
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 

loss:
以下項目將不會重新分類到損益：

Deficit on revaluation of leasehold buildings, 
net of deferred tax (note 15)

租賃樓宇重估虧損，扣除遞延 
稅項後（附註15） – – (40,858) – – – – – (40,858) – (40,858)

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss:

以下項目其後可能重新分類 
到損益：

Exchange gain on translation of financial 
statements of foreign operations

換算外國業務財務報表之 
匯兌收益 – – – – – 6,877 – – 6,877 5,889 12,766

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of 
subsidiaries (note 42(d))

於出售附屬公司後撥回之 
匯兌儲備（附註42(d)） – – – – – (18,840) – – (18,840) – (18,840)

              

Total comprehensive income for the year 年內全面收入總額 – – (40,858) – 1,340,112 (11,963) – – 1,287,291 3,955 1,291,246
              

Proposed final dividend for 2013 (note 16(a)) 建議二零一三年末期股息 
（附註16(a)） – – – – (56,165) – – 56,165 – – –

Lapse of share option 購股權失效 – – – (68) 68 – – – – – –
Under-provision for final dividend for 2012 二零一二年末期股息撥備不足 – – – – (12) – – 12 – – –

              

At 31 December 2013 於二零一三年十二月三十一日 28,082 659,840 1,495 27,788 13,989,841 31,914 1,848 56,165 14,796,973 240,019 15,036,992
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31 December 2014 二零一四年十二月三十一日

Notes to the Financial Statements
財務報表附註

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability 
company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda. The address 
of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2 
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The Company’s 
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The 
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the 
financial statements.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the 
Company’s ultimate holding company to be Ko Bee Limited, 
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited 
liability.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 
(“HKFRSs”)
2.1 Adoption of revised/amended HKFRSs – effective 1 January 2014

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the 
“Group”) have applied for the first time the following revision 
and amendment to standards and interpretations issued 
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(“HKICPA”), which are relevant to and effective for the 
Group’s f inancia l statements for the annual per iod 
beginning on 1 January 2014:

Amendments  
to HKAS 32

Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities

Amendments  
to HKAS 36

Recoverable Amount Disclosures

Except as exp la ined be low, the adopt ion of these 
amendments has no material impact on the Group’s 
financial statements.

1. 一般資料
金朝陽集團有限公司（「本公司」）為於百慕

達註冊成立與登記之有限公司，本公司註冊

辦事處地址為Clarendon House, 2 Church 
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda，而本
公司股份在香港聯合交易所有限公司（「聯交

所」）上市。

本公司主要業務為投資控股，其附屬公司之

主要業務載於財務報表附註46。

本公司董事（「董事」）認為本公司之最終控

股公司為Ko Bee Limited，該公司為於英屬
處女群島註冊成立之有限責任公司。

2. 採納香港財務報告準則（「香港財
務報告準則」）
2.1 採納經修改╱經修訂之香港財務
報告準則－於二零一四年一月一
日起生效
於本年度，本公司及其附屬公司（「本集

團」）首次採用由香港會計師公會（「香

港會計師公會」）頒佈的以下準則及詮釋

的修改及修訂，均適用於二零一四年一

月一日開始的年度期間的本集團財務報

表，並就此具有效力：

香港會計準則 
第32號之修訂

抵銷財務資產及 
財務負債

香港會計準則 
第36號之修訂

可收回金額披露

除下文所解釋者外，採納此等修訂本對

本集團之財務報表並無重大影響。
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31 December 2014 二零一四年十二月三十一日

Notes to the Financial Statements
財務報表附註

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
2.1 Adoption of revised/amended HKFRSs – effective 1 January 2014 

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS32 – Offsetting Financial Assets 
and Financial Liabilities
The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by 
adding application guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies 
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right 
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is 
considered equivalent to net settlement. The amendments 
a re  app l i ed  r e t rospec t i ve l y .  The  adop t i on  o f  t he 
amendments has no impact on these financial statements 
as the Group does not have any offsetting arrangements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 – Recoverable Amount 
Disclosures
The amendments limit the requirements to disclose the 
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 
(CGU) to those periods in which an impairment loss has 
been recognised or reversed, and expand the disclosures 
where the recoverable amount of impaired assets or CGUs 
has been determined based on fair value less costs of 
disposal. The amendments are applied retrospectively.

2. 採納香港財務報告準則（續）
2.1 採納經修改╱經修訂之香港財務
報告準則－於二零一四年一月一
日起生效（續）
香港會計準則第32號之修訂－抵銷財務
資產及財務負債
該等修訂通過對香港會計準則第32號加
設應用指引以澄清有關抵銷之規定，該

指引對實體「目前擁有法律上可強制執

行權利以抵銷」之時間以及總額結算機

制被認為是等同於淨額結算之時間作出

澄清。該等修訂會追溯應用。由於本集

團並無任何抵銷安排，故採納有關修訂

對該等財務報表並無影響。

香港會計準則第36號之修訂－可收回金
額披露
該等修訂限制就確認或撥回減值虧損之

該等期間披露資產或現金產生單位可收

回金額之規定，並擴大已按公平值減出

售成本釐定已減值資產或現金產生單位

可收回金額之披露。該等修訂會追溯應

用。
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31 December 2014 二零一四年十二月三十一日

Notes to the Financial Statements
財務報表附註

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet 

effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to 
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are 
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the 
Group.

HKFRSs  
(Amendments)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 
Cycle2

HKFRSs  
(Amendments)

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 
Cycle1

HKFRSs  
(Amendments)

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 
Cycle3

Disclosure Initiative 
(Amendments to  
HKAS 1)

Presentation of Financial 
Statements3

Amendments to  
HKAS 16 and  
HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation3

Amendments to  
HKAS 27

Equity Method in Separate 
Financial Statements3

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments5

Amendments to  
HKFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint Operations3

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers4

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions occurring, on or 

after 1 July 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2. 採納香港財務報告準則（續）
2.2 已頒佈惟尚未生效的新訂╱經修
訂香港財務報告準則
以下可能與本集團的財務報表有關的新

訂╱經修訂香港財務報告準則經已頒

佈，惟尚未生效，並未獲本集團提早採

納。

香港財務報告準則

（修訂本）

二零一零年至二零

一二年週期之年

度改進2

香港財務報告準則

（修訂本）

二零一一年至二零

一三年週期之年

度改進1

香港財務報告準則

（修訂本）

二零一二年至二零

一四年週期之年

度改進3

披露計劃（香港會

計準則第1號之 
修訂）

財務報表之呈列3

香港會計準則第16
號及香港會計準

則第38號之修訂

折舊和攤銷之可接

受方法之澄清3

香港會計準則第27
號之修訂

獨立財務報表之 
權益法3

香港財務報告準則

第9號 
（二零一四年）

財務工具5

香港財務報告準則

第11號之修訂
收購共同營運權益

之會計處理3

香港財務報告準則

第15號
來自客戶合約之 
收益4

 
1 於二零一四年七月一日或之後開始之年度期

間生效

2 於二零一四年七月一日或之後之年度期間（或

產生交易時）生效

3 於二零一六年一月一日或之後開始之年度期

間生效

4 於二零一七年一月一日或之後開始之年度期

間生效

5 於二零一八年一月一日或之後開始之年度期

間生效
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet 

effective (Continued)
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, 2011-2013 
Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements 
process make small, non-urgent changes to a number 
of standards where they are currently unclear. They 
include amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and 
Equipment to clarify how the gross carrying amount and 
accumulated depreciation are treated where an entity 
uses the revaluation model. The carrying amount of the 
asset is restated to revalued amount. The accumulated 
depreciation may be eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying 
amount may be adjusted in a manner consistent with 
the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and 
the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the 
difference between the gross carrying amount and the 
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated 
impairment losses.

Disc losu re  In i t i a t i ve  (Amendments  to  HKAS 1 
Presentation of Financial Statements)
The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to encourage 
entities to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 
when considering the layout and content of their financial 
statements. In addition, an amendment is made to HKAS 
1 to clarify the presentation of an entity’s share of other 
comprehensive income from its equity accounted interests 
in associates and joint ventures. The amendment requires 
an entity’s share of other comprehensive income to be split 
between those items that will and will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss, and presented in aggregate as single line 
items within those two groups.

2. 採納香港財務報告準則（續）
2.2 已頒佈惟尚未生效的新訂╱經修
訂香港財務報告準則（續）
二零一零年至二零一二年週期、二零
一一年至二零一三年週期及二零一二年
至二零一四年週期之年度改進
根據年度改進過程頒佈之修訂對多項目

前尚不清楚之準則作出較小及非緊急變

動。該等修訂包括對香港會計準則第16
號物業、廠房及設備之修訂，以澄清倘

實體使用重估模型，如何處理賬面總值

及累計折舊。資產之賬面值會重列為經

重估金額。累計折舊可與資產之賬面總

值對銷。或者，賬面總值可按與資產之

賬面值重估貫徹一致之方式予以調整，

而累計折舊會調整至等於賬面總值與經

計及累計減值虧損後之賬面值之差額。

披露計劃（香港會計準則第1號財務報表
之呈列之修訂）
香港會計準則第1號之修訂旨在鼓勵實
體在考慮其財務報表之佈局及內容時在

應用香港會計準則第1號時運用判斷。
此外，修訂香港會計準則第1號以澄清
從實體於聯營公司及合營企業之股本權

益呈列實體應佔其他全面收入。該修訂

要求實體應佔其他全面收入於將及將不

會重新分類至損益之項目中分拆並於該

等兩個組別內共同作為單一項目呈列。



Soundwill Holdings Limited 金朝陽集團有限公司106

31 December 2014 二零一四年十二月三十一日

Notes to the Financial Statements
財務報表附註

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet 

effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 – Clarification of 
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibi t the use of a 
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, 
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 
introduce a rebuttable presumption that amortisation based 
on revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets. This 
presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible asset 
is expressed as a measure of revenue or revenue and the 
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible 
asset are highly correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 – Equity Method in Separate 
Financial Statements
The amendments al low an entity to apply the equity 
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries, 
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial 
statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) – Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification 
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments 
that are held within a business model whose objective is 
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows 
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms 
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding 
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally 
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet 
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured 
at fa i r  va lue through other comprehens ive income 
(“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s business model is 
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to 
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable 
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments 
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and 
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit 
or loss (“FVTPL”).

2. 採納香港財務報告準則（續）
2.2 已頒佈惟尚未生效的新訂╱經修
訂香港財務報告準則（續）
香港會計準則第16號及香港會計準則第
38號之修訂—折舊和攤銷之可接受方法
之澄清
香港會計準則第16號之修訂禁止對物
業、廠房及設備項目使用以收益為基準

之折舊方法。香港會計準則第38號之修
訂引入一項可被推翻之假設，即以收益

為基礎之攤銷對無形資產不合適。該假

設可於以下情況被推翻：當無形資產是

以收益衡量或收益與無形資產經濟利益

之消耗存在高度關聯時。

香港會計準則第27號之修訂—獨立財務
報表之權益法
該修訂允許實體在其獨立財務報表中就

其於附屬公司、合營企業及聯營公司之

投資進行會計處理時採用權益法。

香港財務報告準則第 9號（二零一四
年）—財務工具
香港財務報告準則第9號引入財務資產
分類及計量之新規定。按業務模式持

有資產而目的為收取合約現金流之債務

工具（業務模式測試）以及具產生現金

流之合約條款且僅為支付本金及未償還

本金利息之債務工具（合約現金流特徵

測試），一般按攤銷成本計量。倘該實

體業務模式之目的為持有及收取合約現

金流以及出售財務資產，則符合合約現

金流特徵測試之債務工具乃以按公平值

計入其他全面收入（「FVTOCI」）計量。
實體可於初步確認時作出不可撤回之選

擇，以FVTOCI計量並非持作買賣之股
本工具。所有其他債務及股本工具乃按

公平值計入損益（「FVTPL」）。
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet 

effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) – Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model 
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the 
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge 
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect 
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification 
and measurement requirements for f inancial l iabil it ies 
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated 
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value 
attr ibutable to change in credit r isk of the l iabi l i ty is 
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that 
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In 
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for 
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 – Accounting for Acquisitions 
of Interests in Joint Operations
The amendments require an entity to apply al l of the 
principles of HKFRS 3 Business Combinations when it 
acquires an interest in a joint operation that constitutes 
a business as defined in that standard. The principles of 
HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation of a joint 
operation if an existing business as defined in that standard 
is contributed by at least one of the parties.

HKFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition 
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an 
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance 
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction 
Contracts and related interpretations.

2. 採納香港財務報告準則（續）
2.2 已頒佈惟尚未生效的新訂╱經修
訂香港財務報告準則（續）
香港財務報告準則第 9號（二零一四
年）—財務工具（續）
香港財務報告準則第9號就並非FVTPL
之所有財務資產納入新的預期虧損減值

模式（取代香港會計準則第39號之已產
生虧損模式）以及新的一般對沖會計法

規定，以讓實體於財務報表內更好地反

映其風險管理活動。

香港財務報告準則第9號秉承香港會計
準則第39號之財務負債確認、分類及
計量規定，惟指定為FVTPL之財務負債
除外，其因負債信貸風險變動而產生之

公平值變動金額乃於其他全面收入中確

認，除非此舉會引致或擴大會計錯配則

作別論。此外，香港財務報告準則第9
號保留香港會計準則第39號有關取消確
認財務資產及財務負債之規定。

香港財務報告準則第11號之修訂—收購
共同營運權益之會計處理
該等修訂規定當實體收購構成業務（定

義見香港財務報告準則第3號）之共同營
運之權益時，須應用該準則業務合併之

所有原則。倘該準則所界定之現有業務

由至少一方參與，則香港財務報告準則

第3號之原則亦會於成立共同營運時應
用。

香港財務報告準則第15號—來自客戶合
約之收益
有關新訂準則設立單一收益確認框架。

框架之主要原則為實體應確認收益，以

說明實體按反映交換商品及服務預期所

得代價之金額向客戶轉讓所承諾商品或

服務。香港財務報告準則第15號取代現
有收益確認指引，包括香港會計準則第

18號收益、香港會計準則第11號建築
合約及相關詮釋。
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet 

effective (Continued)
HKFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(Continued)
HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to 
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in  

the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each 

performance obligation
Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance 

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue 
related topics that may change the current approach taken 
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the 
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

Save as the main changes described above, the Group is 
in the process of making an assessment of the potential 
impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the Directors are 
not yet in a position to quantity the effects on the Group’s 
financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 90 to 228 have been 
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong 
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and 
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies 
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include 
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the 
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong 
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

2. 採納香港財務報告準則（續）
2.2 已頒佈惟尚未生效的新訂╱經修
訂香港財務報告準則（續）
香港財務報告準則第15號—來自客戶合
約之收益（續）
香港財務報告準則第15號規定確認收益
所應用之五個步驟：

第1步： 識別與客戶所訂立之合約
第2步： 識別合約之履約責任

第3步： 釐定交易價格
第4步： 分配交易價格至各履約責任

第5步： 於履行各履約責任時確認收益

香港財務報告準則第15號包括對與可能
改變目前根據香港財務報告準則之做法

之特定收益相關事宜之特定指引。有關

準則亦顯著加強有關收益之定性及定量

披露。

除上文所述的主要改動外，本集團亦正

在評估此等新訂╱經修訂香港財務報告

準則的潛在影響。董事目前尚未適宜對

本集團財務報表所受之影響作出量化評

估。

3. 編製基準
3.1 合規聲明
第90至228頁之財務報表乃根據所有適
用之香港財務報告準則、香港會計準則

（「香港會計準則」）及詮釋（以下統稱「香

港財務報告準則」）以及香港公司條例之

披露規定而編製。此外，財務報表包括

香港聯合交易所有限公司證券上市規則

（「上市規則」）所規定之適用披露。
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
3.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost basis except for investment properties and 
leasehold buildings which are measured at fair value. The 
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting 
policies below.

The significant accounting policies that have been used 
in the preparat ion of these f inancial statements are 
summarised below. These policies have been consistently 
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. 
The adoption of revised/amended HKFRSs and the impacts 
on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in 
note 2.

I t  shou ld be noted that account ing est imates and 
assumptions are used in preparation of the f inancial 
statements. Although these est imates are based on 
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current 
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from 
those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of 
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are 
disclosed in note 5.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong 
dol lars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional 
currency of the Company.

3. 編製基準（續）
3.2 計量基準
除按公平值列賬之投資物業及租賃樓宇

之重估外，財務報表乃採用歷史成本法

編製。計量基準於下列會計政策內充分

說明。

編製該等綜合財務報表所採用之主要會

計政策在下文概述。除另有說明者外，

該等政策已於所有呈報年度貫徹應用。

採納經修改╱經修訂香港財務報告準則

及對本集團財務報表之影響（如有）在附

註2披露。

謹請留意編製財務報表曾運用會計估計

及假設。雖然該等估計基於管理層對

現時事件及行動之最佳理解及判斷，但

實際結果最終或會與有關估計有重大出

入。涉及高度判斷或複雜性之範圍，或

假設及估計對財務報表而屬重大之範圍

在附註5內披露。

3.3 功能及呈列貨幣
財務報表乃以港幣（「港幣」）呈列，而港

幣亦為本公司之功能貨幣。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the 
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which 
cont ro l  i s  t rans fe r red to the Group.  They a re de-
consol idated from the date that control ceases. The 
results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during 
the year are included in the consol idated statement 
of comprehensive income from the effect ive date of 
acquisition or up to the effective date of the disposal, as 
appropriate.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains 
and losses on transactions between group companies 
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements. Where unreal ised losses on intra-group 
asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying 
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s 
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements 
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to 
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted 
by the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for 
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition 
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisit ion-date 
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and 
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are 
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The 
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is 
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting 
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group 
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to 
measure the non-controlling interest either at fair value or 
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed 
unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in 
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

4. 主要會計政策概要
4.1 綜合基準
綜合財務報表包括本公司及其附屬公司

截至每年十二月三十一日結算之財務報

表。

當附屬公司之控制權轉移至本集團時，

附屬公司全面綜合入賬，當不再有控制

權時則取消綜合入賬。年內所收購或出

售附屬公司之業績乃自收購生效日期起

或截至出售生效日期止（按適當情況）計

入綜合全面收入表。

集團公司間交易、結餘及未變現交易盈

虧於編製綜合財務報表時予以撇銷。當

集團內資產出售之未變現虧損於綜合入

賬時撥回，則相關資產亦自本集團之角

度進行減值測試。附屬公司財務報表呈

報之金額於適當時予以調整，以確保符

合本集團採納之會計政策。

收購附屬公司或業務乃以收購法入賬。

收購成本按本集團（作為收購方）所轉

移之資產、產生之負債及發行之股權於

收購日期之公平值總額計量。所收購之

可識別資產及承擔之可識別負債主要按

收購日期之公平值計量。本集團先前持

有被收購方之股權按收購日期之公平值

重新計量，所產生之盈虧於損益確認。

本集團可按每宗交易選擇按公平值或按

應佔被收購方可識別淨資產之比例計量

非控制權益。所產生之收購相關成本一

概列作開支，除非其產生於發行股本工

具，此情況下，成本自股本中扣減。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the 
acquirer is recognised at acquisit ion-date fair value. 
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised 
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from 
new information obtained within the measurement period 
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about 
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent 
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an 
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do 
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest 
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect 
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. 
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in 
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or 
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between 
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration 
received and the fair value of any retained interest and 
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including 
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Where certain assets of the subsidiary 
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the 
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, 
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if 
the Company had directly disposed of the related assets 
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly 
to retained earnings). The fair value of any investment 
retained in the former subsidiary at the date the control 
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition 
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when 
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in 
an associate or a joint venture.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.1 綜合基準（續）
收購方將予轉移之任何或然代價均按收

購日期之公平值計量。倘其後對代價作

出調整，僅於調整乃由於計量期間（最

長為收購日期起計12個月）內所取得有
關於收購日期之公平值之新資料而作出

時，方通過商譽確認。分類為資產或負

債之或然代價之所有其他其後調整均於

損益確認。

本集團於附屬公司之權益變動（並無導

致失去控制權）列作權益交易入賬。本

集團之權益與非控制權益之賬面值均予

以調整，以反映彼等於附屬公司相對權

益之變動。非控制權益之調整額與已付

或已收代價之公平值之間之任何差額，

均直接於權益確認，並歸屬於本公司擁

有人。

倘本集團失去附屬公司之控制權，出售

損益乃按下列兩者之差額計算：(i)所收
取代價之公平值與任何保留權益之公平

值之總額，與 (ii)該附屬公司之資產（包
括商譽）及負債與任何非控制權益過往

之賬面值。先前就該附屬公司於其他全

面收入確認之款額按出售相關資產或負

債時所規定之相同方式列賬。倘附屬公

司之若干資產按重估值或公平值計量，

而相關累計盈虧已於其他全面收入確認

及於權益累計，則過往其他全面收入確

認及於權益累計之金額會以猶如本公

司已直接出售相關資產之方式入賬（即

重新分類至損益或直接轉撥至保留盈

利）。於失去控制權當日仍保留於該前

附屬公司之任何投資之公平值，會根據

香港會計準則第39號財務工具：確認
及計量於往後之會計處理中被視為首次

確認於聯營公司或合營企業之投資時之

公平值，或（如適用）其首次確認時之成

本。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.1 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interest is the amount of those interests at 
initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share 
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive 
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if 
this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit 
balance.

4.2 Subsidiaries
Subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able 
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if 
all three of the following elements are present: power over 
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from 
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those 
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and 
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any 
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s s ta tement o f  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion , 
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any 
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or 
included in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are 
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends 
received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends 
whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit 
or loss.

When the Group acquires a subsidiary where the underlying 
assets are not integrated in forming a business to generate 
revenues, the transaction is accounted for as a purchase 
of net assets. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the 
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired based on their 
relative fair values at the date of acquisition and no goodwill 
is recognised.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.1 綜合基準（續）
收購後，非控制權益之賬面值為該等權

益於首次確認時之金額加以非控制權益

應佔權益其後變動之部分。全面收入總

額乃歸屬於非控制權益，即使這會導致

非控制權益出現虧損亦屬如此。

4.2 附屬公司
附屬公司指本公司能對其行使控制權之

被投資方。倘達成以下三項條件，本公

司取得被投資方之控制權：有權控制被

投資方，對來自被投資方之浮動回報享

有承擔或權利，以及能運用對被投資方

之權力以影響其所得回報。倘有情況顯

示任何有關控制條件改變，則重新評估

有關控制權。

在本公司財務狀況表中，於附屬公司之

投資以成本值扣除任何減值虧損入賬，

惟附屬公司乃持作出售或包含在出售組

別中則除外。本公司按截至報告日期已

收及應收股息作為附屬公司之業績入

賬。所有已收取股息不論來自投資對象

之收購前或後溢利，均於本公司之損益

內確認。

當本集團收購一間附屬公司（其相關資

產並非合併為產生收益之業務），則交

易入賬列為購買淨資產。收購成本根據

所收購之可識別資產及負債各自於收購

日期之公平值分配至可識別資產及負

債，概不會確認商譽。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.3 Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is 
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over 
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and 
at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the 
same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as 
either:

• Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only the 
net assets of the joint arrangement; or

• Joint operations: where the group has both the rights 
to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint 
arrangement.

In assess ing the c lass i f icat ion o f in terests in jo in t 
arrangements, the Group considers:

• The structure of the joint arrangement;
• The legal form of joint arrangements structured through 

a separate vehicle;
• The contractua l terms of the jo int arrangement 

agreement; and
• Any other facts and circumstances (including any other 

contractual arrangements).

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method 
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, 
their carrying amounts are adjusted for the Group’s share 
of post-acquisit ion changes in the joint ventures’ net 
assets except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest 
in the joint venture are not recognised unless there is an 
obligation to make good those losses.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.3 合營安排
當有合約安排討論有關對本集團及至少

一名其他訂約方的相關安排活動之共

同控制權時，本集團為合營安排之訂約

方。共同控制乃根據控制附屬公司之相

同原則予以評估。

本集團將其於合營安排的權益分類為：

•  合營企業：倘本集團僅對合營安排
之淨資產值擁有控制權；或

•  合營業務：倘本集團對合營安排之
資產及負債責任均擁有控制權。

於評估有關於合營安排之權益之分類

時，本集團會考慮：

•  合營安排之架構；
•  透過獨立實體組織之合營安排之法
律形式；

•  合營安排協議之合約條款；及

•  任何其他事實及情況（包括任何其
他合約安排）。

合營企業採用權益法入賬，據此該等權

益初步按成本確認，其賬面值就本集團

分佔合營企業淨資產值於收購後之變動

而調整，但高於本集團於合營企業權益

之虧損不予確認，除非有責任彌償該等

虧損之情況則作別論。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.3 Joint arrangements (Continued)

Profits or losses arising on the transactions between the 
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to the 
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture. 
The investors’ share in the joint venture’s profits and losses 
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the 
carrying value of the joint venture. Where unrealised losses 
provide evidence of impairment of the assets transferred 
they are recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above 
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised 
and included in the carrying amount of the investment 
in joint venture. Where there is objective evidence that 
the investment in a joint venture has been impaired, the 
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment 
in the same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operation by 
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred 
rights and obligations.

4.4 Goodwill
Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill 
arising on acquisition of subsidiary.

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the 
fair value of the consideration transferred and the amount 
recognised for any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Where the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair 
value of consideration paid and the amount recognised 
for any non-controlling interests, the excess is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.3 合營安排（續）
本集團與其合營企業之間交易產生之損

益僅於不相關投資人於合營企業擁有權

益時方才確認。該等交易產生之投資人

分佔合營企業溢利及虧損與合營企業之

賬面值對銷。倘未變現虧損證明資產轉

移之減值，則其及時於損益確認。

就於合營企業之投資所支付高於本集團

分佔所收購可識別資產、負債及或然負

債之任何溢價須撥充資本及計入於合營

企業投資之賬面值。倘有客觀證據顯示

於合營企業之投資已出現減值，則投資

之賬面值須如同其他非金融資產按同一

方式進行減值測試。

本集團按照其合約賦予之權利及責任，

透過確認其分佔之資產、負債、收入及

開支，為其於共同營運之權益入賬。

4.4 商譽
下文載列收購附屬公司所產生商譽之會

計政策。

商譽指所轉讓代價之公平值及就於被收

購方之任何非控制權益確認之金額總額

超出被收購方可識別資產、負債及或然

負債之公平淨值之差額。

倘可識別資產、負債及或然負債之公平

值超過已付代價之公平值及就任何非控

制權益確認之金額之總額，差額於收購

日期即時於損益內確認。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.4 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is 
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, 
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to 
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. A 
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated 
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an 
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the 
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated 
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial 
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating 
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the 
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount 
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the 
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying 
amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for 
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in 
subsequent periods.

Impairment losses for goodwill recognised in an interim 
period are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the 
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been 
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the 
end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or cash-generating 
unit, any attributable amount of goodwill is included in the 
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.4 商譽（續）
商譽乃按成本減累計減值虧損列賬。業

務合併產生之商譽分配至預期受惠於業

務合併之協同效益之各有關現金產生單

位或現金產生單位組別。獲分配商譽之

現金產生單位每年或於有跡象顯示該單

位可能出現減值時進行減值測試。

就於財政年度內進行收購所產生之商譽

而言，獲分配商譽之現金產生單位於

該財政年末前進行減值測試。當現金產

生單位之可收回金額少於該單位之賬面

值，減值虧損會被分配以首先減少該單

位獲分配之任何商譽賬面值，再根據該

單位各資產之賬面值按比例分配予該單

位之其他資產。商譽之任何減值虧損於

損益確認且不會於其後期間撥回。

於中期就商譽確認之減值虧損不得於其

後之期間撥回。即使僅於該中期相關之

財政年度末時評估將並無減值虧損予以

確認或較少之減值虧損予以確認亦當如

此。

其後出售附屬公司或現金產生單位時，

任何應佔商譽金額於計算出售盈虧時包

括在內。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.5 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn 
rental income and/or for capital appreciation (including 
properties under construction for such purposes), but 
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use 
in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purpose.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including 
transaction cost, on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair 
value with any change therein recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or 
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn 
from use and no future economic benefits are expected 
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the property (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
properties) is recognised in profit or loss.

4.6 Property, plant and equipment
The leasehold buildings, held for own use, are stated at 
revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of the 
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to 
ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not 
differ materially from that which would be determined using 
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.5 投資物業
投資物業是指為賺取租金收入及╱或資

本增值而持有之物業（包括為該等目的

之在建物業），而非為於日常業務過程

中出售、用作生產或供應商品或服務或

作行政用途而持有之物業。

投資物業於首次確認時乃按成本（包括

交易成本）計量。經首次確認後，投資

物業按公平值計量，其中任何變動則於

損益確認。

投資物業於出售或當投資物業永久棄置

或預期不會自出售獲取任何未來經濟利

益時取消確認。取消確認物業時產生之

任何盈虧（按淨出售所得款項及物業賬

面值之差額計算）於損益確認。

4.6 物業、廠房及設備
持作自用之租賃樓宇按重估值列賬，即

其於重估日期之公平值減任何其後累計

折舊。

重估乃足夠定期性進行，以確保該等資

產之賬面值不會與於報告期末採用公平

值釐定之數額出現重大差異。



1172014年年報 Annual Report 2014

31 December 2014 二零一四年十二月三十一日

Notes to the Financial Statements
財務報表附註

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any increase arising on revaluation is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under 
asset revaluation reserve, unless the carrying amount of 
that asset has previously suffered a decrease in revaluation. 
To the extent that any decrease has previously been 
recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase is 
credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of the 
increase dealt with in other comprehensive income. A 
decrease in net carrying amount of leasehold buildings 
arising on revaluation is recognised in other comprehensive 
income to the extent of the revaluation surplus in the asset 
revaluation reserve relating to the same asset and the 
remaining decrease is recognised in profit or loss.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its 
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in 
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance 
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the 
financial period in which they are incurred.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.6 物業、廠房及設備（續）
重估產生之任何增值在其他全面收入中

確認，並另行撥入權益之資產重估儲

備，除非有關資產之賬面值之前曾出現

重估減值。重估增值計入損益，但以之

前曾在損益確認任何減值之數額為限，

增值之餘額於其他全面收入中處理。租

賃樓宇於重估時產生之賬面淨值減值在

其他全面收入中確認，惟以資產重估儲

備內有關同一資產之重估盈餘為限，而

減值餘額則在損益中確認。

其他物業、廠房及設備項目乃按成本減

累計折舊及累計減值虧損列賬。

物業、廠房及設備之成本包括其購買價

及收購項目直接應佔成本。其後成本計

入資產之賬面值或於適當時確認為獨立

資產，惟前提為有關該項目之未來經濟

利益很可能流入本集團及該項目之成本

能可靠計算。所有其他成本（如維修及

保養）在其產生之財政期間內於損益中

確認為開支。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost/revalued 
amount of property, plant and equipment over their 
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at the 
following rates per annum:

Leasehold lands Over the lease period
Leasehold buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements 30%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% – 20%
Motor vehicles 6% – 15%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and 
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable 
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s 
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on disposal is determined as the 
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 
Any relevant revaluation surplus remaining in equity is 
transferred directly to retained profits on the disposal of 
leasehold building.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.6 物業、廠房及設備（續）
折舊按物業、廠房及設備之估計可用期

按直線基準按下列年率計算撥備以撇銷

其成本╱重估值：

租賃土地 於租期內

租賃樓宇 2%
租賃物業裝修 30%
傢俬、裝置及設備 10% – 20%
汽車 6% – 15%

資產之剩餘價值、折舊方法及可用期須

於各報告日期進行檢討，並於適當情況

下作出調整。

倘資產之賬面值高於其估計可收回金

額，則資產即時撇減至其可收回金額。

出售之盈虧即出售所得款項淨額與資產

賬面值之差額，在損益中確認。出售租

賃樓宇時仍在權益中之任何有關重估盈

餘直接轉撥往保留溢利。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets, represent ing urban infrastructure 
development rights, are stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised 
only when it increases the future economic benef its 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is charged to the profit or loss on a straight 
line basis over the estimated useful lives of 20 years for the 
intangible assets. Intangible assets are amortised from the 
date the asset is available for use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible 
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their 
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any 
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible assets 
with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an 
indication that an asset may be impaired. If the recoverable 
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as 
an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
est imate of i ts recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that  wou ld have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
years.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.7 無形資產（商譽除外）
無形資產即城市基礎設施之開發權，按

成本扣除累計攤銷及減值虧損入賬。

無形資產其後之開支只有在提高相關特

定資產內在未來經濟利益之情況下方

會撥作資本。其他開支一概在產生時支

銷。

無形資產按20年之估計可用期按直線基
準在損益中扣除。無形資產自資產可運

用日期開始攤銷。

具無限可用期之無形資產及尚未可供使

用之無形資產每年進行減值測試，方

法為將其賬面值與其可收回金額進行比

較，而不論是否有任何跡象顯示可能出

現減值。具有限年期之無形資產於有跡

象顯示資產可能出現減值時進行減值測

試。倘資產之可收回金額估計少於其賬

面值，則資產之賬面值減至其可收回金

額。減值虧損即時確認為開支。

當減值虧損其後撥回，該資產之賬面值

增加至其可收回金額之修訂估計，惟所

增加之賬面值不得超過該資產於過往年

度並無確認減值虧損時原應釐定之賬面

值。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.8 Properties held for development

Properties held for development representing operating 
lease prepayment on leasehold land and any directly 
attributable expenditure, with the intention for holding 
for long-term purposes or no decision has yet been 
made on their future use are included in the statement 
of financial position as non-current assets. Since the fair 
value of properties held for development cannot be reliably 
determined, these investment properties are measured at 
cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 
The amortisation policy for operating lease prepayment is 
disclosed in note 4.10 to the financial statements.

4.9 Impairment of other non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the 
carrying amounts of properties held for development to 
determine whether there is any indication that they have 
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously 
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

• Investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture;

• Property, plant and equipment under cost model; and

• Properties held for development.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value 
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated 
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, 
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount 
under the Group’s accounting policy, in which case the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease 
according to that policy.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had 
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as 
income immediately.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.8 待發展物業
擬長期持有或尚未決定未來用途之待發

展物業指租賃土地之經營租賃預付款項

及任何直接應佔開支，乃於財務狀況表

列為非流動資產。由於該待發展物業之

公平值不能可靠釐定，故該等投資物業

乃按成本減累計攤銷及減值虧損計量。

經營租賃預付款項之攤銷政策於財務報

表附註4.10披露。

4.9 其他非財務資產減值
於各報告期末，本集團審閱待發展物業

之賬面值，以釐定有否任何跡象顯示該

等資產已出現減值虧損或過往確認之減

值虧損不再存在或經已減少：

•  於附屬公司及一家合營企業之投
資；

•  成本模式下之物業、廠房及設備；
及

•  待發展物業。

倘資產之可收回金額（即公平值減出售

成本與使用價值之較高者）估計低於其

賬面值，則該資產之賬面值會調低至可

收回金額。減值虧損即時確認為開支，

除非有關資產根據本集團之會計政策按

重估值列賬，則在該情況下，減值虧損

乃根據該政策作為重估減值處理。

倘減值虧損其後撥回，該資產之賬面值

增加至其可收回金額之修訂估計，惟所

增加之賬面值不得超過該資產於過往年

度並無確認減值虧損時原應釐定之賬面

值。減值虧損撥回即時確認為收入。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of 
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines 
that arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset 
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a 
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination 
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the 
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement 
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms 
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

The Group as lessor under operating lease
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in 
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operat ing lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as 
an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss 
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments 
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in 
the accounting period in which they are earned.

The Group as lessee under operating lease
The total rentals payable under operating leases are 
recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received 
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the 
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental are 
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which 
they are incurred.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.10 租賃
倘本集團決定於協定時期內將特定資產

使用權出讓以換取一筆或一連串付款之

安排，包括一項交易或連串交易之該項

安排則屬於或包括一項租賃。該項決定

乃基於安排內容之估值而作出，而不論

該項安排是否採取租賃之法律形式。

倘租賃之條款轉讓所有權絕大部分風險

及回報予本集團，則租賃分類為融資租

賃。所有其他租賃分類為經營租賃。

本集團作為經營租賃之出租人
經營租賃之租金收入於有關租賃年期內

按直線基準於損益確認。於磋商及安排

經營租賃時產生之初次直接成本乃加至

租賃資產之賬面值於租賃年期內按直線

基準確認為開支。所授出之租賃優惠乃

於損益中確認為淨應收租賃款項總額之

一部分。或然租金於所賺取之會計期間

確認為收入。

本集團作為經營租賃之承租人
經營租賃項下應付租金總額於有關租賃

年期內按直線基準於損益確認。所獲得

之租賃優惠在損益中確認為淨租賃付款

總額之組成部分。或然租金在其產生之

會計期間內在損益中扣除。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets
The Group’s classifies its financial assets at initial 
recognit ion, depending on the purpose for which 
the asset was acquired. Financial assets are initially 
measured at fa i r va lue plus direct ly attr ibutable 
transaction costs. Regular way purchases and sales of 
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on 
a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a 
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract 
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the 
t ime frame established general ly by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables
These assets are non-derivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They arise principally through 
the provision of goods and services to customers 
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of 
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to init ial 
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using 
the effect ive interest method, less any identi f ied 
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets
These assets are non-derivat ive f inancial assets 
that are either designated to as available-for-sale 
or are not included in other categories of financial 
assets. Subsequent to in i t ia l recognit ion, these 
assets are carried at fair value with changes in fair 
value recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated separately in the available-for-sale 
financial assets revaluation reserve in equity, except 
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and 
losses on monetary instruments, which are recognised 
in profit or loss.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.11 財務工具

(i) 財務資產
本集團於首次確認時基於收購資產

之目的決定其財務資產之分類。財

務資產於首次確認時按公平值加直

接應佔交易成本計量。按一般方式

買賣之財務資產乃按交易日基準確

認及取消確認。按一般方式買賣指

根據條款規定於一般按有關市場規

則或慣例設定之時限內交付資產之

合約進行之財務資產買賣。

貸款及應收款項
該等資產為非衍生財務資產，有固

定或既定之還款規定，且並無在活

躍市場報價。該等資產主要透過向

客戶提供貨品及服務而產生（貿易

應收賬），亦包括其他種類之合約

貨幣資產。首次確認後，該等資產

使用實際利率法按攤銷成本減任何

已識別減值虧損列賬。

可供出售財務資產
該等資產包括指定為可供出售或並

非包括於財務資產之其他分類之非

衍生財務資產。首次確認後，該等

資產乃按公平值計量，公平值變動

則於其他全面收入中確認，並另行

撥入權益之待出售財務資產重估儲

備予以累計，惟貨幣工具之減值虧

損及外匯損益在損益中確認。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
The fair value of available-for-sale monetary assets 
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that 
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the 
reporting date. The change in fair value attributable 
to translation differences that result from a change 
in amortised cost of the asset is recognised in profit 
or loss, and other changes are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not 
have a quoted market price in an active market and 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and 
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by 
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are 
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses.

(ii) Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting 
period, whether there is any objective evidence that 
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired 
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment 
may include:

• significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
• a  b r e a c h  o f  c o n t r a c t ,  s u c h  a s  d e f a u l t  o r 

delinquency in interest or principal payments;
• grant ing concession to a debtor because of 

debtor’s financial difficulty;
• it becoming probable that the debtor will enter 

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
• signif icant changes in technological, market, 

economic or legal environment that have an 
adverse effect on the debtor; and

• a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 
of an investment in an equity instrument below its 
cost.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.11 財務工具（續）

(i) 財務資產（續）
以外幣為單位之待出售貨幣資產公

平值按該外幣釐定並按於報告日期

之現貨匯率換算。因資產攤銷成本

變動導致之兌換差額公平值變動在

損益中確認，而其他變動在其他全

面收入中確認。

無活躍市場報價及其公平值不能可

靠地計算之可供出售股本投資，以

及與無報價股本工具相連並須以交

付上述股本工具之方式平倉之衍生

工具，乃以成本減任何已識別減值

虧損計量。

(ii) 財務資產之減值
本集團於各報告期末評估是否有任

何客觀證據顯示財務資產已經減

值。倘因於首次確認資產後發生之

一項或多項事件而出現客觀減值證

據，而該事件對財務資產之估計未

來現金流量所造成之影響能可靠估

計，則該財務資產出現減值。減值

證據包括：

•  債務人出現重大財務困難；
•  違約，例如拖欠或無法如期償
還利息或本金；

•  因債務人之財政困難而向債務
人授出寬充；

•  債務人可能破產或進行其他財
務重組；

•  科技、市場、經濟或法律環境
之重大變化對債務人構成不利

影響；及

•  股本工具投資之公平值大幅或
持續下跌至低於其成本。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and 
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial asset 
when there is objective evidence that the asset is 
impaired, and is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount 
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account. When any part of financial asset is 
determined as uncollectible, it is written off against the 
allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods 
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount 
can be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction 
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the 
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the 
amortised cost would have been had the impairment 
not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective 
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is 
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on avai lable-for-sale debt 
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss 
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can 
be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase 
in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried 
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured 
as the difference between the carrying amount of the 
asset and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the current market rate of return 
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is not 
reversed.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.11 財務工具（續）

(ii) 財務資產之減值（續）
貸款及應收款項
減值虧損於損益確認及於有客觀證

據顯示資產已經減值時直接扣減財

務資產之賬面值，並按資產賬面值

與按原實際利率貼現之估計未來現

金流量現值之差額計量。財務資產

之賬面值透過使用撥備賬扣減。當

財務資產任何部分被釐定為不可收

回時，則於相關財務資產之撥備賬

撇銷。

倘若有關資產可收回金額增加可客

觀地與確認減值後發生之事件有關

連，則於其後期間撥回減值虧損，

惟資產於撥回減值當日之賬面值不

得超過如無確認減值之原有攤銷成

本。

可供出售財務資產
當公平值減少構成客觀減值證據，

則該虧損金額會自權益扣除，並在

損益內確認。

倘投資之公平值增加可客觀地與確

認減值虧損後發生之事件有關，則

可供出售債務投資之任何減值虧損

其後於損益撥回。

可供出售股本投資之減值後之任何

公平值增加乃於其他全面收入中確

認。

就以成本列賬之可供出售股本投資

而言，減值金額是以資產之賬面值

與以同類財務資產之當時市場回報

率折現之預計未來現金流量現值之

間之差額計量。有關減值虧損不會

撥回。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and 
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of 
three months or less that are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and form an 
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

(iv) Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending 
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. 
Financial l iabi l i t ies at amort ised cost are init ia l ly 
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs 
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade 
and other payables and borrowings are measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 
The related interest is recognised in accordance with 
the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs 
(note 4.15).

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when 
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the 
amortisation process.

(v) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial 
liability and of allocating interest income or interest 
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of 
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a 
shorter period.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.11 財務工具（續）

(iii) 現金及現金等價物
現金及現金等價物包括銀行及手頭

現金、銀行活期存款以及原定到期

日為三個月或以下隨時可轉換為已

知數額現金且價值變動風險不大之

其他短期高流通性投資，乃本集團

現金管理其中部分。

(iv) 財務負債
本集團基於產生負債之目的決定其

財務負債之分類。按攤銷成本列賬

之財務負債初次按公平值扣除直接

應佔已產生之成本計量。

按攤銷成本列賬之財務負債
按攤銷成本列賬之財務負債（包括

貿易及其他應付款項及借貸）乃採

用實際利率法按攤銷成本計量。相

關利息根據本集團有關借貸成本之

會計政策（附註4.15）確認。

當負債透過攤銷過程取消確認，則

於損益確認盈虧。

(v) 實際利率法
實際利率法為計算財務資產或財務

負債攤銷成本及於有關期間內分配

利息收入及收息開支之方法。實際

利率為於財務資產或負債之預計年

期或（如適當）較短期間內準確貼現

估計未來現金收入或付款之利率。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi) Equity instruments
Ordinary shares issued by the Company are recorded 
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(vii) Financial guarantee contract
A f inancial guarantee contract is a contract that 
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because a specified debtor fails to make payment 
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair 
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred 
income with in t rade and other payables. Where 
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance 
of a guarantee, the consideration is recognised in 
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to 
that category of asset. Where no such consideration 
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is 
recognised as investment in subsidiaries on initial 
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee init ial ly recognised 
as deferred income is amortised in prof it or loss 
over the term of the guarantee as income f rom 
financial guarantee issued. In addition, provisions 
are recognised if and when it becomes probable that 
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group 
under the guarantee and the amount of that claim on 
the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying 
amount.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.11 財務工具（續）

(vi) 股本工具
本公司發行之普通股乃按已收所得

款項減直接發行成本記賬。

(vii) 財務擔保合約
財務擔保合約為因指定債務人未能

按債務工具之條款如期付款時，發

出者（或擔保人）需支付指定金額

予持有人以補償其所遭受虧損之合

約。

倘本集團發出財務擔保，擔保之公

平值首次確認為貿易及其他應付款

項內之遞延收入。倘發出擔保之代

價獲收取或可收取，則代價按本

集團適用於該類資產之政策予以確

認。倘有關代價未能收取或不可收

取，則於首次確認任何遞延收入時

立即將開支確認為於附屬公司之投

資。

初次確認為遞延收入之擔保金額於

擔保期間在損益內攤銷，作為發出

財務擔保之收入。此外，於及當有

可能出現擔保持有人將要求本集團

承擔擔保項下之責任，且預期針對

本集團之申索金額會超過當時之賬

面值時，則確認撥備。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

(viii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to 
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset 
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria 
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39. When 
an available-for-sale financial asset is derecognised, 
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to 
profit or loss.

F inanc ia l  l i ab i l i t ies are derecogn ised when the 
ob l igat ion spec i f ied in the re levant cont ract i s 
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4.12 Inventories
I n ven to r i e s  a r e  i n i t i a l l y  r ecogn i sed  a t  cos t ,  and 
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value.

Properties under development
The cost of propert ies under development for sa le 
comprises the acquisit ion cost of land, development 
expenditure, other d i rect expenses and capita l ised 
borrowing costs (see note 4.15).

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.11 財務工具（續）

(viii) 取消確認
當與財務資產有關之未來現金流量

之合約權利屆滿或當財務資產已轉

讓，而轉讓根據香港會計準則第39
號符合取消確認標準時，本集團將

取消確認財務資產。當可供出售財

務資產取消確認，累計盈虧自權益

重新分類至損益。

當有關合約訂明之責任解除、註銷

或屆滿，將取消確認財務負債。

4.12 存貨
存貨初次按成本確認，其後以成本及可

變現淨值兩者之較低者入賬。

發展中物業
待出售發展中物業之成本包括收購土地

之收購成本、發展開支、其他直接開支

及已資本化借貸成本（見附註4.15）。

可變現淨值指日常業務過程中之估計售

價減估計完工成本及進行銷售所必要之

估計成本。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when i t is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the 
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the 
sale and purchase agreements have been signed and the 
related conditions, if any, have been fulfilled.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the profit or loss 
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments 
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in 
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Revenue from sales of properties under development 
is recognised when the signif icant r isks and rewards 
of ownership of these properties under development 
have been transferred to the purchasers and the Group 
retains neither continuing involvement to the degree 
usually associated with ownership nor effective control 
over properties under development. The transfer of risks 
and rewards of ownership is evidenced by the passing 
of possession of properties to the purchaser when the 
properties’ hand-over confirmation is executed by the 
Group and the purchaser. Deposits and instalments 
received from purchasers prior to this stage are included in 
current liabilities and are not recognised as revenue.

Revenue from urban infrastructure projects, such as the 
construction works for telecommunication pipel ines, 
is recognised when the construct ion works are ful ly 
comp le ted and so ld to cus tomers .  Comple t ion i s 
determined based on certification by independent third 
party quantity surveyors.

Income from management services, property repairs and 
maintenance services are recognised in the period when 
the respective services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time basis on the 
principal outstanding at the effective interest rate.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.13 收益確認
當本集團可能獲得經濟利益且能可靠計

算收益及成本（如適用），則會確認收

益。

物業銷售收益於買賣協議已簽訂及相關

條件（如有）已獲達成時予以確認。

經營租賃之租金收入於有關租賃年期內

按直線基準確認。租賃優惠計入應收租

金淨額總和在損益中確認。或然租金在

收取之會計期間確認為收入。

銷售發展中物業產生之收益，於該等發

展中物業擁有權之風險及回報經已大

部份轉移至買家，而本集團不再繼續涉

及一般與發展中物業有關之擁有權，亦

不再對發展中物業具有實際控制權時確

認。當本集團與買家簽立物業轉手確認

書時將物業的管有權轉交買家，即屬轉

移擁有權的風險及回報之憑證。於此階

段前向買家收取之訂金及分期款項列為

流動負債，且不會確認為收益。

城市基礎設施（例如電訊管道建築工程）

之收益當建築工程已全面完工及售予客

户後確認。是否完成以獨立第三方測計

師認證為準。

管理服務、物業維修及保養服務收入於

提供有關服務期間確認。

利息收入乃根據未償還本金按實際利率

以時間基準確認。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.14 Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated 
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into 
the functional currency of the individual entity using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
At the reporting date, monetary assets and l iabi l i t ies 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 
the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of 
such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation 
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or 
loss.

Non-monetary i tems car r ied a t  fa i r  va lue tha t  a re 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was 
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain 
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual 
f inancial statements of foreign operat ions, or iginal ly 
presented in a currency di f ferent f rom the Group’s 
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$. 
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the 
closing rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses 
have been converted into the HK$ at the average rates over 
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do 
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this 
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated separately in the translation 
reserve in equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments 
arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation have been 
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation 
and translated into HK$ at the closing rates. When a 
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the gain 
or loss on sale.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.14 外幣
對於綜合入賬公司各自之財務報表所入

賬之外幣交易，採用交易日之主要匯

率換算為各公司之功能貨幣。於報告日

期，以外幣計值之貨幣資產及負債乃以

結算日適用之匯率換算。該等交易之結

算及於結算日重新換算貨幣資產及負債

引致之外匯損益，在損益中確認。

以公平值入賬且以外幣計值之非貨幣項

目，乃按公平值被釐定日期之主要匯率

重新換算，並作為公平值收益或虧損之

一部分呈報。以外幣計值且以歷史成本

入賬之非貨幣項目概不重新換算。

在綜合財務報表中，所呈報貨幣與本集

團呈報貨幣不同之外國業務之所有個別

財務報表已換算為港幣呈列。資產及負

債按報告日期結算匯率換算為港幣，而

收入及支出則按報告期間之平均匯率換

算為港幣，假設匯率並無重大波動。上

述換算所得之任何差額於其他全面收入

中確認並另行撥入股本之兌換儲備。收

購外國業務出現之商譽及公平值調整當

作外國業務之資產及負債，按結算日之

匯率換算為港幣。於出售外國業務時，

該等兌換差額由權益重新分類為損益作

為出售損益之其中部分。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any 
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time 
that is required to complete and prepare the assets for 
its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready 
for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are 
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a 
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being 
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities 
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use 
or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing 
costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary 
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale 
are complete.

4.16 Income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those 
obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating to 
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the 
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax 
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which 
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All 
changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as 
a component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on 
temporary differences at the reporting date between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be 
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary dif ferences, 
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.15 借貸成本
就建設任何合資格資產所產生之借貸成

本於所需完工及將資產達致其擬定用

途期間內撥作資本。合資格資產乃需一

段長時間方達致其擬定用途或出售之資

產。其他借貸成本於產生時列為開支。

當資產產生開支、產生借貸成本，及進

行所需活動以準備資產達致其擬定用

途或出售時，借貸成本予以資本化為合

資格資產之成本部分。當準備合資格資

產達致其擬定用途或出售所需之所有活

動已大致完成時，借貸成本不再作資本

化。

4.16 所得稅
所得稅包括即期稅項及遞延稅項。

即期所得稅資產及╱或負債包括有關即

期及上一個報告期間（且於報告日期仍

未支付者）應付予或應索回稅務當局稅

款。有關數額按適用於財務期間之稅率

及稅務法規，基於該年度應課稅溢利計

算。所有即期稅務資產或負債之變動在

損益中確認，列為所得稅開支之部分。

遞延稅項乃按於報告日期財務報表內資

產與負債賬面值與其相應稅基間之暫時

性差額使用負債法計算。遞延稅項負債

一般會就所有應課稅暫時性差額確認。

遞延稅項資產乃就所有可扣稅暫時性

差額、可結轉稅項虧損以及其他未運用

稅務進賬確認，惟以可能有應課稅溢利

用作抵銷該等可扣稅暫時性差額、未動

用稅項虧損及未動用稅項抵免之情况為

限。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.16 Income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on determining 
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax 
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair 
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the 
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these 
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that 
would apply on sale of these investment properties at their 
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The presumption 
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable 
and is held within a business model whose objective is to 
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied 
in the property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial 
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets 
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor 
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary 
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and jointly 
controlled entity, except where the Group is able to control 
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable 
that the temporary differences wil l not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax 
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised 
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged 
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly to 
equity.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.16 所得稅（續）
釐定計量遞延所得稅金額所用適當稅率

一般規定之例外情況，是當投資物業根

據香港會計準則第40號「投資物業」按公
平值列賬時。除非假設被推翻，否則該

等投資物業之遞延稅項金額於報告日期

按賬面值出售該等投資物業適用之稅率

計量。當投資物業可予折舊並根據一個

商業模式而持有，而該商業模式之目的

為隨著時間推移而消耗該物業所體現之

絕大部分經濟利益（而非透過出售）時，

該假定即被推翻。

倘於一項交易中自資產及負債之商譽或

首次確認（業務合併除外）所產生之暫時

差額並不影響應課稅溢利或會計損益，

則不會就此確認遞延稅項資產及負債。

投資附屬公司及共同控制實體所產生之

應課稅暫時差額須確認遞延稅項負債，

惟倘本集團可以控制暫時差額之撥回及

暫時差額不會在可見將來撥回者除外。

倘遞延稅項已或大致上被制定，於報告

日期遞延稅項以預期支付負債或變現資

產期間時所適用稅率計算及不須貼現。

遞延稅項資產或負債之變動於損益中確

認，或倘其與自其他全面收入扣除或計

入之項目有關或直接與權益有關，則乃

於其他全面收入或直接於權益中確認。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.16 Income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented 
in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend either to 
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net 
basis, or to real ise the assets and sett le the 
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in 
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities 
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.16 所得稅（續）
倘（及僅倘）出現以下情況，則即期稅項

資產及即期稅項負債乃按淨額呈列︰

(a) 本集團有權合法強制抵銷已確認金
額；及

(b) 擬按淨額基準結算，或同步變現資
產及結算負債。

倘（及僅倘）出現以下情況，則本集團之

遞延稅項資產與遞延稅項負債乃按淨額

呈列：

(a) 實體擁有即期稅項資產抵銷即期稅
項負債之法定強制性權利；及

(b) 遞延稅項資產及遞延稅項負債是與
同一稅收部門就以下其中一項徵收

之所得稅相關：

(i) 同一應課稅實體；或

(ii) 不同之應課稅實體，而該等實
體計劃在日後預期清償或收回

大筆款項遞延稅項負債或資產

之每段期間內，按淨額結算即

期稅項負債及資產或同時變現

資產及清償負債。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.17 Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through 
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement 
benefit plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund 
Schemes Ordinance, for al l of its employees who 
are e l ig ib le to par t ic ipate in the MPF Scheme. 
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the 
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which 
operate in the People’s Republic of China, except 
Hong Kong (the “PRC”) are required to participate 
in a central pension scheme operated by the local 
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required 
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to 
the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or 
loss as employees render services during the year. The 
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the 
fixed percentage contributions payable.

(ii) Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised 
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made 
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result 
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting 
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as 
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until 
the time of leave.

(iii) Share-based employee compensation
All employee services received in exchange for the 
grant of any share-based compensation are measured 
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by 
reference to the share options awarded. Their value is 
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of 
any non-market vesting conditions.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.17 僱員福利

(i) 定額供款退休計劃
退休福利乃透過定額供款計劃向僱

員提供。

本集團根據強制性公積金計劃條

例，為其所有合資格參加強積金計

劃之僱員設有定額供款退休福利計

劃。供款乃按僱員基本薪金之百分

比計算。

本集團於中華人民共和國（「中國」）

（除香港外）經營之附屬公司之僱員

須參與當地市政府運作之中央退休

金計劃。該等附屬公司須按僱員薪

金之若干百分比向中央退休金計劃

供款。

供款於僱員提供服務之年度內在損

益中確認為開支。本集團根據此等

計劃之責任限於應付之固定百分比

供款。

(ii) 短期僱員福利
僱員可享有之年假在彼等放假時確

認。截至報告日期本公司就僱員提

供服務而享有年假之估計負債而計

提撥備。

非累積性有薪假期例如病假及產假

於放假時方予確認。

(iii) 以股份為基礎支付之僱員報酬
任何以股份為基礎支付之報酬獲得

之所有僱員服務均按公平值計量，

以所授出購股權之價值間接計算。

而計價以授出日期為準，須扣除與

市場無關之歸屬條件影響之價值。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based employee compensation (Continued)
All share-based compensation is recognised as an 
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if 
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense 
in full at the grant date when the equity instruments 
granted vest immediately unless the compensation 
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding 
increase in employee share-based equity reserve in 
equity. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions 
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting 
period, based on the best available estimate of the 
number of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions 
about the number of equity instruments that are 
expected to ves t .  Es t imates a re subsequent l y 
revised, if there is any indication that the number of 
share options expected to vest differs from previous 
estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, 
the amount previously recognised in employee share-
based equity reserve wil l be transferred to share 
premium. After vesting date, when the vested share 
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at 
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised 
in employee share-based equi ty reserve wi l l  be 
transferred to retained profits.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.17 僱員福利（續）

(iii) 以股份為基礎支付之僱員報酬（續）
所有以股份為基礎支付之報酬於歸

屬期在損益確認為開支（若歸屬條

件適用），或於授出之股本工具即

時歸屬時在授出日期悉數確認為開

支，除非有關報酬符合資格確認為

資產，並在權益之員工股份權益儲

備相應增加。倘歸屬期或其他歸屬

條件適用，則開支會於歸屬期內按

照預期歸屬之股本工具數目之最佳

可得估計確認。於假設預期將歸

屬之股本工具數目時會計入非市場

歸屬條件。倘有任何跡象顯示預期

歸屬之購股權數目與過往之估計不

同，則會於其後修訂估計。

於購股權獲行使時，先前於員工股

份權益儲備確認之款額將轉入股份

溢價。於歸屬日期後當已歸屬之購

股權其後被沒收或於到期日尚未行

使，早前於員工股份權益儲備確認

之金額將轉入保留溢利。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
wil l be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is 
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the 
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic 
benef i ts wi l l  be required, or the amount cannot be 
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as contingent 
l iabil ity, unless the probabil ity of outflow of economic 
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one of more future uncertain events are also disclosed 
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of 
economic benefits is remote.

4.19 Related parties
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is 

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the 
Group or the Company’s parent.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.18 撥備及或然負債
倘本集團因過往事件而須承擔現有法定

或推定責任，而履行該責任時有可能涉

及經濟利益流失，並能作出可靠估計，

則確認有關撥備。若貨幣之時間價值乃

屬重大，則撥備按履行該責任預計所需

開支之現值列賬。

所有撥備於各報告日期作出檢討並作出

調整以反映當時之最佳估計。

倘若導致經濟利益流失之可能性不大，

或該金額無法作出可靠估計，該責任會

披露為或然負債，除非導致經濟利益流

失之可能性極低。潛在責任（須視乎日

後是否發生一宗或多宗事件而確定其會

否存在）亦會披露為或然負債，除非導

致經濟利益流失之可能性極低。

4.19 關聯人士
(a) 倘適用下列情況，該名人士或該名
人士之近親家屬成員便被視為與本

集團有關聯：

(i) 對本集團有控制權或共同控制
權；

(ii) 對本集團有重大影響力；或

(iii) 為本集團或本公司母公司主要
管理人員。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.19 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following 
conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same 
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary 
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the 
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 
member of a group of which the other entity is a 
member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third 
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the 
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the 
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity 
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a 
person identified in (a); or

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence 
over the entity or is a member of key management 
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those 
family members who may be expected to influence, or 
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the 
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic 
partner;

(ii) chi ldren of that person’s spouse or domestic 
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse 
or domestic partner.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.19 關聯人士（續）

(b) 倘適用下列情況，該實體便被視為
與本集團有關聯：

(i) 該實體及本集團屬同一集團之
成員（即各母公司、附屬公司及

同系附屬公司互相關聯）；

(ii) 一個實體為另一實體之聯營公
司或合營企業（或為某一集團之

成員之聯營公司或合營企業，

而該另一實體為此集團之成員）；

(iii) 兩個實體皆為相同第三方之合
營企業；

(iv) 一個實體為第三實體之合營企
業及另一實體為第三實體之聯

營公司；

(v) 該實體為本集團或與本集團有
關聯之實體之僱員福利而設之

離職後福利計劃；

(vi) 該實體受(a)部所識別之人士控
制或共同控制；或

(vii) 於 (a)(i)所識別對實體有重大影
響之人士，或是實體（或實體之

母公司）高級管理人員。

某一人士之近親家屬成員指預期可

影響該人士與實體進行買賣或於買

賣時受該人士影響之有關家屬成員

並包括：

(i) 該名人士之子女及配偶或家庭
夥伴；

(ii) 該名人士之配偶或家庭夥伴之
子女；及

(iii) 該名人士或該名人士之配偶或
家庭夥伴之受養人。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.20 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares 
segment in format ion based on the regular in terna l 
financial information reported to the executive directors 
for their decisions about resources al location to the 
Group’s business components and for their review of 
the performance of those components. The business 
components in the internal financial information reported 
to the executive directors are determined following the 
Group’s major business lines.

The Group has ident i f i ed the fo l low ing repor tab le 
segments:

Property assembly 
business

: Properties assembly and sales of 
properties

Property 
development

: Development of residential and 
commercial properties

Property leasing : Property rental including signage 
rental and provision of office 
facilities and services

Building 
management and 
other services

: Provision of building 
management, property repairs 
and maintenance services

Urban infrastructure : Urban infrastructure development

The Group had disposed of subsidiaries engaged in the 
segment of “Urban infrastructure” in 2013 and the segment 
was considered as a discontinued operation.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately 
as each of the business lines requires different resources as 
well as operating approaches.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.20 分類呈報
本集團根據向執行董事定期呈報之內部

財務資料識別其經營分類及編製分類資

料，本集團執行董事根據該等資料決定

本集團各業務組成部分之資源分配並檢

討該等組成部分之表現。向執行董事呈

報之內部財務資料之業務組成部分乃根

據本集團下列主要業務線釐定。

本集團已識別下列可呈報分類：

物業合併業務 ：物業合併及物業銷售

物業發展 ：發展住宅及商業物業

物業租賃 ：物業租賃包括廣告位

租賃及提供辦公室

設備及服務

樓宇管理及其

他服務

：提供樓宇管理、物業

維修及保養服務

城市基礎設施 ：城市基礎設施開發

本集團已於二零一三年出售從事「城市

基礎設施」分類之附屬公司，該分類被

視為已終止經營業務。

由於各業務線需要不同資源及經營方

針，故各業務分類分開管理。
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.20 Segment reporting (Continued)

The reporting segment results exclude finance costs, 
share of results of a joint venture, net gain on fair value 
adjustments on investment properties, income taxes and 
unallocated income and expenses which are not directly 
attributable to the business activities of any operating 
segment, are not included in arriving at the operating 
results of the operating segment.

T h e  r e v e n u e  o f  o t h e r s  s e g m e n t  r e p r e s e n t s  t h e 
management and service fee income received from fellow 
subsidiaries.

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, 
inventories, loans and receivables and operating cash 
and mainly exclude available-for-sale financial assets, 
interest in a joint venture and deferred tax assets which 
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any 
operating segment.

Segment l iabi l i t ies comprise operating l iabi l i t ies and 
exc lude corporate l iab i l i t ies which are not d i rect ly 
attributable to the business activities of any operating 
segment and are not allocated to a segment. Corporate 
liabilities include provision for income tax, deferred tax 
liabilities and corporate borrowings.

4.21 Discontinued operation
A discontinued operation is a clearly dist inguishable 
component of the Group’s bus iness that has been 
disposed of or is c lass i f ied as held for sa le, which 
r ep resen t s  a  sepa ra t e  ma jo r  l i n e  o f  bus i ness  o r 
geographical area of operation of the Group. Classification 
as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal. It 
also occurs when the operation is abandoned. Where an 
operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is 
presented on the face of statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, which comprises the post-
tax profit or loss for the discontinued operation.

4. 主要會計政策概要（續）
4.20 分類呈報（續）
報告分類計算經營分類之可呈報分類業

績時，不包括融資成本、應佔一家合營

企業業績、投資物業公平值調整之收益

淨額、所得稅，以及並非任何營運分類

直接應佔之業務活動之未分類收入及費

用。

其他分類之收益指自同系附屬公司收取

之管理及服務費收入。

分類資產包括物業、廠房及設備、存

貨、貸款及應收款項，以及經營現金，

並主要不包括未能直接分類之任何營運

業務活動，如可供出售財務資產、於一

家合營企業之權益及遞延稅項資產。

分類負債包括經營負債，並不包括任何

未能直接分類之經營業務活動之企業負

債。企業負債包括所得稅撥備、遞延稅

項負債及企業借貸。

4.21 已終止經營業務
已終止經營業務乃本集團業務中清晰可

辨已出售或列作持作出售之組成部分，

代表本集團業務或經營地區中之獨立主

要業務線。分類為已終止經營業務於出

售後發生。當業務被放棄經營時亦發

生。當業務歸類為已終止經營，單一金

額呈列入損益及其他全面收入表，其中

包括已終止經營業務之除稅後溢利或虧

損。
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experiences and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the 
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(i) Estimated fair value of investment properties and 

leasehold buildings
As at the reporting date, the Group’s investment 
propert ies and leasehold bui ldings are stated at 
fa i r  va lue based on the va luat ion per formed by 
an independent qual i f ied professional valuer. In 
determining the fair value, the valuers have based their 
valuation on existing use and the redevelopment basis 
which involves certain estimates, including comparable 
market transactions, appropriate capitalisation rates 
and reversionary income potential and redevelopment 
potential. In relying on the valuation, management has 
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the 
methods of valuation are appropriate and reflective of 
the current market conditions.

(ii) N e t  r e a l i s a b l e  v a l u e  o f  p r o p e r t i e s  u n d e r 
development
Management determines the net realisable value of 
properties under development by using prevail ing 
market data such as most recent sale transactions and 
market valuation reports available from independent 
qualified professional valuers. Such valuations are 
made based on certa in assumptions, which are 
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ 
from the actual result. In making the judgement, 
reasonable considerat ion has been given to the 
underlying assumptions that are mainly based on 
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These 
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data 
and actual transactions in the market.

5. 主要會計估計及判斷
本集團會不斷基於過往經驗及其他因素檢討

估計及判斷，有關因素包括在相關情況下應

為合理之未來事件。

本集團對未來作出估計及假設。會計估計如

其定義，甚少與實際結果相符。有重大風險

可能會導致下個財政年度對資產及負債賬面

值作出重大調整之估計及假設在下文討論。

(a) 應用會計政策時之主要判斷
(i) 投資物業及租賃樓宇之估計公平值

於報告日期，本集團之投資物業及

租賃樓宇按獨立合資格專業估值師

進行之估值以公平值列賬。於釐定

公平值時，估值師已以現有用途及

重建基準進行估值，當中涉及以包

括可比較市場交易、適當資本化比

率以及潛在複歸收入及重建潛力之

若干估計為基準。於依賴進行估值

時，管理層已運用其判斷，並信納

估值方法屬適當並反映現時市況。

(ii) 發展中物業之可變現淨值

管理層採用最新銷售交易及獨立合

資格專業估值師提供之市場估值報

告等現行市場數據，釐定發展中

物業之可變現淨值。有關估值乃

按若干受不確定因素所限之假設而

進行，並可能與實際結果有重大差

異。於作出判斷時，管理層已合理

考慮對主要按於報告日期出現之市

況而作出之相關假設。此等假設定

期與實際市場數據及市場上之實際

交易作比較。
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5. C R I T I C A L  A C C O U N T I N G  E S T I M A T E S  A N D J U D G E M E N T S 
(Continued)
(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of trade and other receivables
The Group’s management determines the provision for 
impairment of trade and other receivables on a regular 
basis. This estimate is based on the credit history of its 
customers, the aging of the receivables and prevailing 
market conditions. The management reassesses the 
provision for impairment of trade and other receivables 
at each reporting date.

(iv) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong 
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in 
determining the amount of the provision for income 
taxes and the timing of payment of related taxes. 
There could have transactions and calculations for 
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain in the 
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises 
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates 
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the 
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences 
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions 
in the period in which such determination is made.

(v) Control through contractual arrangement
As explained in note 21, the Group holds less than the 
majority of the voting rights in Eagle Fund I.L.P. (the 
“Fund”), an exempted limited partnership established 
in Cayman Islands. However, the Group’s management 
consider that the Group has effective control over 
the Fund due to the fact that (1) the activities of the 
Fund are governed by the investment committee (the 
“Investment Committee”) and majority members of 
the Investment Committee are representatives of the 
Group. The members of the Investment Committee 
are appointed and may be removed by the general 
partner (the “General Partner”) of the Fund which is 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group; and (2) the 
Group obtains significant benefits as it is entitled to 
a share of the net realised profits from the Fund as a 
limited partner and a general partner. The Group will 
also earn project management fees and management 
fees for the services provided to the Fund. The Group 
has determined that it has control and signif icant 
benefits derived from the Fund and accordingly has 
consolidated the Fund as a subsidiary with a 53% non-
controlling interest.

5. 主要會計估計及判斷（續）

(a) 應用會計政策時之主要判斷（續）
(iii) 貿易及其他應收款項減值
本集團管理層定期為貿易及其他應
收款項計算減值撥備。有關估計乃
基於客戶之信貸紀錄、應收款項之
賬齡及當時市況。管理層於各報告
日期重新評估貿易及其他應收款項
之減值撥備。

(iv) 所得稅
本集團須在香港及中國繳納所得
稅。在釐定所得稅撥備金額及支付
相關稅項之時間時需要作出重大判
斷。一般業務過程中可能有所涉及
之最終稅項釐定並不確定之交易及
計算。本集團根據對是否需要繳納
額外稅款之估計，就預期稅項事宜
確認負債。倘此等事宜之最終稅項
結果與初次記錄之金額有所不同，
該等差額將影響作出此等釐定期間
之所得稅及遞延稅撥備。

(v) 透過合約安排控制
如附註21所述，本集團持有少於於
開曼群島成立之獲豁免有限公司合
伙人Eagle Fund I.L.P.（「基金」）之
大多數投票權。然而，本集團之管
理層認為，本集團由於下列事實擁
有基金實際控制權： (1)基金之業務
由投資委員會（「投資委員會」）規管
及投資委員會大部分成員為本集團
代表。投資委員會成員由基金之一
般合伙人（「一般合伙人」）（本集團
全資附屬公司）委任及撤免；及 (2)
本集團獲得重大利益，由於有權分
佔基金作為有限公司合伙人及一般
合伙人之變現凈溢利。本集團亦將
賺取項目管理費及為基金提供服務
之管理費。本集團已釐定對基金擁
有控制權及擁有來自基金之重大利
益，因此，並綜合基金為本集團擁
有53%非控制權益之附屬公司。
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5. C R I T I C A L  A C C O U N T I N G  E S T I M A T E S  A N D J U D G E M E N T S 
(Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these 
financial statements, other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within next financial year are as follows:

Fair value measurement
The investment properties and leasehold buildings included 
in the Group’s financial statements require measurement 
at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s non-financial 
assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs and 
data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair 
value measurements are categorised into different levels 
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation 
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

• Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical 
items (unadjusted);

• Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than 
Level 1 inputs;

• Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from 
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based 
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant 
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers 
of items between levels are recognised in the period they 
occur. The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

• Investment properties (note 18);

• Leasehold buildings (note 19); and

• Deferred and contingent consideration (note 27)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value 
measurement of the items above, please refer to the 
applicable notes.

5. 主要會計估計及判斷（續）

(b) 估計不確定因素之主要來源
除於該等財務報表其他部分披露之資料

外，估計不確定因素之其他主要來源

（具有導致下個財政年度之資產及負債

賬面值作出重大調整之重大風險）如下：

公平值計量
計入本集團財務報表之投資物業及租賃

樓宇須按公平值計量及╱或披露。

本集團之非財務資產及負債之公平值計

量乃於可行範圍內盡量使用市場可觀察

資料輸入及數據。於釐定公平值計量時

使用之數據輸入，乃根據所運用之估值

技術中使用的數據輸入之可觀察程度而

分類為不同層次（「公平值層級」）：

• 第1級：相同項目於活躍市場的報
價（未作調整）；

• 第2級：直接或間接可觀察之數據
輸入（不包括第1級數據輸入）；

• 第3級：不可觀察之數據輸入（即並
非源自市場數據）。

項目所歸入之上述層級乃基於對該項目

之公平值計量具有重大影響之最低層級

數據輸入值。項目在層級之間之轉移於

發生期間確認。本集團按公平值計量若

干項目：

• 投資物業（附註18）；

• 租賃樓宇（附註19）；及

• 遞延及或然代價（附註27）

有關上述項目公平值計量之更多詳情，

請參閱適用附註。
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6. TURNOVER AND OTHER INCOME
Turnover of the Group is the revenue from its principal activities. 
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other income is as 
follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
持續經營業務 已終止經營業務 總計
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

        

Property development 物業發展
– Sales of properties under 

development
－發展中物業銷售

2,466,099 199,071 – – 2,466,099 199,071

Property leasing 物業租賃
– Rental and signage rental 

income
－租金及廣告位 
租賃收入 457,225 386,888 – – 457,225 386,888

Building management and 
other services

樓宇管理及其他服務

– Property repairs and 
maintenance service 
income

－物業維修及 
保養服務收入

6,782 7,904 – – 6,782 7,904
– Building management 

service income
－樓宇管理服務 
收入 7,139 6,644 – – 7,139 6,644

Urban infrastructure 城市基礎設施
– Urban infrastructure 

construction works
－城市基礎設施 
建築工程營業額 – – – 9,878 – 9,878

        

2,937,245 600,507 – 9,878 2,937,245 610,385
        

Bank interest income 銀行利息收入 12,538 3,718 – 495 12,538 4,213
Commission income 佣金收入 – 655 – – – 655
Reversal of provision for vacant 

land tax
撥回土地閒置稅撥備

– 8,861 – – – 8,861
Miscellaneous income 雜項收入 21,359 14,112 – 943 21,359 15,055

        

33,897 27,346 – 1,438 33,897 28,784
        

Total revenue and other 
income

收益及其他收入總額
2,971,142 627,853 – 11,316 2,971,142 639,169

        

6. 營業額及其他收入
本公司之營業額為來自其主要業務之收益。

本集團之營業額及其他收入分析如下：
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The executive directors have identi f ied the Group’s f ive 
business lines as operating segments as further described in 
note 4.20.

These operat ing segments are monitored and strategic 
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating 
results.

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
持續經營業務 已終止經營業務

Property assembly 
business Property development Property leasing

Building management and 
other services Others Total Urban infrastructure Total

物業合併業務 物業發展 物業租賃 樓宇管理及其他服務 其他 總計 城市基礎設施 總計
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

                  

Turnover 營業額

External customers 外來客戶 – – 2,466,099 199,071 457,225 386,888 13,921 14,548 – – 2,937,245 600,507 – 9,878 2,937,245 610,385
Inter-segments 各分類間 – – 591,843 592,933 60,914 94,661 3,224 3,365 53,436 109,396 709,417 800,355 – – 709,417 800,355

                  

Reportable segment turnover 可呈報分類營業額 – – 3,057,942 792,004 518,139 481,549 17,145 17,913 53,436 109,396 3,646,662 1,400,862 – 9,878 3,646,662 1,410,740
                  

Reportable segment  
profit/(loss)

可呈報分類溢利╱ 
（虧損） – – 901,295 (89,371) 339,886 298,929 4,599 8,979 15,382 14,768 1,261,162 233,305 – (52,362) 1,261,162 180,943

                  

Bank interest income 銀行利息收入 – – 7,412 2,875 1,051 50 1 1 4,074 792 12,538 3,718 – 495 12,538 4,213
Reversal of provision for vacant  

land tax
撥回土地閒置稅 
撥備 – – – 8,861 – – – – – – – 8,861 – – – 8,861

Depreciation 折舊 – – (340) (1,028) (3,816) (5,063) (6) (6) (1,065) (1,036) (5,227) (7,133) – (280) (5,227) (7,413)
Amortisation of intangible assets 無形資產攤銷 – – – – – – – – – – – – – (405) – (405)
Amortisation of properties held  

for development
待發展物業攤銷

– – (709) (1,311) – – – – – – (709) (1,311) – – (709) (1,311)
Provision for obsolete inventories 過期存貨撥備 – – – – – – – – – – – – – (18,106) – (18,106)
Provision for impairment on 

deferred and contingent 
consideration (note 10)

遞延及或然代價減值 
撥備（附註10）

– – – – – – – – (40,879) – (40,879) – – – (40,879) –
Provision for impairment loss  

on trade receivables
貿易應收款項減值 
虧損撥備 – – – (16,788) – – – (40) – – – (16,828) – (21,677) – (38,505)

Provision for impairment loss 
on other receivables

其他應收款項減值虧損 
撥備 – – – – – – – – – – – – – (91) – (91)

                  

Reportable segment assets 可呈報分類資產 – – 2,360,798 3,849,861 16,905,739 16,662,036 15,088 10,854 692,902 258,032 19,974,527 20,780,783 – – 19,974,527 20,780,783
Additions to non-current  

segment assets during  
the year

年內增添非流動 
分類資產

– – 205 1,733 145,978 1,942,636 – – 1,017 1,671 147,200 1,946,040 – 297 147,200 1,946,337
                  

Reportable segment liabilities 可呈報分類負債 – – (679,045) (1,568,567) (204,768) (138,333) (9,171) (7,714) (43,792) (22,047) (936,776) (1,736,661) – – (936,776) (1,736,661)
                  

7. 分類資料
執行董事已識別本集團業務分類有五項業務

線，誠如附註4.20進一步詳述。

此等業務分類之監控及決策之作出乃基於經

調整之分類經營業績。
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments 
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in 
the financial statements as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Reportable segment turnover – continuing 
operations

可呈報分類營業額－持續 
經營業務 3,646,662 1,400,862

Reportable segment turnover – discontinued 
operation

可呈報分類營業額－已終止 
經營業務 – 9,878

Elimination of inter-segment turnover 分類間營業額撇銷 (709,417) (800,355)
    

Turnover 營業額 2,937,245 610,385
     

Reportable segment profits – continuing 
operations

可呈報分類溢利－持續 
經營業務 1,261,162 233,305

Reportable segment losses – discontinued 
operation

可呈報分類虧損－已終止 
經營業務 – (52,362)

Net gain on fair value adjustments on 
investment properties

投資物業公平值調整之 
增值淨值 638,801 1,276,502

Unallocated income and expenses 未分類之收入及開支 (46,586) (49,818)
Finance costs 融資成本 (52,266) (51,335)
Share of results of a joint venture 應佔一家合營企業業績 (51) (7)

     

Profit before income tax 除所得稅前溢利 1,801,060 1,356,285
     

Reportable segment assets 可呈報分類資產 19,974,527 20,780,783
Interest in a joint venture 一家合營企業權益 29,211 29,158
Available-for-sale financial assets 可供出售財務資產 10 10
Deferred tax assets 遞延稅項資產 – 12,993

    

Group assets 本集團資產 20,003,748 20,822,944
    

Reportable segment liabilities 可呈報分類負債 936,776 1,736,661
Borrowings 借貸 2,221,931 3,955,820
Provision for income tax 所得稅撥備 111,372 30,651
Deferred tax liabilities 遞延稅項負債 70,942 62,820

    

Group liabilities 本集團負債 3,341,021 5,785,952
    

7. 分類資料（續）
所呈報本集團經營分類之總額與財務報表所

呈列本集團主要財務數字之對賬如下：
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s turnover from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than available-for-sale financial assets) are 
divided into the following geographical areas:

Turnover from 
external customers Non-current assets

外來客戶營業額 非流動資產
2014 2013 2014 2013

二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

      

Principal markets 主要市場

Continuing operations 持續經營業務

– Hong Kong (domicile) －香港（註冊地） 2,857,189 401,436 15,932,340 16,697,791
– PRC －中國 80,056 199,071 80,773 45,900

      

2,937,245 600,507 16,013,113 16,743,691
      

Discontinued operation 已終止經營業務

– PRC －中國 – 9,878 – –
      

2,937,245 610,385 16,013,113 16,743,691
      

The geographical location of customers is based on the location 
at which the goods/services were delivered/rendered. The 
geographical location of non-current assets is based on the 
physical location of the assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not 
depend on any single customer under each of the segment. For 
the year ended 31 December 2013, there were two customers 
from the Group’s property leasing segment, each of whom 
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue. Revenue 
derived from these two customers during 2013 amounted 
to approx imate ly HK$94,600,000 and HK$84,700,000 
individually.

7. 分類資料（續）
本集團之外來客戶營業額及其非流動資產

（可供出售財務資產除外）分佈以下地區︰

客戶之所屬地區乃基於提供貨物及服務之地

點釐定。非流動資產之地區分類乃基於資產

之實際所在地。

截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度，本

集團各業務分部並無存在對任何單一客戶倚

賴的情況。截至二零一三年十二月三十一

日止年度，本集團物業租賃分類下兩名客

戶，各自對於本集團之收益作出10%或以
上之貢獻。二零一三年從該兩名客戶賺取

之收益個別約為港幣94,600,000元及港幣
84,700,000元。
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8. FINANCE COSTS

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Continuing operations 持續經營業務

Interest charges on: 以下各項之利息開支：

Bank loans 銀行貸款

– wholly repayable within five years －須於五年內悉數償還 52,852 66,400
– not wholly repayable within five years －毋須於五年內悉數償還 7,422 8,080

Other borrowings – wholly repayable  
within five years

須於五年內悉數償還之其他 
借貸 1,528 –

    

Total borrowing costs 總借貸成本 61,802 74,480
Less: Interest capitalised in investment 

properties and properties under 
development (notes 18 and 26)

減：投資物業及發展中物業之
利息資本化（附註18及
26） (9,536) (23,145)

    

52,266 51,335
    

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank loans, including 
term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in 
accordance with agreed scheduled repayment dates set out 
in the loan agreements. For the years ended 31 December 
2014 and 2013, the interest on bank loans which contain a 
repayment on demand clause amounted to HK$60,274,000 
and HK$73,938,000 respectively.

8. 融資成本

以上分析列出根據貸款協議所載預定償還

日期之銀行貸款（包括按要求償還條款之有

期貸款）融資成本。截至二零一四年及二

零一三年十二月三十一日止年度，含有按

要求償還條款之銀行貸款利息分別為港幣

60,274,000元及港幣73,938,000元。
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9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
持續經營業務 已終止經營業務
2014 2013 2014 2013

二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

      

Amortisation of intangible assets* 無形資產攤銷* – – – 405
Amortisation of properties held for 

development (note 20)
待發展物業攤銷（附註20）

709 1,311 – –
Auditor’s remuneration 核數師酬金 3,757 3,228 – 113
Bad debts written off * 壞賬撇銷* 70 92 – –
Cost of inventories recognised  

as expenses
存貨成本確認為開支

– – – 6,765
Cost of properties under development 

recognised as expenses
確認為開支之發展中 
物業成本 1,553,153 127,969 – –

Deposit for property acquisition  
written off *

物業收購訂金撇銷*
20 – – –

Depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment (note 19)

物業、廠房及設備折舊 
（附註19） 5,227 7,133 – 280

Employee benefit expenses (including 
directors’ remuneration and defined 
contribution cost) (note 12)

僱員福利開支（包括董事 
酬金及定額供款成本）
（附註12）

– share option expenses －購股權開支 5,989 19,079 – –
– other employee benefit expenses －其他僱員福利開支 159,038 142,640 – 9,128

      

165,027 161,719 – 9,128

Gain on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment

出售物業、廠房及設備 
之收益 (65) – – –

Loss on disposal of property,  
plant and equipment*

出售物業、廠房及設備 
之虧損* – 16 – –

Operating lease charges in respect  
of office premises

辦公室物業之經營租賃 
支出 1,910 3,534 – 796

Provision for impairment loss  
on trade receivables* (note 27)

貿易應收款項減值虧損 
撥備*（附註27） – 16,828 – 21,677

Provision for impairment loss on other 
receivables*

其他應收款項減值虧損撥備* 
– – – 91

Provision for impairment on deferred  
and contingent consideration  
(note 10)*

遞延及或然代價減值 
撥備（附註10）*

40,879 – – –
Provision for obsolete inventories (note 10)* 過期存貨撥備（附註10）* – – – 18,106
Property, plant and equipment written off 物業、廠房及設備撇銷 309 341 – –
Reversal of provision for vacant land tax 土地閒置稅撥回撥備 – (8,861) – –
Provision for impairment loss on  

intangible assets*
無形資產減值虧損撥備*

– – – 1,301
Gross rental income from investment 

properties
投資物業租金收入總額

(457,225) (386,888) – –
Less: Outgoings 減：支出 23,596 8,066 – –

      

(433,629) (378,822) – –
      

* included in other operating expenses

9. 除所得稅開支前溢利
除所得稅開支前溢利已扣除╱（計入）下列各
項：

* 已包括在其他經營費用內
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
In the previous financial year, on 15 October 2013, Rightful 
Task Limited (the “Vendor”), a subsidiary of the Company, 
Ko Bee Limited (the “Guarantor”) and Rally Elite Limited (the 
“Purchaser”), which was ultimately controlled by Madam Foo 
Kam Chu, Grace, the Chairman of the Company, entered into 
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”). Pursuant to 
the Agreement, Rightful Task Limited agreed to sell and Rally 
Elite Limited agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital 
of Oriental Classic Group Limited (“Oriental Classic”) at the 
aggregate consideration of HK$122,768,000 (the “Disposal 
of Oriental Classic”). Oriental Classic and its subsidiaries (the 
“Oriental Classic Group”) were engaged in urban infrastructure 
development business in the People’s Republic of China 
(the “PRC”). The consideration was satisfied by (i) cash of 
HK$60,600,000; and (ii) the balance of the consideration of 
HK$62,168,000 (the “Deferred and contingent consideration”) 
shall be payable by the Purchaser within a period of three 
years after completion of the Disposal of Oriental Classic up 
to the amounts of the trade receivables actually collected 
and received by the Oriental Classic Group. The Disposal of 
Oriental Classic was completed on 22 October 2013, details 
of which were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 
15 October 2013. The calculation of gain on the Disposal of 
Oriental Classic of HK$31,266,000 is set out in note 42(d).

At 31 December 2014, the directors assessed that the 
remaining unsettled Deferred and contingent consideration, 
amounting to HK$40,879,000 would not likely be collectible as 
it had been outstanding for over 12 months. Accordingly, all of 
this balance has been fully impaired in the current year.

10. 已終止經營業務
於上個財政年度之二零一三年十月十五日，

本公司之附屬公司Rightful Task Limited
（「賣方」）、Ko Bee Limited（「擔保人」）
及Rally Elite Limited（「買方」，由本公司
主席傅金珠女士最終控制）訂立買賣協議

（「該協議」）。根據該協議，Rightful Task 
Limited同意出售及 Rally Elite Limited同
意 購 買 Oriental Classic Group Limited
（「Oriental Classic」）全部已發行股本，代價
總額為港幣122,768,000元（「出售Oriental 
Classic」）。Oriental Classic及其附屬公司
（「Oriental Classic集團」）於中華人民共和國
（「中國」）從事城市基建開發業務。代價按

以下方式償付：(i)現金港幣60,600,000元；
及 (ii)代價餘額港幣62,168,000元（「遞延及
或然代價」）須由買方以後償方式支付，金

額等同Oriental Classic集團於出售Oriental 
Classic完成後的三年期內，已獲得及收取
的貿易應收款項。出售Oriental Classic已
於二零一三年十月二十二日完成，詳情載

於本公司於二零一三年十月十五日刊發之

公告內。出售Oriental Classic之收益港幣
31,266,000元之計算載於附註42(d)。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，董事評

估餘下尚未結算之遞延及或然代價港幣

40,879,000元可能將無法收回，原因是其
已拖欠超過12個月。因此，該筆結餘全部
已於本年度悉數減值。
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)
As the Or ienta l  C lass ic Group represented a separate 
component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash 
flows of which could be clearly distinguished from the rest of the 
Group and which represented a separate major line of business, 
the Group presented in its financial statements the operations 
of the Oriental Classic Group as discontinued operation in 
accordance with HKFRS 5. The results and cash flows included 
in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Period from 
1 January 2013 to 
22 October 2013

二零一三年一月一日至
二零一三年十月二十二日

期間
Notes HK$’000
附註 港幣千元

    

Revenue/Turnover 收益╱營業額 6 9,878
Cost of sales 銷售成本 (6,765)
Other income 其他收入 6 1,438
Other operating expenses 其他經營費用 (1,798)
Administrative expenses 行政費用 (15,332)
Provision for obsolete inventories 過期存貨撥備 9 (18,106)
Provision for impairment of trade 

receivables
貿易應收款項減值撥備

9 (21,677)
    

Loss before income tax 除所得稅前虧損 (52,362)
Income tax expense 所得稅開支 13 (537)

    

Loss for the period from discontinued 
operation

期內已終止經營業務虧損
(52,899)

Gain on the Disposal of Oriental Classic 出售Oriental Classic之收益 42(d) 31,266
    

(21,633)
    

Net cash generated from  
operating activities

經營業務所得現金淨額
25,651

Net cash generated from  
investing activities

投資活動所得現金淨額
198

    

Net cash inflows 現金流入淨額 25,849
    

10. 已終止經營業務（續）
由於Oriental Classic集團代表本集團業務之
獨立部份，其業務及現金流量可從本集團其

他部份清晰區分，並相當於一項獨立主要業

務系列，本集團按照香港財務報告準則第5
號於其財務報表呈報Oriental Classic集團之
業務為已終止經營業務。計入綜合財務報表

之業績及現金流量如下：
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were as 
follows:

Fee

Salaries, 
bonuses and 

allowances

Retirement 
benefits 
scheme 

contributions

Equity-settled 
share based 

payment 
expenses Total

袍金
薪金、花紅

及津貼
退休福利
計劃供款

以股權結算
以股份為基礎
之付款開支 總計

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

       

Year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年 
十二月三十一日止年度

Executive directors 執行董事
Ms. Foo Kam Chu, Grace 傅金珠女士 50 6,300 17 417 6,784
Ms. Chan Wai Ling 陳慧苓女士 50 16,000 17 2,330 18,397
Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny 鄺紹民先生 50 4,610 17 302 4,979

Independent non-executive 
directors

獨立非執行董事

Mr. Chan Kai Nang 陳啟能先生 150 – – – 150
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 浦炳榮先生 130 – – – 130
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 吳志強先生 130 – – – 130

       

560 26,910 51 3,049 30,570
       

Year ended 31 December 2013 截至二零一三年 
十二月三十一日止年度

Executive directors 執行董事
Ms. Foo Kam Chu, Grace 傅金珠女士 50 5,660 15 1,290 7,015
Ms. Chan Wai Ling 陳慧苓女士 50 11,227 15 7,420 18,712
Mr. Kong Siu Man, Kenny 鄺紹民先生 50 3,125 15 953 4,143
Mr. Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson* 劉金國先生* 20 580 6 – 606

Independent non-executive 
directors

獨立非執行董事

Mr. Chan Kai Nang 陳啟能先生 143 – – – 143
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 浦炳榮先生 123 – – – 123
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 吳志強先生 123 – – – 123

       

559 20,592 51 9,663 30,865
       

* resigned on 25 May 2013

11. 董事及高級管理層之酬金

(a) 董事酬金
已付或應付董事酬金如下：

* 於二零一三年五月二十五日辭任
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There were no arrangements under which a director waived 
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2013: 
Nil).

The value of share options granted to directors is measured 
according to the Group’s accounting policy for share-
based compensation set out in note 4.17(iii). The details 
of these benefits in kind including the principal terms and 
number of options granted are disclosed in note 36.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in 
the Group for the year included three (2013: three) directors 
of the Company, whose emoluments are reflected in the 
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the 
remaining two (2013: two) individual(s) during the year are 
as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Basic salaries, bonuses and other benefits 基本薪金、花紅及其他福利 16,730 11,897
Pension costs – defined contribution plan 退休金成本－定額供款計劃 34 30
Equity-settled share based payment 以股權結算以股份為基礎之

付款 2,642 8,398
    

19,406 20,325
    

11. 董事及高級管理層之酬金（續）

(a) 董事酬金（續）
年內概無任何安排令董事可據此豁免或

同意豁免任何薪酬（二零一三年：無）。

授予董事之購股權價值乃根據附註

4.17(iii)所載本集團有關以股份為基礎之
付款之會計政策計量。該等實物利益之

詳情（包括主要條款及已授出購股權數

目）於附註36中披露。

(b) 五位最高薪人士
本年度，本集團五位最高薪人士包括本

公司三名（二零一三年：三名）董事，彼

等之酬金反映於上述之分析。年內其餘

兩名（二零一三年：兩名）人士之酬金如

下：
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of the remain ing two (2013: two) 
individuals fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals
人數

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

HK$2,000,001 – HK$2,500,000 港幣2,000,001元－ 
港幣2,500,000元

1 –

HK$2,500,001 – HK$3,000,000 港幣2,500,001元－ 
港幣3,000,000元

– 1

HK$17,000,001 – HK$17,500,000 港幣17,000,001元－ 
港幣17,500,000元

1 –

HK$17,500,001 – HK$18,000,000 港幣17,500,001元－ 
港幣18,000,000元

– 1

    

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors 
or any of five highest paid individuals as an inducement 
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for 
loss of office and no director waived or agreed to waive 
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31 
December 2014 and 2013.

12. EMPLOYEE BENEF IT  EXPENSE ( INCLUDING D IRECTORS’ 
EMOLUMENTS)

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
持續經營業務 已終止經營業務 總計
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

        

Salaries and wages (including 
directors’ remuneration)

薪金及工資 
（包括董事酬金） 153,970 133,747 – 7,538 153,970 141,285

Equity-settled share based 
payment

以股權結算以股份 
為基礎之付款 5,989 19,079 – – 5,989 19,079

Pension costs – defined 
contribution plans

退休金成本一定額 
供款計劃 2,672 3,840 – 990 2,672 4,830

Staff welfare 員工福利 2,396 5,053 – 600 2,396 5,653
        

165,027 161,719 – 9,128 165,027 170,847
        

11. 董事及高級管理層之酬金（續）

(b) 五位最高薪人士（續）
其餘兩名（二零一三年：兩名）人士之酬

金分佈組別如下：

截至二零一四年及二零一三年十二月三十一

日止兩個年度，本集團概無向董事或五位最

高薪人士任何一位支付酬金，作為促使其加

入本集團及於加入本集團時之獎金或離職

之補償，且概無董事豁免或同意豁免任何酬

金。

12. 僱員福利開支（包括董事酬金）
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
持續經營業務 已終止經營業務 總計
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

        

Hong Kong profits tax 香港利得稅

Tax for the year (note (a)) 本年度稅項（附註(a)） 129,123 37,050 – – 129,123 37,050
Under-provision in prior years 過往年度撥備不足 328 2,038 – – 328 2,038

        

129,451 39,088 – – 129,451 39,088

PRC income tax – Tax for  
the year (note (b))

中國所得稅－本年度 
稅項（附註(b)） 6,619 17,280 – 537 6,619 17,817

Deferred tax charge/(credit)  
(note 33)

遞延稅項支出╱（抵免）

（附註33） 20,373 (7,532) – – 20,373 (7,532)
        

156,443 48,836 – 537 156,443 49,373
        

Notes:

(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 
on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2014, all of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 
were subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) rate of 25% (2013: 25%).

13. 所得稅開支

附註：

(a) 香港利得稅乃按本年度估計於香港產生之應課稅溢

利按稅率16.5%（二零一三年：16.5%）計算。

(b) 於截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度，本集團

在中國所有附屬公司按25%（二零一三年：25%）之

稅率繳納中國企業所得稅（「企業所得稅」）。
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting 
profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Profit/(Loss) before income tax 除所得稅前溢利╱（虧損）

– Continuing operations －持續經營業務 1,801,060 1,408,647
– Discontinued operation －已終止經營業務 – (52,362)

    

1,801,060 1,356,285

Tax at the applicable tax rates 按合適稅率計算之稅項 298,097 223,026
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 不獲扣減之費用之稅務影響 19,624 61,126
Tax effect of non-taxable income 毌須課稅之收入之稅務影響 (167,036) (232,045)
Tax effect of temporary differences not 

recognised
未確認暫時性差額之稅務影響

(3,154) (15,230)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 未確認稅項虧損之稅務影響 3,534 11,137
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  

tax losses
動用過往未確認之稅項虧損

(4,452) (679)
Write-down of deferred tax asset  

previously recognised*
撇減過往確認之遞延稅項資產*

9,502 –
Under-provision in prior years 過往年度撥備不足 328 2,038

    

Income tax expense 所得稅開支 156,443 49,373
    

* Tax losses recognised as deferred tax asset in prior year disallowed by the 
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department.

14. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Of the consol idated prof i t attr ibutable to owners of the 
Company of HK$1,625,160,000 (2013: HK$1,340,112,000), a 
profit of HK$2,522,610,000 (2013: loss of HK$16,203,000) has 
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

13. 所得稅開支（續）
所得稅開支及會計溢利按合適稅率計算之對

賬如下：

* 於過往年度確認為遞延稅項資產之稅項虧損不獲 

香港稅務局批准。

14. 本公司擁有人應佔溢利
在為數港幣 1,625,160,000元（二零一三
年： 港 幣 1,340,112,000 元 ）之 本 公 司
擁有人應佔綜合溢利當中，為數港幣

2,522,610,000元之溢利（二零一三年：港
幣16,203,000元之虧損）已於本公司之財務
報表中處理。
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15. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The amount of tax relat ing to each component of other 
comprehensive income can be summarised as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年  

Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
除稅前 稅項 除稅後 除稅前 稅項 除稅後

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

        

Items that will not be reclassified  
to profit or loss:

以下項目將不會重新 
分類到損益：

Surplus/(Deficit) on revaluation of 
leasehold buildings, net of  
deferred tax (notes 19 and 33)

租賃樓宇重估盈餘╱ 
（虧損），扣除遞延 
稅項後（附註19及33） 4,738 (782) 3,956 (48,932) 8,074 (40,858)

Items that may be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss:

以下項目其後可能重新 
分類到損益：

Exchange gain on translation of 
financial statements of foreign 
operations

換算海外業務財務報表 
之匯兌收益

358 – 358 12,766 – 12,766
Release of exchange reserve upon 

disposal of subsidiaries
於出售附屬公司後撥回 
之匯兌儲備 1,409 – 1,409 (18,840) – (18,840)

        

Other comprehensive income 其他全面收入 6,505 (782) 5,723 (55,006) 8,074 (46,932)
        

15. 其他全面收入
有關其他全面收入各部分之稅項金額概列如

下︰
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16. DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividend attributable to the year

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20  
(2013: HK$0.20) per share

建議末期股息每股港幣 
0.20元（二零一三年： 
港幣0.20元） 56,814 56,165

Proposed special dividend of HK$0.10  
(2013: Nil) per share

建議特別股息每股港幣 
0.10元（二零一三年：
無） 28,407 –

    

85,221 56,165
    

Final and special dividends of HK$0.20 (2013: HK$0.20) 
per share and HK$0.10 (2013: Nil) per share respectively 
for the year to shareholders whose names appear on the 
register of members on 12 June 2015 (the “Record Date”) 
was proposed by the Directors on 18 March 2015.

The final and special dividends proposed after the reporting 
date has not been recognised as a liability at the reporting 
date.

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved 
and paid during the year

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Final dividend in respect of the previous 
financial year, of HK$0.20  
(2013: HK$0.20) per share

過往財政年度每股港幣 
0.20元（二零一三年： 
港幣0.20元）之末期股息 56,205 56,165

    

16. 股息
(a) 本年度之股息

董事於二零一五年三月十八日建議向於二零

一五年六月十二日（「記錄日期」）名列股東

名冊之股東派付本年度末期及特別股息分別

為每股港幣0.20元（二零一三年：港幣0.20
元）及每股港幣0.10元（二零一三年：無）。

於報告日期後建議之末期及特別股息並無於

報告日期確認為負債。

(b) 過往財政年度之股息，於年內獲
批准及支付
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE
From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for profit 
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the 
owners of the Company is based on the following data:
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Earnings 溢利

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 本公司擁有人應佔溢利 1,625,160 1,340,112
    

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

    

Number of shares 股份數目

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

計算每股基本溢利使用之 
普通股加權平均數 281,479,037 280,812,464

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in 
respect of employee share options

僱員購股權涉及之潛在攤 
薄普通股之影響 603,510 3,013,192

    

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share

計算每股攤薄溢利使用之普通

股加權平均數 282,082,547 283,825,656
    

17. 每股溢利
來自持續及已終止經營業務
本公司擁有人應佔來自持續及已終止經營業

務溢利之每股基本及攤薄溢利乃根據以下數

據計算：

本集團
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
From continuing operations
The calculat ion of basic and di luted earnings per share 
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the 
Company is based on the following data:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Profit for the year attributable to owners  
of the Company

本公司擁有人應佔年內溢利
1,625,160 1,340,112

Add back: Loss for the period from  
discontinued operation

加：期內已終止經營業務虧損
– 13,006

    

Profit for the year attributable to the owners  
of the Company for the purpose of basic  
and diluted earnings per share from 
continuing operations computation

就計算持續經營業務之每股基
本及攤薄溢利本公司擁有人
應佔年內溢利

1,625,160 1,353,118
    

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above 
for both basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing 
and discontinued operations.

From discontinued operation
The basic and di luted loss per share from discontinued 
operat ion attr ibutable to the owners of the Company is 
calculated based on the following data:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Loss for the period from discontinued  
operation (note 10)

期內已終止經營業務虧損 
（附註10） – (21,633)

Less: Loss for the period from discontinued 
operation attributable to  
non-controlling interests

減：非控制權益應佔期內已 
終止經營業務虧損

– 8,627
    

Loss for the period attributable to  
the owners of the Company for  
the purpose of basic and diluted  
loss per share from discontinued  
operation computation

就計算已終止經營業務之 
每股基本及攤薄虧損 
本公司擁有人應佔期內虧損

– (13,006)
    

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above 
for both basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing 
and discontinued operations.

17. 每股溢利（續）
來自持續經營業務
本公司擁有人應佔來自持續經營業務之每股
基本及攤薄溢利乃根據以下數據計算：

所採用之分母與上文詳述之計算持續經營及
已終止經營業務每股基本及攤薄溢利時所採
用者一致。

來自已終止經營業務
本公司擁有人應佔來自已終止經營業務之每
股基本及攤薄虧損乃根據以下數據計算：

所採用之分母與上文詳述之計算持續經營及

已終止經營業務每股基本及攤薄溢利時所採

用者一致。
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Changes to the carrying amount presented in the consolidated 
statement of financial position can be summarised as follows:
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Carrying amount at 1 January 於一月一日之賬面值 16,464,234 13,275,215
Additions 增添 145,978 1,941,577
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42(a)) 出售一間附屬公司（附註42(a)） (860,000) –
Transfer to property, plant and equipment 

(note 19)
轉撥至物業、廠房及設備 
（附註19） – (75,800)

Transfer (to)/from properties under 
development (note 26)

轉撥（至）╱自發展中物業 
（附註26） (667,952) 26,893

Net gain on fair value adjustments 公平值調整之增值淨值 638,801 1,276,502
Interest capitalised in investment properties 

under construction (note 8)
於在建投資物業資本化之利息

（附註8） 9,280 19,847
Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 (115) –

    

Carrying amount at 31 December 於十二月三十一日之賬面值 15,730,226 16,464,234
    

The Group’s investment propert ies were revalued at 31 
December 2014 by an independent professionally qualified 
valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, on the following 
basis:

• Certain investment properties under construction were 
revalued on re-development basis by adopting the residual 
site method. The residual site method is determined by 
deducting the estimated total cost of the development 
including costs of construction, professional fee, finance 
cost, associated costs and an allowance for developer’s 
risk and profit from the gross development value; and

18. 投資物業
綜合財務狀況表內所呈列之賬面值變動概述

如下：

本集團

本集團之投資物業由獨立專業合資格估值

師戴德梁行有限公司於二零一四年十二月

三十一日按下列基準進行估值：

• 若干發展中投資物業透過採納剩餘地盤
法，按重建基準重新估值。剩餘地盤法

乃經自該項發展之發展價值總額扣除估

計發展總成本（包括建築成本、專業費

用、融資成本、相關成本及一項就發展

商之風險及溢利作出之撥備）釐定；及
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
• The remaining investment properties are revalued based 

on the market value on an exist ing use basis which 
involves certain estimates, including comparable market 
transactions, where appropriate capitalisation rates and 
reversionary income potential.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised 
their judgement and are satisfied that the methods of valuation 
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market 
conditions.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties is a level 
3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the 
opening and closing fair value balance is provided in above 
table. Change in unrealised gains or losses for the year included 
in profit or loss for investment properties held at the end of the 
year was HK$638,801,000 (2013: HK$1,276,502,000).

The Group’s interests in investment properties are situated 
in Hong Kong and the PRC and their carrying amounts are 
analysed as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Held on leases over 50 years 租期為50年以上 15,532,915 16,220,965
Held on leases from 10 to 50 years 租期為10至50年 197,311 243,269

    

15,730,226 16,464,234
    

18. 投資物業（續）
• 其餘投資物業按現有用途之市值重估，
當中涉及包括可比較市場交易、適當

資本化比率以及潛在複歸收入之若干估

計。

於依賴此等估值時，管理層已運用其判斷，

並信納所採納之估值方法屬適當並反映現時

市況。

本集團投資物業之公平值為第3級經常性公
平值計量。年初及年末公平值結餘之對賬

載於上表。於本年度末持有之投資物業計

入損益之本年度未變現收益或虧損之變動

為港幣638,801,000元（二零一三年：港幣
1,276,502,000元）。

本集團之投資物業權益位於香港及中國，而

其賬面值分析如下：
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, certain investment properties of the 
Group with total carrying amount of HK$12,219,870,000 (2013: 
HK$15,341,990,000) were pledged to secure certain bank 
loans of HK$2,197,920,000 (2013: HK$3,863,568,000) (note 
32).

All of the Group’s investment properties for earning rental 
income or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using 
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as 
investment properties.

The following table gives information about how the fair values 
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the 
valuation techniques and inputs used).

Investment properties 
held by the Group in 
the consolidated statement 
of financial position

Fair value as at 
31 December 2014 Valuation technique(s)

Significant 
unobservable input(s)

Range of significant 
unobservable inputs

Interrelationship between 
key unobservable input(s) 
and fair value measurement

本集團於綜合財務狀況表 
所持有之投資物業

於二零一四年
十二月三十一日之公平值

估值技術 主要不可觀察之數據 主要不可觀察數據之範圍 重要不可觀察數據與公平值 
計量之亙相關係

HK$’000
港幣千元

      
  
Completed investment properties 

(whole block of commercial 
building)

13,122,000 
(2013: 12,736,000)

Income capitalisation approach Reversionary rental value HK$25 – HK$49 (2013: HK$25 – 
HK$51) per month per square 
foot for upper-level office/
restaurants premises

The higher the rental value, the 
higher the fair value

已竣工之投資物業（商業大廈全幢） 13,122,000
（二零一三年：
12,736,000）

收入資本化法 複歸租賃值 高層辦公室╱餐廳場所之每平方呎
之每月港幣25元至港幣49元（二零
一三年：港幣25元至港幣51元）

租值越高，公平值越高

HK$104 – HK$2,220 (2013:  
HK$132 – HK$2,250 per month 
per square foot for ground floor 
shops

 地鋪之每平方呎之每月港幣104元至
港幣2,220元（二零一三年：港幣
132元至港幣2,250元）

Adjusted term/reversionary yield 3% – 4.25%(2013: 3.0% – 4.5%) The higher the adjusted term and 
reversionary yield, the lower the 
fair value

經調整年期╱複歸回報率 3% 至4.25% (二零一三年：3.0%至
4.5%)

經調整年期及複歸回報率越高，公
平值越低

18. 投資物業（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本集團已

將賬面總值為港幣12,219,870,000元（二零
一三年：港幣15,341,990,000元）之若干投
資物業抵押以獲取為數港幣2,197,920,000
元（二零一三年：港幣$3,863,568,000元）
之若干銀行貸款（附註32）。

本集團所有為賺取租金收入或作資本增值用

途之投資物業皆以公平值模式計量，並分類

以及計入投資物業。

下表載列有關如何釐定該等投資物業之公平

值（特別是所使用的估值技術及數據）之資

料。
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Investment properties 
held by the Group in 
the consolidated statement 
of financial position

Fair value as at 
31 December 2014 Valuation technique(s)

Significant 
unobservable input(s)

Range of significant 
unobservable inputs

Interrelationship between 
key unobservable input(s) 
and fair value measurement

本集團於綜合財務狀況表 
所持有之投資物業

於二零一四年
十二月三十一日之公平值

估值技術 主要不可觀察之數據 主要不可觀察數據之範圍 重要不可觀察數據與公平值 
計量之亙相關係

HK$’000
港幣千元

      
  
Investment properties under 

construction
1,061,000
(2013: 2,213,416)

Residual method Price per square foot HK$6,540 (2013: HK$4,000) 
per square foot for industrial 
premises;

HK$13,600 – HK$20,000 (2013: 
HK$11,000 – HK$19,000) 
per square foot for residential 
premises;

HK$17,000 – HK$60,000 (2013: 
HK$22,000 – HK$60,000) per 
square foot for shops

The higher the price per square foot, 
the higher the fair value

在建投資物業 1,061,000
（二零一三年：2,213,416）

剩餘法 每平方呎價格 工廈物業每平方呎港幣6,540元 
(二零一三年：港幣4,000元）；

住宅物業每平方呎港幣13,600元至
港幣20,000元（二零一三年：港幣
11,000元至港幣19,000元）；

商鋪每平方呎港幣17,000元至港幣
60,000元（二零一三年：22,000元
至港幣60,000元）

每平方呎價格越高，公平值越高

Estimated construction and other 
professional costs to completion

HK$2,910 – HK$5,410 (2013: 
HK$1,500 – HK$6,300) per 
square foot

The higher the estimated 
construction and professional 
costs, the lower the fair value

預計完成所需建築及其他專業費用 每平方呎港幣2,910元至港幣5,410
元（二零一三年：港幣1,500元至
港幣6,300元）

預計建築及專業成本越高，公平值
越低

Estimated profit margin required to 
hold and develop the investment 
properties to completion

10 – 15% (2013: 10%-20%) The higher estimated profit margin, 
the lower the fair value

保持及發展投資物業至完成所需 
估計利潤率

10至15%（二零一三年：10%至20%）估計利潤率越高，公平值越低

Completed investment properties 
(Individual units or ground floor 
shops)

1,547,226 
(2013: 1,514,818)

Direct comparison Quality of properties (e.g. location, 
size, level and condition of the 
properties)

+/- 20% (2013: +/-20%) The higher the quality of properties 
with reference to comparables, 
the higher the fair value

已落成投資物業（個別單位或地鋪） 1,547,226
（二零一三年：1,514,818）

直接比較 物業質量（如位置、大小、層數及 
物業狀況）

+/- 20%（二零一三年：+/-20%） 參照可比較物業之質量越高，公平
值越高

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. 投資物業（續）
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the 
year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment 
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from 
their actual use.

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Leasehold 
lands

Leasehold 
buildings

Leasehold 
improvements

Furniture, 
fixtures and 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles Total

租賃土地 租賃樓宇
租賃物業

裝修
傢俬、裝置

及設備 汽車 總額
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

        

Year ended 31 December 2013 截至二零一三年 
十二月三十一日止年度

Opening net carrying amount 年初賬面淨值 64,479 93,800 2,372 4,901 3,760 169,312
Additions 增添 – – 985 2,071 591 3,647
Deficit on revaluation 重估虧損 – (48,932) – – – (48,932)
Transfer from investment  

properties (note 18)
轉撥自投資物業 
（附註 18） 63,252 12,548 – – – 75,800

Disposal 出售 – – – (4) (31) (35)
Write-off 撇銷 – – (246) (95) – (341)
Depreciation 折舊 (1,473) (2,127) (1,345) (1,652) (816) (7,413)
Disposal of subsidiaries 

(note 42(d))
出售附屬公司 
（附註 42(d)） – – – (284) (1,050) (1,334)

Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 – – 6 33 66 105
        

Closing net carrying amount 年終賬面淨值 126,258 55,289 1,772 4,970 2,520 190,809
        

At 31 December 2013 於二零一三年 
十二月三十一日

Cost/Valuation 成本╱估值 128,039 55,289 14,120 11,829 4,588 213,865
Accumulated depreciation 累計折舊 (1,781) – (12,348) (6,859) (2,068) (23,056)

        

Net carrying amount 賬面淨值 126,258 55,289 1,772 4,970 2,520 190,809
        

Analysis of cost/valuation 成本╱估值分析
At cost 按成本 128,039 – 14,120 11,829 4,588 158,576
At professional valuation 按專業估值 – 55,289 – – – 55,289

        

128,039 55,289 14,120 11,829 4,588 213,865
        

18. 投資物業（續）
年內估值技術並無變動。

公平值計量乃按上述投資物業之最高及最佳

用途，與其實際用途並無差異。

19. 物業、廠房及設備
本集團
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Group (Continued)

Leasehold 
lands

Leasehold 
buildings

Leasehold 
improvements

Furniture, 
fixtures and 

equipment
Motor 

vehicles Total

租賃土地 租賃樓宇
租賃物業

裝修
傢俬、裝置

及設備 汽車 總額
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

        

Year ended 31 December 2014 截至二零一四年 
十二月三十一日止年度

Opening net carrying amount 年初賬面淨值 126,258 55,289 1,772 4,970 2,520 190,809
Additions 增添 – – – 1,222 – 1,222
Surplus on revaluation 重估盈餘 – 4,738 – – – 4,738
Disposal 出售 – – – (4) (273) (277)
Write-off 撇銷 – – (138) (16) (155) (309)
Depreciation 折舊 (1,338) (1,106) (1,046) (1,386) (351) (5,227)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42(b)) 出售一家附屬公司 

（附註 42(b)） – – – (38) – (38)
Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 – – – (85) (134) (219)

        

Closing net carrying amount 年終賬面淨值 124,920 58,921 588 4,663 1,607 190,699
        

At 31 December 2014 於二零一四年 
十二月三十一日

Cost/Valuation 成本╱估值 128,039 58,921 13,931 12,908 3,579 217,378
Accumulated depreciation 累計折舊 (3,119) – (13,343) (8,245) (1,972) (26,679)

        

Net carrying amount 賬面淨值 124,920 58,921 588 4,663 1,607 190,699
        

Analysis of cost/valuation 成本╱估值分析
At cost 按成本 128,039 – 13,931 12,908 3,579 158,457
At professional valuation 按專業估值 – 58,921 – – – 58,921

        

128,039 58,921 13,931 12,908 3,579 217,378
        

19. 物業、廠房及設備（續）
本集團（續）
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Group (Continued)
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s leasehold buildings held 
on leases over 50 years in Hong Kong are stated at valuation 
of HK$58,921,000 (2013: HK$55,289,000). The Group’s 
leasehold buildings were valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung 
Limited on an open market value basis by reference to the price 
information of comparable properties. A revaluation surplus of 
approximately HK$4,738,000 (2013: deficit of approximately 
HK$48,932,000) had been recognised to asset revaluation 
reserve.

Had the leasehold bu i ld ings been carr ied at h is tor ica l 
cost less accumulated depreciation, its carrying amounts 
at 31 December 2014 would have been approx imate ly 
HK$14,495,000 (2013: HK$14,904,000).

As at 31 December 2014, leasehold buildings of the Group with 
carrying amount of HK$44,000,000 (2013: HK$42,000,000) 
were pledged to secure certain bank loans of the Group (note 
32).

The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied leasehold building 
is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of 
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided below.

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Opening balance 
 (level 3 recurring fair value)

年初結餘 
（第3級經常性公平值） 55,289 93,800

Transfer from investment properties 轉撥自投資物業 – 12,548
Depreciation 折舊 (1,106) (2,127)
Surplus/(Deficit) on revaluation of  

properties held for own use
重估持作自用物業之盈餘/ 
（虧損） 4,738 (48,932)

    

Closing balance 
 (level 3 recurring fair value)

年終結餘 
（第3級經常性公平值） 58,921 55,289

    

19. 物業、廠房及設備（續）
本集團（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本集團

於香港租賃期50年以上之租賃樓宇以估
值港幣58,921,000元（二零一三年：港幣
55,289,000元）列賬。本集團之租賃樓宇由
戴德梁行有限公司參考可資比較物業之價格

資料按公開市價基準於作出估值。重估盈

餘約港幣4,738,000元（二零一三年：虧損
約港幣48,932,000元）已確認入資產重估儲
備。

倘租賃樓宇以歷史成本減累計折舊入賬，

其賬面值於二零一四年十二月三十一日將

約為港幣14,495,000元（二零一三年：港幣
14,904,000元）。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本集團抵押

賬面值為港幣44,000,000元（二零一三年：
港幣42,000,000元）之租賃樓宇以獲得本集
團之若干銀行貸款（附註32）。

本集團自用租賃樓宇之公平值為第3級經常
性公平值計量。年初及年末公平值結餘之對

賬載列如下。
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Group (Continued)
The fair value measurement is based on the above investment 
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from 
their actual use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values 
of these leasehold buildings are determined (in particular, the 
valuation techniques and inputs used).

Leasehold buildings held by 
the Group measured 
at revaluation model

Fair value as at 
31 December 2014 Valuation technique(s)

Significant unobservable 
input(s)

Range of significant 
unobservable inputs

Interrelationship between 
key unobservable input(s) 
and fair value measurement

本集團持有按重估模型計量之 
租賃樓宇

於二零一四年
十二月三十一日 
之公平值

估值技術 主要不可觀察數據 主要不可觀察數據之範圍 重要不可觀察數據與公平值 
計量之亙相關係

HK$’000
港幣千元

      

Owner-occupied leasehold buildings 58,921
(2013: 55,289)

Direct comparison Quality of properties (e.g. location, 
size, level and condition of the 
properties)

+/- 20% (2013:+/-20%) The higher the quality of properties 
with reference to comparables, 
the higher the fair value

自用租賃樓宇 58,921
（二零一三年：55,289）

直接比較 物業質量（如位置、大小、層數及 
物業狀況）

+/- 20%（二零一三年：+/-20%） 參照可比較物業之質量越高， 
公平值越高

19. 物業、廠房及設備（續）
本集團（續）
公平值計量乃基於上述投資物業最高及最佳

用途，與其實際用途並無差異。

下表載列有關如何釐定該等租賃樓宇公平值

（特別是所使用估值技術及數據）之資料。
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20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Year ended 31 December 截至十二月三十一日止年度

Opening net carrying amount 年初賬面淨值 46,497 46,328
Additions 增添 – 1,113
Amortisation 攤銷 (709) (1,311)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42(c)) 出售附屬公司（附註42(c)） (18,554) –
Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 (47) 367

    

Closing net carrying amount 年終賬面淨值 27,187 46,497
    

As at 31 December 於十二月三十一日

Cost 成本 34,467 58,171
Accumulated amortisation 累計攤銷 (7,280) (11,674)

    

Net carrying amount 賬面淨值 27,187 46,497
    

Analysis of lease terms: 租賃期分析：

– In Hong Kong held on leases between  
10 to 50 years

－於香港租賃期為10至50年
10,886 29,765

– In the PRC held on leases between  
10 to 50 years

－於中國租賃期為10至50年
16,301 16,732

    

Net carrying amount 賬面淨值 27,187 46,497
    

Properties held for development represents certain agricultural 
lands (the “Lands”) situated in New Territories. The directors 
are of the opinion that the fair value of the Lands cannot be 
reliably estimated unless the Group successfully assembles and 
consolidates the titles of the Lands, obtains the approval from 
the related government authorities and pays the land premium 
for further development. As such, the Group measures the 
Lands using the cost model.

20. 待發展物業
本集團

待發展物業指位於新界之若干農業用地（「土

地」）。董事認為，除非本集團成功整合土地

所有權、取得相關政府授權及支付再發展地

價，否則公平值不能可靠地計量。因此，本

集團按成本模式計量土地。
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Unlisted shares, at cost 非上市股份，按成本 2,318,856 2,318,856
Less: Provision for impairment loss 減：減值虧損撥備 (1,773,856) (1,773,856)

    

545,000 545,000
    

Amount due from a subsidiary 應收一家附屬公司款項 4,197,809 1,698,547
Less: Provision for impairment loss 減：減值虧損撥備 (1,471,575) (1,471,575)

    

2,726,234 226,972
Less: Amount due from a subsidiary  

included under current assets
減：計入流動資產之應收一家 
附屬公司款項 (2,726,234) (226,972)

    

Amount included under non-current assets 計入非流動資產之金額 545,000 545,000
    

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, of the amount due 
from a subsidiary, the balance of HK$2,726,234,000 (2013: 
HK$226,972,000) is unsecured, interest free and repayable on 
demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the 
financial statements.

21. 附屬公司權益
本公司

於二零一四年及二零一三年十二月三十一

日，應收一家附屬公司款項之結餘金額港

幣 2,726,234,000元（二零一三年：港幣
226,972,000元）為無抵押、免息及須應要
求償還。

主要附屬公司詳情載於財務報表附註46。
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that have material non-
controlling interests are set out below:

Eagle Fund I.L.P. is an exempted limited partnership formed in 
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and the principle place 
of business is Hong Kong.

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

    

Percentage of equity interest held by  
non-controlling interests:

非控制權益持有股權之比例：

Eagle Fund I.L.P. Eagle Fund I.L.P. 53% 53%
    

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Profit/(Loss) for the year allocated to  
non-controlling interests:

年內分配至非控制權益之 
溢利╱（虧損）：

Eagle Fund I.L.P. Eagle Fund I.L.P. 22,993 (11,105)
    

Accumulated balances of non-controlling 
interests at the reporting date:

於報告日期非控制權益之累計 
結餘：

Eagle Fund I.L.P. Eagle Fund I.L.P. 217,600 184,467
    

21. 附屬公司權益（續）
本集團擁有重要非控制權益之附屬公司詳情

載列如下：

Eagle Fund I.L.P.為一家於開曼群島建立之
獲豁免有限責任合夥人及其業務經營主要地

點為香港。
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The fol lowing tables i l lustrate the unaudited summarised 
financial information of the above subsidiary. The amounts 
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Total revenue 總收益 – –
Profit/(Loss) for the year 年內溢利╱（虧損） 43,019 (17,211)
Total comprehensive income for  

the year
年內總全面收入

43,019 (17,211)
    

Current assets 流動資產 10,029 54,787
Non-current assets 非流動資產 603,000 495,000
Current liabilities 流動負債 (209,456) (9,655)
Non-current liabilities 非流動負債 – (195,000)

    

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from 
operating activities

經營業務（所用）╱所得之 
現金流量淨額 (5,926) 3,301

Net cash flows used in investing activities 投資活動所用之現金流量淨額 (54,248) (42,497)
Net cash flows generated from  

financing activities
融資活動所得之現金流量凈額

15,405 45,240
    

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and  
cash equivalent

現金及現金等價物（減少）╱ 
增加淨額 (44,769) 6,044

    

The non-controlling interests of all other subsidiaries that are 
not 100% owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.

21. 附屬公司權益（續）
下表列示上述附屬公司之未經審核財務資料

概要。所披露金額為於集團內公司之間對銷

前：

非由本集團擁有100%權益之所有其他附屬
公司之非控制權益被視為不重大。
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Unlisted share, at cost 非上市股份，按成本 1 1
Share of post-acquisition results 應佔收購後業績 (5,217) (5,166)

    

(5,216) (5,165)
Amount due from a joint venture 應收一家合營企業款項 49,992 49,888
Less: Provision for impairment (note 39(b)) 減：減值撥備（附註39(b)） (15,565) (15,565)

    

29,211 29,158
    

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest free 
and has no fixed terms of repayment. No repayment will be 
demanded within twelve months from the reporting date and 
the amount is classified as non-current assets accordingly.

Particulars of the joint venture entity at 31 December 2014 are 
as follows:

Percentage of
百分比

 

Company name

Place of 
incorporation 
and operations

Issued and 
paid-up capital

Ownership 
interest 

attributable 
to the Group

Voting 
Power

Profit 
Sharing

Principal 
Activities

公司名稱
註冊成立及
營運地點

已發行及
繳足股本

本集團應佔
擁有權權益 投票權 分享溢利 主要業務

       

Golden Choice 
Enterprises Limited

Hong Kong Paid-up capital of 
HK$2

50% 50% 50% Property 
development

高彩企業有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣2元 物業發展

22. 一家合營企業權益
本集團

應收一家合營企業款項乃無抵押、免息及並

無固定還款期。欠款不會在結算日後十二個

月內要求償還，故該等數額分類為非流動資

產。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日合營企業詳情

如下：
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Group (Continued)
The Group has a 50% (2013: 50%) interest in a joint venture, 
Golden Choice Enterprises Limited, a separate structured 
vehicle incorporated and operating in Hong Kong. The primary 
activity of Golden Choice Enterprises Limited is property 
development. The contractual arrangement provides the Group 
with only the rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement, 
with the rights to the assets and obligation for the liabilities 
of the joint arrangement resting primarily with Golden Choice 
Enterprises Limited. Under HKFRS 11, this joint arrangement is 
classified as a joint venture and has been accounted for in the 
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

The following is a condensed summary of financial information 
of the Group’s joint venture, extracted from its unaudited 
management account. The joint venture was considered to 
have immaterial financial impact to the Group:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Share of results attributable to the Group 本集團應佔業績

Loss for the year 年內虧損 (51) (7)
Other comprehensive income 其他全面收入 – –

    

Total comprehensive income 總全面收入 (51) (7)
    

22. 一家合營企業權益（續）
本集團（續）
本集團於合營企業高彩企業有限公司（於香

港註冊成立及經營之獨立實體組織）擁有

50%（二零一三年：50%）之權益。高彩企業
有限公司主要業務為物業發展。合約安排僅

為本集團提供對合營安排的淨資產值擁有權

利，而高彩企業有限公司主要擁有對合營安

排資產及負債責任之權利。根據香港財務報

告準則第11號，合營安排歸類為合營企業
及使用權益法計入綜合財務報表。

以下為本集團合營企業之簡明財務資料概

要，乃摘錄自未經審核之管理賬目。合營企

業被認為對本集團具有並不重大之財務影

響：
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Unlisted investments, at cost 非上市投資，按成本 6,660 6,660
Less: Provision for impairment loss 減：減值虧損撥備 (6,650) (6,650)

    

Available-for-sale financial assets under  
non-current assets

非流動資產項下之可供出售 
財務資產 10 10

    

Unlisted investments represent 35% of the issued ordinary 
share capital of an unlisted company incorporated in Hong 
Kong.

The unlisted investments are classified as available-for-sale 
financial assets because in the opinion of the Directors, the 
Group has no signif icant influence over the f inancial and 
operating decisions of the investee.

The unlisted investment with a carrying amount of HK$10,000 
(2013: HK$10,000) is measured at cost less impairment losses 
as it does not have quoted market prices in active market. The 
Group plans to hold the investment continuously.

23. 可供出售財務資產
本集團

非上市投資指一間於香港註冊成立之非上市

公司之35%已發行普通股股本。

由於董事認為，本集團對被投資公司之財務

及經營決策並無重大影響力，因此，該項非

上市投資分類為可供出售財務資產。

賬面值為港幣10,000元（二零一三年：港幣
10,000元）之非上市投資由於並無活躍市場
報價，故其乃按成本減減值虧損計量。本集

團計劃繼續持有部分非上市投資。
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24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group
Urban infrastructure development rights

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

At 1 January 於一月一日

Cost 成本 – 19,087
Accumulated amortisation and  

impairment loss
累計攤銷及減值虧損

– (13,124)
    

Net carrying amount 賬面淨值 – 5,963
    

Year ended 31 December 截至十二月三十一日止年度

Opening net carrying amount 年初賬面淨值 – 5,963
Amortisation charge 攤銷支出 – (405)
Provision for impairment loss 減值虧損撥備 – (1,301)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 42(d)) 出售附屬公司（附註42(d)） – (4,398)
Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 – 141

    

Closing net carrying amount 年終賬面淨值 – –
    

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日

Cost 成本 – –
Accumulated amortisation and  

impairment loss
累計攤銷及減值虧損

– –
    

Net carrying amount 賬面淨值 – –
    

24. 無形資產
本集團
城市基建開發權
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25. GOODWILL
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Gross amount 總面值

As 1 January and 31 December 於一月一日及十二月三十一日 4,168 4,168
    

Accumulated impairment loss 累計減值虧損

At 1 January and 31 December 於一月一日及十二月三十一日 4,168 4,168
    

Net carrying amount 賬面淨值

Gross amount 總面值 4,168 4,168
Accumulated impairment loss 累計減值虧損 (4,168) (4,168)

    

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日 – –
    

25. 商譽
本集團
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26. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Carrying amount at 1 January 於一月一日之賬面值 3,252,963 3,112,146
Additions 增添 249,500 291,230
Disposals 出售 (1,553,153) (127,969)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42(b)) 出售一家附屬公司（附註42(b)） (59,733) –
Transfer from/(to) investment properties  

(note 18)
轉撥自╱（至）投資物業 
（附註18） 667,952 (26,893)

Interest capitalised in properties under 
development (note 8)

於發展中物業資本化之利息 
（附註8） 256 3,298

Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 674 1,151
    

Carrying amount at 31 December 於十二月三十一日之賬面值 2,558,459 3,252,963
    

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank loans were settled but 
the Group’s properties under development with aggregate 
carrying value of HK$518,878,000 which were pledged as 
security for these bank loans have not yet been released. As at 
31 December 2013, the Group’s properties under development 
with aggregate carrying value of HK$1,119,887,000 were 
pledged to secure certain bank loans of HK$62,252,000 (note 
32).

As at 31 December 2014, the properties under development of 
approximately HK$1,707,150,000 (2013: HK$1,824,152,000) 
are expected to be recovered within one year.

26. 發展中物業
本集團

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，若干銀行

貸款已經結清，惟本集團就該等銀行貸

款所抵押作為抵押品之賬面總值為港幣

518,878,000元之發展中物業尚未解除抵
押。於二零一三年十二月三十一日，本集團

抵押賬面總值為港幣1,119,887,000元之發
展中物業以獲得港幣62,252,000元之若干
銀行貸款（附註32）。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，約港幣

1,707,150,000 元（ 二 零 一 三 年： 港 幣
1,824,152,000元）之發展中物業預期將於
一年內收回。
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26. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
Group (Continued)
Included in the transfer from investment properties was a joint 
operation project amounting to HK$165,952,000 to jointly 
develop a property site located at 1-11 Lai Yin Street and 2-12 
Jones Street, Tai Hang, in which the Group has a 20.24% 
share in the ownership. The plan for the property site is to 
develop a residential building. Prior to the reporting date, the 
Group confirmed that the completed units would be for sales 
purpose and therefore it has reclassified its proportionate 
share of the property site from investment properties under 
construction to properties under development at its fair value 
on 31 December 2014. The Group bears a proportionate share 
of the joint operation’s expenses. The pre-sales of this property 
development commenced in January 2015.

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Trade receivables 貿易應收款項 13,611 26,924
Less: Provision for impairment loss 減：減值虧損撥備 (2,462) (19,467)

    

Trade receivables, net 貿易應收款項，淨額 11,149 7,457
    

Deferred and contingent consideration  
(note 42(d))

遞延及或然代價（附註42(d)）
2,498 62,168

Other receivables, utility deposits and 
prepayment

其他應收款項、公共服務按金 
及預付款項 71,413 42,828

    

Other receivables, utility deposits and 
prepayment, net

其他應收款項、公共服務按金 
及預付款項，淨額 73,911 104,996

    

85,060 112,453
    

26. 發展中物業（續）
本集團（續）
轉 撥 自 投 資 物 業 包 括 一 項 為 數 港 幣

165,952,000元之合營項目，以共同開發一
個位於大坑禮賢街1-11號及重士街2-12號
之物業地盤，其中本集團擁有20.24%之股
權。該物業地盤計劃發展為住宅樓宇。於報

告日期前，本集團確認已落成單位將作銷售

用途，因此，本集團將其按比例應佔該物

業地盤按其於二零一四年十二月三十一日之

公平值由在建投資物業重新分類至發展中

物業。本集團承擔按比例應佔合營業務之開

支。該物業發展項目於二零一五年一月開始

預售。

27. 貿易及其他應收款項
本集團
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Group (Continued)
As at the reporting date, trade receivables included in trade 
and other receivables were approximately HK$11,149,000 
(2013: HK$7,457,000). The credit terms of the Group’s trade 
receivables range from 30 to 90 days. At 31 December 2014, 
based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade 
receivables was as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

0 – 30 days 0至30天 5,833 4,309
31 – 90 days 31至90天 4,430 1,800
91 – 180 days 91至180天 445 185
Over 180 days 超過180天 441 1,163

    

Total trade receivables 貿易應收款項總額 11,149 7,457
    

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded 
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that 
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment 
loss is written off against trade receivables directly. The 
movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is 
as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

At 1 January 於一月一日 19,467 12,710
Add: Provision for impairment loss (note 9) 加：減值虧損撥備（附註9） – 38,505
Less: Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 減：呆賬撥備撥回 – (101)
Disposal of subsidiaries 出售附屬公司 – (32,267)
Write-off 撇銷 (17,005) (133)
Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 – 753

    

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日 2,462 19,467
    

27. 貿易及其他應收款項（續）
本集團（續）
於報告日期，計入貿易及其他應收款項之

貿易應收款項約為港幣11,149,000元（二零
一三年：約港幣7,457,000元）。本集團貿
易應收款項之信貸期介乎30至90天。於二
零一四年十二月三十一日，根據發票日期，

貿易應收款項之賬齡分析如下：

有關貿易應收款項之減值以撥備賬記錄，除

非本集團信納收回該筆款項之可能性極低，

在該情況下，減值會直接於貿易應收款項中

撇銷。年內呆賬撥備之變動如下：
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Group (Continued)
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, included in the allowance 
for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables. 
The individually impaired receivables related to invoices that 
were outstanding for more than one year and the management 
assessed that none of these balances are expected to be 
recovered. Normally, other than those property leasing rental 
receivables which are secured by rental deposits, the Group 
does not obtain collateral from other customers.

Trade receivables that are not impaired are as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Neither past due nor impaired 未逾期及並無減值 8,880 5,609
Less than 90 days past due 逾期少於90日 1,784 640
Past due more than 90 days but  

less than 1 year
逾期多於90日但少於1年

327 380
Past due more than 1 year but  

less than 2 years
逾期多於1年但少於2年

158 828
    

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日 11,149 7,457
    

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired 
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was no 
recent history of default. Trade receivables that were past due 
but not impaired related to a number of customers that have a 
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, 
the management believes that no impairment allowance is 
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been 
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still 
considered fully recoverable.

27. 貿易及其他應收款項（續）
本集團（續）
於二零一四年及二零一三年十二月三十一

日，呆賬撥備包括個別貿易應收款項之減

值。個別應收款項之減值與被拖欠多於一年

之發票而管理層評估預期該等應收款項能收

回之部分有限有關。一般而言，除以租賃按

金為抵押之物業租賃應收租金外，本集團並

無向其他客戶收取抵押品。

並無減值之貿易應收款項如下：

未逾期及並無減值之貿易應收款項與大量並

無近期拖欠還款記錄之客戶有關。已逾期但

並無減值之貿易應收款項與多名與本集團有

良好信貸記錄之客戶有關。根據過往經驗，

管理層相信由於信貸質素並無重大變動，而

該等結餘仍被視作可全數收回，故毋須就該

等結餘作出減值撥備。
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Group (Continued)
The deferred and contingent consideration is a recurring Level 
3 financial asset and its fair value is determined with reference 
to the credit history of the debtors. The significant unobservable 
input used in the fair value measurement is the Directors’ 
assessment on the probability of collecting the trade and other 
receivables by the Oriental Classic Group. Subsequent to year 
end date, the Group received settlement of HK$2,498,000. The 
Directors considered the remaining balance of HK$40,879,000 
to be uncollectible and have accordingly made full impairment 
provision on these balances. Further details are set out in note 
10.

The Directors consider that the fair values of trade and other 
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one year 
are not materially different from their carrying amounts due to 
short maturity periods on their inception.

28. BANK DEPOSIT AT ESCROW ACCOUNT
This represents deposits from buyers in connection with pre-
sales of properties under development situated in Hong Kong.

27. 貿易及其他應收款項（續）
本集團（續）
遞延及或然代價為經常性之第3級財務資產
及其公平值參考債務人信貸記錄而釐定。公

平值計量所用之重大不可觀察輸入數據為董

事對Oriental Classic集團收回貿易及其他應
收款項之可能性評估。於年結日後，本集團

已收取結算款項港幣2,498,000元。董事認
為餘下結餘港幣40,879,000元將不可收回
並已就該等結餘作出全額減值撥備。進一步

詳情載於附註10。

董事認為，由於預期將於一年內收回之貿易

及其他應收款項於設立時之到期期間較短，

故其公平值與賬面值並無重大差異。

28. 於託管賬戶之銀行存款
此款項指買家就預售位於香港之發展中物業

之按金。
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29. STRUCTURED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK BALANCES
As at 31 December 2014, the structured bank deposi t 
w a s  p r i n c i p a l - p r o t e c t e d  y i e l d  e n h a n c e m e n t  b a n k 
deposits denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounting to 
RMB74,850,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$94,591,000) 
(2013 :  RMB82,340 ,000 (equ i va len t  to  approx imate l y 
HK$104,506,000)) carrying a minimum interest rate of 1.8% 
(2013: 1.80% to 2.20%) per annum and can be enhanced to 
a maximum interest rate of 5% (2013: 5.15% to 6.20%) per 
annum which is to be determined by reference to the market 
exchange rate of Australian Dollar (“AUD”)/United States Dollar 
(“USD”) during a pre-determined period of 91 days (2013: from 
90 days to 99 days). The structured bank deposits contain 
embedded derivatives representing a return which would 
vary with prevailing market exchange rate of AUD/USD. The 
Directors of the Company consider that the fair value of the 
embedded derivative and the cap is minimal and hence no 
derivative financial instrument is recognised.

The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as 
follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Bank and cash balances 銀行及現金結餘 365,812 184,540
Short-term bank deposits 短期銀行存款 505,576 126,089

    

Total cash and cash equivalents 現金及現金等價物總額 871,388 310,629
Time deposits with original maturity over 

three months
原到期日超出三個月之定期存款

199,015 –
    

Total cash and bank balances 現金及銀行結餘總額 1,070,403 310,629
    

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on the daily 
bank deposit rates.

29. 結構性銀行存款/現金及銀行結餘
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，結構性銀行

存款為以人民幣（「人民幣」）呈列之保本型

收益增長銀行存款，共人民幣74,850,000
元（相等於約港幣94,591,000元）（二零一三
年：人民幣82,340,000元（相等於約港幣
104,506,000元）），年度最低利率為1.8厘
（二零一三年：1.80厘至2.20厘），年度最高
利率可增至5厘（二零一三年：5.15厘至6.20
厘），並按澳元（「澳元」）/美元（「美元」）之市
場匯兌於釐定前期間91日（二零一三年：90
日至99日）釐定。結構性銀行存款含有嵌入
性衍生工具，代表與澳元/美元現行市場匯
兌不同之回報。本公司董事認為嵌入性衍生

工具之公平值及上限影響輕微，因此並無確

認衍生金融工具。

本集團之現金及銀行結餘之概要如下：

銀行現金根據每日銀行存款利率按浮動利率

賺取利息。
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29. STRUCTURED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
(Continued)
The Group’s bank balances included restricted bank deposits 
of approximately HK$2,837,000 (2013: HK$9,742,000) which 
was restricted by the bankers for the purpose of construction 
related payments.

Short-term bank deposits were made for the periods of 7 
days to 31 days (2013: 7 days to 3 months) depending on the 
immediate cash requirement of the Group, and earned fixed-
rate interest at respective short-term deposit rates ranging from 
0.66% to 3.79% (2013: 0.25% to 1.49%) per annum.

Included in cash and cash equiva lents of the Group is 
HK$8,409,000 (2013: HK$55,027,000) of bank balances 
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is 
not a freely convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s 
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration 
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange 
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for 
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to 
conduct foreign exchange business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and 
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying 
amount because of the short maturity period on their inception.

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Trade payables 貿易應付款項 10,829 10,669
Receipt in advance 預收款項 13,794 4,087
Rental deposits received 已收租金按金 144,045 124,137
Accrued expenses and other payables 應付費用及其他應付款項 343,402 316,279
Provision for legal cost (note 39(b)) 法律費用撥備（附註39(b)） 3,598 3,598

    

515,668 458,770
    

29. 結構性銀行存款/現金及銀行結餘
（續）
本集團的銀行結餘中，包括支付在建工程之

受限制銀行存款約港幣2,837,000元（二零
一三年︰港幣9,742,000元）。

短期銀行存款之存款期為期7日至31日（二
零一三年：7日至3個月），視乎本集團之
資金需求而定，並按各自之短期存款年利

率0.66%至3.79%（二零一三年：0.25%至
1.49%）賺取利息。

計入本集團現金及現金等值物為存放於中國

多間銀行的銀行結餘港幣8,409,000元（二
零一三年：港幣55,027,000元）之人民幣銀
行結餘。人民幣並非可自由兌換之貨幣。根

據中國內地之外匯管理條例及結匯、售匯及

付匯管理規定，本集團獲准經由授權進行外

匯業務之銀行以人民幣兌換外幣。

董事認為，由於現金及現金等價物於設立時

之到期期間較短，故其公平值與賬面值並無

重大差異。

30. 貿易及其他應付款項
本集團
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
Group (Continued)
As at the reporting date, trade payables included in trade and 
other payables were approximately HK$10,829,000 (2013: 
HK$10,669,000). The Group was granted by its suppliers 
with credit periods ranging from 30 to 60 days. Based on the 
invoices dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables was as 
follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

0 – 30 days 0至30天 4,842 6,048
31 – 90 days 31至90天 847 886
Over 90 days 超過90天 5,140 3,735

    

Total trade payables 貿易應付款項總額 10,829 10,669
    

31. DEPOSIT RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Deposit received in advance associated with 
pre-sale of properties under development 
situated at:

有關預售位於下列地點之 
發展中物業之預收訂金：

– Hong Kong －香港 407,273 1,243,003
– PRC －中國 13,835 34,888

    

421,108 1,277,891
    

30. 貿易及其他應付款項（續）
本集團（續）
於報告日期，計入貿易及其他應付款項之

貿易應付款項約為港幣10,829,000元（二零
一三年：約港幣10,669,000元）。本集團獲
其供應商授予介乎30至60天之信貸期。根
據發票日期，貿易應付款項之賬齡分析載列

如下：

31. 預收訂金
本集團
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32. BORROWINGS
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Current liabilities 流動負債

Bank loans – secured 銀行貸款－有抵押 2,197,920 3,955,820

Non-current liabilities 非流動負債

Other loans 其他貸款 24,011 –
    

2,221,931 3,955,820
    

Carrying amount repayable based on the 
scheduled repayment dates set out in the 
loan agreements:

根據貸款協議所載預定 
還款日期應償還之賬面值：

Within one year 一年內 188,300 1,621,898
More than one year, but not exceeding  

two years
一年以上但不超過兩年

705,711 291,550
More than two years, but not exceeding 

five years
兩年以上但不超過五年

1,145,020 1,825,672
More than five years 五年以上 182,900 216,700

    

2,221,931 3,955,820
    

Carrying amount of bank loans due for 
repayment after one year which contain 
a repayment on demand clause (shown 
under current liabilities)

一年後到期償還之銀行貸款 
（包括按要求償還條款） 
之賬面值（列於流動負債）

2,009,620 2,333,922
    

Bank loans are secured by certain investment properties, 
proper ty ,  p lant  and equ ipment ,  and proper t ies under 
development of the Group with a total carrying value of 
approximately HK$12,782,748,000 as set out in notes 18, 19 
and 26 respectively to the financial statements.

32. 借貸
本集團

銀行貸款乃以分別載於財務報表附註

18、19及 26之本集團賬面總值約港幣
12,782,748,000元之若干投資物業、物
業、廠房及設備及發展中物業作為抵押。
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)
Group (Continued)
The fair values of the borrowings as at 31 December 2014 and 
2013 approximate to their carrying amounts.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of 
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 44.1(d) to the financial 
statements.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the 
reporting date were as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Bank loans 銀行貸款

– HK$-denominated loans －港幣貸款 HIBOR
+1.35% p.a.

 to HIBOR
+2.45% p.a.

HIBOR
+1% p.a. 
to HIBOR

+3.75% p.a. 
香港同業拆息

+年利率
1.35%至香港
同業拆息

+年利率2.45%

香港同業拆息

+年利率
1%至香港
同業拆息

+年利率3.75%

Other loans 其他貸款

– RMB-denominated loan －人民幣貸款 Loan rate 
published by 
the People’s 

Bank of China
+1.5% p.a

N/A

中國人民銀行
公佈之貸款利率

+年利率1.5%

不適用

    

32. 借貸（續）
本集團（續）
於二零一四年及二零一三年十二月三十一

日，借貸之公平值與其賬面值相若。

顯示本集團借貸之餘下合約到期日之分析載

於財務報表附註44.1(d)。

於報告日期本集團借貸之實際利率如下：
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33. DEFERRED TAX
Group
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for 
financial reporting purpose:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Deferred tax assets 遞延稅項資產 – (12,993)
Deferred tax liabilities 遞延稅項負債 70,942 62,820

    

70,942 49,827
    

The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

At 1 January 於一月一日 49,827 65,183
Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to: 扣除╱（計入）自以下項目之 

遞延稅項：

– Profit or loss (note 13) －損益（附註13） 20,373 (7,532)
– Asset revaluation reserve (note 15) －資產重估儲備（附註15） 782 (8,074)
Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 (40) 250

    

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日 70,942 49,827
    

33. 遞延稅項
本集團
就財務呈報而言，遞延稅項結餘之分析如

下：

遞延稅項賬目之總變動如下：
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Group (Continued)
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets 
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position 
and the movements during the current and prior years:

Accelerated 
tax 

depreciation Tax loss

Surplus/
(Deficit) on 
revaluation 

of owner-
occupied 

properties Total

加速稅項
折舊 稅項虧損

重估自用
物業盈餘╱
（虧損） 總額

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

      

At 1 January 2013 於二零一三年一月一日 51,075 – 14,108 65,183
Charged/(credited) to profit or  

loss (note 13)
扣除自╱（計入）損益

（附註13） 5,461 (12,993) – (7,532)
Credited to other comprehensive 

income (note 15)
計入其他全面收入 
（附註15） – – (8,074) (8,074)

Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 250 – – 250
      

At 31 December 2013 and  
1 January 2014

於二零一三年十二月

三十一日及二零一四

年一月一日 56,786 (12,993) 6,034 49,827
Charged to profit or loss  

(note 13)
扣除自損益（附註13）

7,380 12,993 – 20,373
Charged to other  

comprehensive income  
(note 15)

扣除自其他全面收入

（附註15）
– – 782 782

Exchange realignment 匯兌調整 (40) – – (40)
      

At 31 December 2014 於二零一四年 
十二月三十一日 64,126 – 6,816 70,942

      

33. 遞延稅項（續）
本集團（續）
以下為於綜合財務狀況表確認之主要遞延稅

項負債及資產以及於本年度及過往年度之變

動：
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Group (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the amount of unrecognised 
deferred tax assets mainly represented by tax effect of 
temporary di f ferences attr ibutable to unrecognised tax 
losses of HK$65,961,000 (2013: HK$55,555,000), which are 
subject to the agreement of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue 
Department. The deductible temporary differences have not 
been recognised in the financial statements as it is not probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the tax loss or 
other deductible temporary differences can be utilised due to 
the unpredictability of future profit streams of the companies in 
which the losses arose. All tax losses and deductible temporary 
differences of the Group have no expiry dates under the current 
tax legislation.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has deferred tax liabilities 
of approximately HK$2,025,000 (2013: HK$1,191,000) in 
respect of the aggregate amount of temporary differences 
associated with undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries 
have not been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been 
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group 
is in a position to control the dividend policies of its subsidiaries 
and it is probable that such difference will not be reversed in the 
foreseeable future.

Company
No deferred tax has been provided in the financial statements of 
the Company as there are no material temporary differences.

33. 遞延稅項（續）
本集團（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，未確認遞

延稅項資產之金額主要是由於未確認稅項

虧損港幣65,961,000元（二零一三年：港幣
55,555,000元）所產生之暫時性差額稅務影
響，有關金額須經香港稅務局同意。由於無

法預計虧損產生時本公司的未來溢利，稅項

虧損或其他可扣減暫時性差額將來未必能用

以抵銷應課稅溢利，故並無於財務報表確認

可扣減暫時性差額。根據現時稅務條例，本

集團所有稅項虧損及可扣減暫時性差額並無

屆滿期。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本集團有關

中國附屬公司未分派盈利之相關暫時差額總

額之遞延稅項負債約港幣2,025,000元（二
零一三年：港幣1,191,000元）尚未確認。
由於本集團能夠控制其附屬公司之股息政策

以及有關暫時差額於可見將來可能不會撥

回，故並無就該等差額確認遞延稅項負債。

本公司
由於本公司並無重大暫時性差額，故並無於

財務報表作出遞延稅項撥備。
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013

二零一四年 二零一三年

Number of 
shares HK$’000

Number of 
shares HK$’000

股份數目 港幣千元 股份數目 港幣千元
      

Authorised: 法定：

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 每股面值港幣0.10元之普通股 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
      

Issued and fully paid: 已發行及繳足：

At 1 January 於一月一日 280,824,135 28,082 280,764,135 28,076
Exercise of share options 行使購股權 3,612,500 362 60,000 6
Shares repurchased and cancelled (note) 購回及註銷股份（附註） (368,000) (37) – –

      

At 31 December 於十二月三十一日 284,068,635 28,407 280,824,135 28,082
      

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group repurchased its own 
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

Trading dates

Number of 
shares 

repurchased

Highest 
price paid 
per share

Lowest 
price paid 
per share

Aggregate 
price paid

交易日期 購回股份數目 已付每股最高價 已付每股最低價 已付總價
HK$ HK$ HK$’000

港幣元 港幣元 港幣千元
      

August 2014 二零一四年八月 48,000 13.48 13.34 646
September 2014 二零一四年九月 34,000 13.34 13.08 451
November 2014 二零一四年十一月 4,000 12.18 12.18 49
December 2014 二零一四年十二月 282,000 12.18 11.96 3,415

      

368,000 4,561
      

The repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital of the 
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. 
The premium paid on these repurchases was charged to the share premium 
account. An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled were 
transferred from share capital to the capital redemption reserve.

34. 股本

附註：

於截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度，本集團購回

其於香港聯合交易所有限公司之普通股如下：

購回股份已獲註銷，故本公司已發行股本相應減少該等

股份之面值。就該等購回所付溢價自股份溢價賬扣除。

相等於註銷股份面值之款項自股本轉撥至資本贖回儲

備。
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35. RESERVES
Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Share premium (note (a)) 股份溢價（附註(a)） 694,240 659,840
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) 資本贖回儲備（附註(b)） 37 –
Asset revaluation reserve 資產重估儲備 5,451 1,495
Employee share-based equity reserve 員工股份權益儲備 25,893 27,788
Retained profits 保留溢利 15,529,767 13,989,841
Exchange reserve 兌換儲備 33,973 31,914
Special reserve (note (c)) 特別儲備（附註(c)） 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends  

(note 16(a))
建議末期及特別股息 
（附註16(a)） 85,221 56,165

    

16,376,430 14,768,891
    

Notes:

(a) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received over the par 
value of share issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par value of 
the repurchased shares transferred.

(c) The special reserve of the Group initially represented the difference between 
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange 
for the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries pursuant to the 
Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in 
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 98 to 
101 to the financial statements.

35. 儲備
本集團

附註：

(a)  股份溢價指所收取代價高於已發行股份面值之差
額。

(b) 資本贖回儲備指相等於已轉撥購回股份面值之款
項。

(c) 本集團之特別儲備最初指根據本集團一九九七年重

組本公司已發行股本面值兌換附屬公司股本面值之

差額。

上述儲備之變動詳情載於財務報表第98至
101頁之綜合權益變動表。
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35. RESERVES (Continued)
Company

Share 
premium

Capital 
redemption 

reserve
Contributed 

surplus

Employee 
share-based 

equity reserve

(Accumulated 
losses)/

Retained 
profit

Proposed 
final and 

special
dividends Total

股份溢價 資本贖回儲備 繳納盈餘
員工股份
權益儲備

（累計虧損）╱
保留溢利

建議末期
及特別股息 總額

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
（附註(a)） （附註(b)） （附註(c)）

         

At 1 January 2013 於二零一三年 
一月一日 659,198 – 2,028,072 8,902 (1,955,532) 56,153 796,793

Exercise of share options 行使購股權 642 – – (125) – – 517
Lapse of share option (note 36) 購股權失效（附註36） – – – (68) 68 – –
Equity-settled share based 

payment (note 36)
以股權結算以股份為基
礎之付款（附註36） – – – 19,079 – – 19,079

Loss for the year 年內虧損 – – – – (16,203) – (16,203)
Under-provision for final 

dividend for 2012
二零一二年末期股息 
撥備不足 – – (12) – – 12 –

Final dividend paid for 2012 
(note 16(b))

已付二零一二年末期 
股息（附註16(b)） – – – – – (56,165) (56,165)

Proposed final dividend for 
2013 (note 16(a))

建議二零一三年末期 
股息（附註16(a)） – – (56,165) – – 56,165 –

         

At 31 December 2013 and 1 
January 2014

於二零一三年十二月
三十一日及 
二零一四年一月一日 659,840 – 1,971,895 27,788 (1,971,667) 56,165 744,021

Exercise of share options 行使購股權 38,924 – – (7,820) – – 31,104
Lapse of share option (note 36) 購股權失效（附註36） – – – (64) 64 – –
Shares repurchased and 

cancelled (note 34)
購回及註銷股份 
（附註34） (4,524) 37 – – (37) – (4,524)

Equity-settled share based 
payment (note 36)

以股權結算以股份為 
基礎之付款（附註36） – – – 5,989 – – 5,989

Profit for the year 年內溢利 – – – – 2,522,610 – 2,522,610
Under-provision for final 

dividend for 2013
二零一三年末期 
股息撥備不足 – – (40) – – 40 –

Final dividend paid for 2013 
(note 16(b))

已付二零一三年末期 
股息（附註16(b)） – – – – – (56,205) (56,205)

Proposed final and special 
dividends for 2014 (note 
16(a))

建議二零一四年 
末期及特別股息 
（附註16(a)） – – (85,221) – – 85,221 –

         

At 31 December 2014 於二零一四年 
十二月三十一日 694,240 37 1,886,634 25,893 550,970 85,221 3,242,995

         

35. 儲備（續）
本公司
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35. RESERVES (Continued)
Company (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received over the par 
value of shares issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par value of 
the repurchased shares transferred.

(c) The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal 
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all the issued ordinary 
shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary) and the value of the net 
underlying assets of the subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is 
available for distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances. 
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a 
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they 
become due; or

(2) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the 
aggregate of its l iabil it ies and its issued share capital and share 
premium accounts.

35. 儲備（續）
本公司（續）
附註：

(a) 股份溢價指所收取代價高於已發行股份面值之差

額。

(b) 資本贖回儲備指相等於已轉撥購回股份面值之款
項。

(c) 繳納盈餘乃指發行以換取Lucky Spark Limited（一
家附屬公司）全部已發行普通股之本公司股份面值

與所收購附屬公司相關淨資產值之差額。根據百慕

達一九八一年公司法（經修訂），在若干情況下本

公司之繳納盈餘可分派予股東。然而，倘發生以下

情況，本公司不可從繳納盈餘宣派或支付股息或派

發：

(1) 不能或於支付後不能支付到期繳付之債務；
或

(2) 其資產之可變現值因此少於其債務、已發行
股本及股份溢價賬之總額。
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36. SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 
19 May 2011 (the AGM 2011).

The principal terms of the share option schemes are set out as 
follows:

Purpose of the share option schemes
The purpose of this scheme is to encourage the participants to 
perform their best in achieving the goals of the Company and at 
the same time allow the participants to enjoy the results of the 
Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

Eligible Participants of the share option schemes
(i) any full time employee and director (any existing or proposed 
executive or non- executive directors) of the Group or any 
member of the Group and any part-time employee with weekly 
working hours of 10 hours or above of the Group; (i i) any 
advisor, consultants or agent to the Group; any provider of 
goods and/or services to the Group; or any other person who, 
at the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may 
contribute to the Group; (iii) any trustee of any trust (whether 
family, discretionary) whose beneficiaries or objects include any 
employee or business association of the Group.

Total number of securities issuable
The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise 
of all share options to be granted under the 2011 Share Option 
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company 
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue 
as at the adoption date of the 2011 Share Option Scheme 
provided that the share options lapsed will not be counted for 
the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

At the AGM 2011 of the Company convened on 19 May 2011, 
the said 10% limit of number of shares available for issue was 
25,091,413 shares.

36. 以股份為基礎僱員報酬
本公司於二零一一年五月十九日舉行之股東

週年大會（「二零一一年股東週年大會」）上

採納新購股權計劃（「二零一一年購股權計

劃」）。

購股權計劃之主要條款載列如下：

購股權計劃之目的
該計劃旨在鼓勵參與者竭誠達致本公司目

標，同時讓參與者分享彼等致力為本公司作

出貢獻之成果。

購股權計劃之合資格參與者
(i)本集團或本集團任何成員公司之任何全職
僱員及董事（任何現任或建議非執行董事），

以及本集團任何每週工時10小時或以上之
兼職僱員；(ii)本集團任何顧問、專家顧問或
代理、向本集團提供貨物及╱或服務之任何

供應商、或董事會全權酌情認為已經或可能

對本集團作出貢獻之任何其他人士；(iii)任何
信託（家族或酌情）之受託人，而該信託之受

益人或對象包括本集團之任何僱員或業務聯

繫人。

可發行證券總數
根據行使二零一一年購股權計劃及本公司任

何其他購股權計劃將予授出之所有購股權而

可予發行之股份總數，不得超過於批准二

零一一年購股權計劃之日已發行股份總數

之10%，但已失效之購股權將不計算在該
10%上限以內。

於本公司於二零一一年五月十九日舉行之二

零一一年股東週年大會上，上述10%上限可
予發行之股份數目為25,091,413股股份。
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36. SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Continued)
Total number of securities issuable (Continued)
Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Company may 
obtain a fresh approval from its shareholder in general meeting 
to refresh the above mentioned 10% limit. In such event, the 
total number of shares in respect of which share options may 
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other 
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10 % 
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of such 
approval provided that share options previously granted under 
the 2011 Share Option Scheme (including those outstanding, 
cancelled, lapsed or exercised share options) wil l not be 
counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore contained and subject 
to the maximum entitlement of each participant hereinafter 
mentioned, the maximum number of shares which may be 
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option granted 
and yet to be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme 
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall 
not exceed 30% (or such other higher percentages as may be 
allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in 
issue from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares 
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme 
was 14,353,413 representing approximately 5.10% of the 
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of each employee/participant
Unless separately approved by the shareholders of the 
Company in general meeting with the particular Participant (as 
defined in the Share Option Schemes) and his or her associate 
(as defined under the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting, the 
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise 
of the options granted to each Participant (including both 
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12 months period 
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

36. 以股份為基礎僱員報酬（續）
可發行證券總數（續）
根據二零一一年購股權計劃，本公司可在股

東大會上獲得其股東更新批准以更新上述之

10%上限。在該情況下，根據二零一一年購
股權計劃及本公司任何其他購股權計劃可予

授出之購股權而發行之股份總數，不得超過

於該等批准之日已發行股份總數之10%，但
根據二零一一年購股權計劃過往已授出之購

股權（包括該等尚未行使、已註銷、已失效

或已行使之購股權）將不計算在該10%上限
以內。

儘管上文所載任何規定及受到下文所述之各

參與者之最大配額之規限，因行使根據二零

一一年購股權計劃或本公司任何其他購股權

計劃已授出之尚未行使購股權而發行之股份

上限，不得超過不時已發行股份總數之30%
（或上市規則准許之該等其他較高百分比）。

於本年報日期，根據二零一一年購股權計劃

可予授出之購股權總數為14,353,413股，
佔於該日本公司已發行股份約5.10%。

各僱員╱參與者之配額上限
除非經本公司股東在股東大會上另行批准及

有關之參與者（定義見購股權計劃）及其聯繫

人（定義見上市規則）亦放棄在股東大會上投

票外，行使授予各參與者之購股權（包括已

行使及尚未行使之購股權）時所發行及可予

發行之股份總數，於任何十二個月期間不得

超過已發行股份總數之1%。
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36. SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Continued)
Period to take up share options and minimum period to hold before 
exercise
Under the 2011 Share Option Schemes, the period which the 
shares must be taken up under a share option and the minimum 
period, if any, for which a share option must be held before 
it can be exercised are to be decided by the Directors of the 
Company upon granting the relevant share options. Details 
of such information (if any) relating to the outstanding share 
options are set out below.

Amount payable to take up share options and time to accept offer
Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, an offer for the granting 
of share options shall be accepted within 21 days from the offer 
date and by way of payment of consideration of HK$1.00.

Exercise price
Under the 2011 Share Option Schemes, the exercise price shall 
be a price determined by the board of directors of the Company 
and shall be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock 
Exchange on the offer date;

(ii) a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares 
as quoted in the Stock Exchange for the 5 trading days 
immediately preceding the offer date;

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Life of the share option schemes
The share option schemes have a life of 10 years from its 
adoption date. (i.e. 19 May 2011).

36. 以股份為基礎僱員報酬（續）
認購購股權項下股份之時限及行使前之最短
持有購股權時限
根據二零一一年購股權計劃，認購購股權項

下股份之時限及行使購股權前必須持有購股

權之最短時限（如有），均由本公司董事在授

出有關之購股權時決定。有關尚未行使之購

股權之該等資料（如有）之詳情載於下文。

認購購股權之應付款項及接納要約之時間
根據二零一一年購股權計劃，授出購股權之

要約須在要約日起二十一天內以支付港幣

1.00元代價之方式接納。

行使價
根據二零一一年購股權計劃，行使價應為本

公司董事會所釐定之價格，以至少為以下三

項中較高者為準：

(i) 股份於要約日在聯交所所報之收市價；

(ii) 緊接要約日前五個交易日股份在聯交所
所報之平均收市價；

(iii) 股份之面值。

購股權計劃之有效期
購股權計劃之有效期由採納日期（即二零

一一年五月十九日）起計10年。
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36. SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Continued)
As at the 31 December 2014, details of outstanding options 
granted to eligible persons are as follows:

Number of options

購股權數目 

Name of grantee Date of grant

Closing price 
immediately 

preceding 
the date 
of grant

Exercise 
price

Weighted 
average 

share price 
of shares 

at the date 
of exercise Exercisable period

As at 
1 January 

2014

Granted 
during 

the year

Exercised/
Lapsed* 

during 
the year

As at 
31 December 

2014

Fair value 
of options 

granted

承授人姓名 授出日期

緊接授出
日期前之
收市價 行使價

股份於行使
日期之加權
平均股價 行使期

於二零一四年
一月一日 年內授出

年內行使╱
失效*

於二零一四年
十二月

三十一日
已授出

購股權公平值
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$) (HK$’000)

（港幣元） （港幣元） （港幣元） （港幣千元）
           

Directors
董事

Foo Kam Chu, Grace
傅金珠

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 12 6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

550,000 – (412,500) 137,500 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

316,000 – – 316,000 N/A
不適用

Chan Wai Ling
陳慧苓

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 12 6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

2,000,000 – (1,500,000) 500,000 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

2,000,000 – – 2,000,000 N/A
不適用

Kong Siu Man, Kenny
鄺紹民

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 N/A
不適用

6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

300,000 – – 300,000 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

250,000 – – 250,000 N/A
不適用

Other Employees
其他僱員

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 12.12 6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

2,580,000 – (1,700,000) 880,000 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

2,530,000 – (20,000)* 2,510,000 N/A
不適用

           

10,526,000 – (3,632,500) 6,893,500
           

36. 以股份為基礎僱員報酬（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，授予合資格

人士之未行使購股權如下：
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36. SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Continued)
As at the 31 December 2013, details of outstanding options 
granted to eligible persons are as follows:

Number of options
購股權數目 

Name of grantee Date of grant

Closing price 
immediately 

preceding 
the date 
of grant

Exercise 
price

Weighted 
average 

share price 
of shares 

at the date 
of exercise Exercisable period

As at 
1 January 

2013

Granted 
during 

the year

Exercised/
Lapsed* 

during 
the year

As at 
31 December 

2013

Fair value 
of options 

granted

承授人姓名 授出日期

緊接授出
日期前之
收市價 行使價

股份於行使
日期之加權
平均股價 行使期

於二零一三年
一月一日 年內授出

年內行使╱
失效*

於二零一三年
十二月

三十一日

已授出
購股權

公平價值
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$) (HK$’000)

（港幣元） （港幣元） （港幣元） （港幣千元）
           

Directors
董事

Foo Kam Chu, Grace
傅金珠

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 N/A
不適用

6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

550,000 – – 550,000 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

– 316,000 – 316,000 1,436

Chan Wai Ling
陳慧苓

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 N/A
不適用

6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

2,000,000 – – 2,000,000 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

– 2,000,000 – 2,000,000 9,088

Kong Siu Man, Kenny
鄺紹民

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 N/A
不適用

6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

300,000 – – 300,000 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

– 250,000 – 250,000 1,136

Lau Kam Kwok, Dickson 
劉金國

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 21.05 6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

120,000 – (120,000)# – N/A
不適用

(Resigned with effective  
from 25 May 2013)

（於二零一三年五月二十五日
辭任）

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

– 100,000 (100,000)* – 454

Other Employees
其他僱員

6/12/2011
二零一一年十二月六日

8.60 8.71 N/A
不適用

6/12/2012 to 5/12/2015
二零一二年十二月六日至 
二零一五年十二月五日

2,580,000 – – 2,580,000 N/A
不適用

3/1/2013
二零一三年一月三日

15.78 15.76 N/A
不適用

3/1/2014 to 2/1/2017
二零一四年一月三日至 
二零一七年一月二日

– 2,530,000 – 2,530,000 11,496

           

5,500,000 5,196,000 (220,000) 10,526,000 23,610
           

# Including 60,000 lapsed share options and 60,000 exercised share options

36. 以股份為基礎僱員報酬（續）
於二零一三年十二月三十一日，授予合資格

人士之未行使購股權如下：

# 包括60,000股已失效購股權及60,000股已行使購

股權
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36. SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Continued)
On 3 January 2013 (the “Grant Date”), 5,196,000 share options 
(the “Share Options”) to subscribe for up to a total of 5,196,000 
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were granted 
to certain eligible individuals, including executive directors, 
under 2011 Share Option Scheme. The exercise price of the 
Share Options is HK$15.76 per share and the vesting schedule 
of the Share Options are as follows:

(a) 50% of the options can be exercised at any time after first 
anniversary of the grant date (“Tranche A”);

(b) 25% of the options can be exercised at any time after 
second anniversary of the Grant Date (“Tranche B”); and

(c) The remaining 25% of the Options can be exercised at any 
time after third anniversary of the Grant Date (“Tranche C”).

The fair value of the Share Options granted during the year 
under 2011 Share Option Scheme determined at the Grant 
Date using Trinomial Option Pricing Model (the “Model”) was 
HK$23,610,000. The following table lists the key inputs to the 
Model:

Tranche A
批次A

Tranche B
批次B

Tranche C
批次C    

Date of grant
授出日期

3 January 2013
二零一三年一月三日

3 January 2013
二零一三年一月三日

3 January 2013
二零一三年一月三日

Closing share price immediately 
preceding the date of grant
緊接授出日期前之股份收市價

HK$15.76 per share
每股港幣15.76元

HK$15.76 per share
每股港幣15.76元

HK$15.76 per share
每股港幣15.76元

Expected volatility (based on the 
annualised historical volatility of the 
closing price of the shares of the 
Company for the past four years  
to the dates of grant)
預期波幅（以過往四年至授出日期本公
司股份收市價推算全年過往波幅）

41.313% 41.313% 41.313%

Time to maturity (in years)
屆滿期（年）

4 4 4

Risk-free interest rate
無風險利率

0.282% 0.282% 0.282%

Expected dividend yield
預期股息率

1.768% 1.768% 1.768%

    

36. 以股份為基礎僱員報酬（續）
於二零一三年一月三日（「授出日期」），
本公司根據二零一一年購股權計劃，將
5,196,000份（「購股權」）授予若干合資格
人士（包括執行董事），可據此認購最多
5,196,000股本公司每股面值港幣0.10元之
普通股。購股權之行使價為每股港幣15.76
元及購股權歸屬安排如下：

(a) 50%購股權可於授出日期一週年後任何
時間行使（「批次A」）；

(b) 25%購股權可於授出日期二週年後任何
時間行使（「批次B」）；及

(c) 餘下25%購股權可於授出日期三週年後
任何時間行使（「批次C」）。

根據二零一一年購股權計劃，本年度利
用三項期權定價模型（「模型」）釐定之所
授出購股權於授出日期之公平值為港幣
23,610,000元。下表列示該模型主要輸入
數據：

  

   



1992014年年報 Annual Report 2014

31 December 2014 二零一四年十二月三十一日

Notes to the Financial Statements
財務報表附註

36. SHARE BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Continued)
The Share Options vest upon the commencement of the 
exercisable period and the total amount of HK$5,989,000 
(2013: HK$16,335,000) was expensed through the profit or 
loss.

As at 31 December 2014, 6,893,500 share options (2013: 
4,070,000 share options) had vested under the 2011 Share 
Option Scheme were exercisable.

Weighted average exercise price for share options exercisable 
as at 31 December 2014 was HK$13.9 (2013: HK$8.71) and a 
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.7 years (2013: 
2.5 years).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of 
options during the year was HK$12.05 (2013: HK$21.05).

37. COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating lease commitments

At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease 
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are 
payable by the Group as follows:

Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Within one year 一年內 682 813
In the second to fifth years inclusive 第二至第五年 

（首尾兩年包括在內） 24 –
    

706 813
    

The Group leases a number of properties under operating 
leases. The leases will expire in the coming year. None of 
the leases includes contingent rentals.

36. 以股份為基礎僱員報酬（續）
購股權於行使期開始時歸屬，其歸屬總金

額港幣 5,989,000元（二零一三年：港幣
16,335,000元）在損益表支銷。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，根據二零

一一年購股權計劃可行使已歸屬6,893,500
份購股權（二零一三年：4,070,000份購股
權）。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，可行使購

股權的加權平均行使價為港幣13.9元（二零
一三年：港幣8.71元），而加權平均餘下合
約年期為1.7年（二零一三年：2.5年）。

年內於購股權行使日期之加權平均股價為港

幣12.05元（二零一三年：港幣21.05元）。

37. 承擔
(a) 經營租賃承擔
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本集團

根據不可撤銷經營租賃於未來應付之最

低總租金如下：

本集團

本集團根據經營租賃出租多項物業。租期將

於下一年度屆滿。概無租約包括或然租金。
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37. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Capital commitments

Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Contracted but not provided for: 已訂約惟未撥備：

– Construction costs and service  
expenses of property development

－物業發展之建設成本及 
服務費用 550,133 447,450

– Acquisition of properties －收購物業 6,715 12,705
– Capital contribution to Hong Kong  

and PRC subsidiaries of property  
development business

－向物業發展業務之香港及

中國附屬公司出資

49,646 54,924
    

606,494 515,079
    

All capital commitments are due for contribution in the 
coming twelve months.

Company
The Company does not have any significant commitments 
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

37. 承擔（續）
(b) 資本承擔
本集團

所有資本承擔均於未來十二個月內到

期。

本公司
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本公司

概無任何重大承擔（二零一三年：無）。
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38. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had future aggregate 
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases 
in respect of investment properties as follows:

Group

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Within one year 一年內 311,405 385,925
In the second to fifth years inclusive 第二至第五年 

（首尾兩年包括在內） 227,168 260,916
Over fifth years 五年以上 10,988 –

    

549,561 646,841
    

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) under 
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period 
of one to eight years, with an option to renew the lease terms 
at the expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between the 
Group and the respective tenants. The terms of the leases also 
require the tenants to pay rental deposits.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) During the course of business, certain bank accounts 

were opened and held in the name of certain subsidiaries 
on behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries 
provided building management services. As at the reporting 
date, those bank balances which were held on behalf of 
third parties and were not accounted for in the financial 
statements of the Group amounted to HK$19,577,000 
(2013: HK$7,558,000).

38. 未來經營租賃安排
於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本集團根據

不可撤銷經營租賃就投資物業未來所收之最

低總租金如下：

本集團

本集團根據經營租賃安排出租其投資物業

（附註18），初始租期一至八年，可選擇於
到期日或本集團與有關承租人雙方同意之日

期續期。租約條款亦規定承租人須繳付租賃

按金。

39. 或然負債
(a) 於業務過程中，若干附屬公司以其名
義代第三方（附屬公司向其提供樓宇

管理服務之人士）開設及持有若干銀

行賬戶。於報告日期，該等為數港

幣 19,577,000元（二零一三年：港幣
7,558,000元）之銀行結餘乃代第三方持
有，並無計入本集團之財務報表。
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Since the Group commenced legal proceedings HCA 

1902/2009 (“the Action”) against a joint venture partner in 
2009, with whom the Group has a joint venture agreement 
for the development and construction of village houses in 
the New Territories, the Action has been stayed pending 
the outcome of the proceedings in HCMP 1760/2009 which 
concerns the same subject matter. The Group filed a re-
amended statement of claim in December 2012 in HCMP 
1760/2009 and the pleadings of the case have been closed 
in or about April 2013. The case has come to the stage 
of discovery of documents and thereafter it will proceed 
to the mutual exchange of factual witnesses’ statement. 
The Group’s legal advisor is in the course of locating 
all documents for discovery purpose. No date for case 
management conference has been fixed by the Court yet.

As the Group’s legal advisor is unable to anticipate the 
l ikely outcome, provision for amount due from a joint 
venture and provision for legal costs have been made which 
amounted to HK$15,565,000 and HK$3,598,000 (2013: 
HK$15,565,000 and HK$3,598,000) notes 22 and 30 
respectively.

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
The Company has executed guarantees amount ing to 
HK$3,577,722,000 (2013: HK$4,675,832,000) with respect to 
bank loans to its subsidiaries, which are also secured against 
properties held by those subsidiaries. Under the guarantees, 
the Company would be liable to pay the bank if the bank is 
unable to recover the loans. At the reporting date, no provision 
for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee contract has 
been made as the Directors consider that it was not probable 
that the repayment of the loan would be in default.

39. 或然負債（續）
(b) 於二零零九年，本集團向一名合營
夥伴（本集團就於新界發展及興建

村屋與其訂有合營協議）展開法律

程序 HCA1902╱ 2009（「訴訟」），
訴訟尚有待 HCMP1760╱ 2009法律
程序之結果，兩者涉及同一主體事

項。本集團於二零一二年十二月已就

HCMP1760╱2009提呈經修訂之申索
陳述書，而交換狀書已於二零一三年四

月或前後結束。該案件現處於搜集文件

的階段，其後雙方將交換證詞。本集團

之法律顧問正在搜尋所有文件作搜集之

用。法院尚未確定個案處理會議日期。

由於本集團的法律顧問無法預期可能

之結果，故已分別就應收一家合營企

業的款項及法律費用計提撥備港幣

15,565,000元及港幣3,598,000元（二
零一三年：港幣15,565,000元及港幣
3,598,000元）（附註22及30）。

40. 財務擔保合約
本公司已就其附屬公司之銀行貸款簽署合共

港幣3,577,722,000元（二零一三年：港幣
4,675,832,000元）之擔保合約，並以該等
附屬公司持有之物業作抵押。根據該等擔保

合約，倘銀行未能收回該貸款，本公司有責

任向銀行支付該貸款。由於董事認為該貸款

不大可能會被拖欠，故於報告日期，本公司

並無就擔保合約下之義務計提撥備。
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following transactions with related parties were, in the 
opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of 
business during the year:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Operating lease charges in respect of 
residential properties (note (a))

住宅物業之經營租賃支出 
（附註(a)） 720 720

Operating lease charges and management fee 
in respect of office premises situated  
in Guangzhou, the PRC (note (b))

位於中國廣州之辦公室物業之

經營租賃支出及管理費 
（附註(b)） 790 1,199

Interest expense on unsecured revolving  
credit facility (note (c))

無抵押循環貸款融資之利息 
開支（附註(c)） 1,528 –

Purchase of a motor vehicle (note (d)) 購買汽車（附註(d)） – 68
Disposal of subsidiaries (note (e)) 出售附屬公司（附註(e)） – 122,768
Rental expense for leasing carparking spaces 

situated in Guangzhou, the PRC (note (f))
租賃位於中國廣州之停車場之

租金開支（附註(f)） 45 38
Rental income in respect of a unit (note (g)) 有關一個單位之租金收入 

（附註(g)） 544 136
    

Notes:

(a) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with a 
related company, in which an executive director of the Company has equity 
interests, for leasing a residential property situated in Hong Kong for a 
period of one year commencing from 1 September 2013 and expiring on 31 
August 2014 at a monthly rental of HK$60,000. The tenancy agreement was 
renewed for a period of one year commencing from 1 September 2014 and 
expiring on 31 August 2015 at a monthly rental of HK$60,000.

(b) Certain subsidiaries of the Company entered into tenancy agreements with 
a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive director of 
the Company have interests, for leasing a number of premises situated at 
Guangzhou, the PRC for office purpose.

41. 關聯人士交易
董事認為，下列於年內與關聯人士進行之交

易乃於日常業務過程中進行：

附註：

(a) 本公司一家附屬公司與一家與本公司一名執行董

事有權益之關連公司簽訂租約，以每月租金港幣

60,000元，租賃位於香港之一項住宅物業，由二

零一三年九月一日起至二零一四年八月三十一日

止，為期一年。租約已獲重續，由二零一四年九月

一日起至二零一五年八月三十一日止，為期一年，

月租為港幣60,000元。

(b) 本公司若干全資附屬公司與一家由本公司主席及一

名執行董事擁有權益之關連公司簽訂租約，租賃多

項位於中國廣州之物業作辦公室用途。
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Notes:

(c) On 27 February 2011, a related company in which the Chairman and an 

executive director of the Company have interests (the “Related Company”), 

has agreed to increase an unsecured revolving credit facility of amount to 

HK$150,000,000 from HK$100,000,000 to a wholly owned subsidiary of the 

Group (the “Subsidiary”) and extend the maturity date to 30 April 2014. On 

12 June 2014, the Subsidiary and Related Company has agreed to extend 

the maturity date to 30 April 2017 and revised the interest rate to prime 

lending rate for loans in Hong Kong dollars from time to time less 2.5% per 

annum. As at 31 December 2014, the unsecured revolving credit facility was 

not utilised (2013: Nil).

On 1 July 2014, a related company in which the Chairman and an executive 

director of the Company have interests, has agreed to provide unsecured 

revolving credit facility of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$63,187,000) 

to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group with the maturity date on 31 

December 2016. The credit facility is interest bearing at the loan interest 

rate specified by People’s Bank of China plus 1.5% per annum. As at 31 

December 2014, HK$24,011,000 of the unsecured revolving credit facility 

was utilised (2013: Nil).

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2013, a subsidiary of the Company 

entered into an agreement with a related company, in which the Chairman 

and an executive director of the Company have equity interests, for 

purchasing a motor vehicle at a consideration of HK$68,000.

(e) For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group disposed of the urban 

infrastructure business to a related company, Rally Elite, which was 

ultimately controlled by Ms. Foo Kam Chu, Grace, who is the chairman of the 

Company, at the total consideration of HK$122,768,000, details of which 

have been set out in notes 10 and 42(d) respectively.

(f) For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, a subsidiary of the 

Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related company, in 

which a close family member of the Chairman and an executive director 

of the Company has interest, for leasing five carparking spaces situated in 

Guangzhou, the PRC.

(g) For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, a subsidiary of  the 

Company entered into a tenancy agreement with a company, in which the 

Chairman and her daughters have wholly-owned interest, for leasing a unit 

in Soundwill Plaza for the period of two years from 1 September 2013 to 31 

August 2015 at the monthly rent of HK$45,322, with one month rent free.

41. 關聯人士交易（續）
附註：

(c) 於二零一一年二月二十七日，一家由本公司主席及

一名執行董事擁有權益之關連公司（「關連公司」）已

同意增加本集團之一家全資附屬公司（「附屬公司」）

之無抵押循環信貸額度，由港幣100,000,000元增

加至港幣150,000,000元，以及將到期日延長至二

零一四年四月三十日。於二零一四年六月十二日，

附屬公司及關連公司已同意將到期日延長至二零

一七年四月三十日，並將利率修訂為港幣貸款最優

惠借貸利率減年利率2.5厘。於二零一四年十二月

三十一日，未動用無抵押循環貸款融資（二零一三

年：無）。

 於二零一四年七月一日，一家由本公司主席及一名

執行董事擁有權益之關連公司已同意向本集團之一

家全資附屬公司提供無抵押循環信貸額度人民幣

50,000,000元（相等於港幣63,187,000元），到期

日為二零一六年十二月三十一日。該信貸額度按中

國人民銀行指定之貸款利率加年利率1.5厘計息。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，本公司已動用無抵

押循環信貸額度港幣24,011,000元（二零一三年：

無）。

(d) 於截至二零一三年十二月三十一日止年度，本公

司附屬公司與關連公司（本公司主席及執行董事擁

有其權益）訂立協議，以代價港幣68,000元購買汽

車。

(e) 於截至二零一三年十二月三十一日止年度，本集

團向一家由本公司主席傅金珠最終控制之關連公

司Rally Elite出售城市基礎建設業務，總代價為港

幣122,768,000元，有關詳情分別載於附註10及

42(d)。

(f) 於截至二零一四年及二零一三年十二月三十一日止

年度，本公司附屬公司與關連公司（本公司主席之

近親屬及執行董事擁有其股權）訂立租賃協議，以

租賃位於中國廣州之五個停車位。

(g) 於截至二零一四年及二零一三年十二月三十一日止

年度，本公司一間附屬公司與一間公司（本公司主

席及其女兒全資擁有權益）訂立租賃協議，由二零

一三年九月一日至二零一五年八月三十一日以月租

港幣45,322元（免租一個月）租賃金朝陽中心一個

單位，為期兩年。
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Key management personnel compensation:

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Basic salaries and other benefits 基本薪金及其他福利 45,320 33,959
Pension costs – defined contribution plan 退休金成本－定額供款計劃 101 96
Equity-settled share based payment 以股權結算以股份為基礎之 

付款 5,784 18,357
    

51,205 52,412
    

41. 關聯人士交易（續）
主要管理人員薪酬：
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) On 31 March 2014, the Group disposed of its wholly-

owned subs id i a r y ,  name l y  Rad ian t  Me r i t  L im i t ed 
(“Radiant”), and assigned the benefits of al l loans of 
approximately HK$650,677,000 advanced by the Group 
(the “Loan assigned”) to an independent third party at 
a cash consideration of HK$860,000,000 (subject to 
adjustment) (the “Disposal of Radiant”). Radiant is an 
investment holding company and holds the entire issued 
share capital of Honour Vantage Limited, which in turn 
holds the entire issued share capital in Champ Shine 
Limited (“Champ Shine”) and Kong Fortune Investment 
Limited (“Kong Fortune”) respectively (collectively the 
“Radiant Group”). Champ Shine and Kong Fortune together 
hold the entire beneficial interests in a land site located at 
12-24 Lun Fat Street, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Disposal 
of Radiant was completed on 28 April 2014. The net assets 
of Radiant Group at the date of disposal were as follows:–

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net assets disposed of: 出售之資產淨值：

Investment properties (note 18) 投資物業（附註18） 860,000
Deposits paid, prepayments  

and other receivables
已付訂金、預付款項及其他應收款項

9,453
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary 應付一家同系附屬公司款項 (650,677)
Tax payables 應付稅項 (765)
Deferred tax liabilities 遞延稅項負債 (10)

   

218,001
Loan assignment 貸款轉讓 650,677

   

Total consideration (after adjustment) 總代價（調整後） 868,678
   

Satisfied by: 支付方式：

Cash 現金 868,678
   

42. 出售附屬公司
(a) 於二零一四年三月三十一日，本集
團出售其全資附屬公司Radiant Merit 
Limited（「Radiant」），並將本集團墊付
之全部貸款利益約港幣650,677,000元
（「轉讓之貸款」）轉讓予獨立第三方，

現金代價為港幣860,000,000元（可予
調整）（「出售Radiant」）。Radiant為
投資控股公司，持有Honour Vantage 
Limited之全部已發行股本，而Honour 
Vantage Limited則持有發亮有限公司
（「發亮」）及港瑞投資有限公司（「港瑞」）

各自之全部已發行股本（統稱「Radiant
集團」）。發亮及港瑞共同持有位於香港

灣仔聯發街12-24號之地盤之全部實益
權益。出售Radiant已於二零一四年四
月二十八日完成。Radiant集團於出售
日期之資產凈值如下：
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in 
respect of the Disposal of Radiant is as follows:

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net cash inflow arising on  
the Disposal of Radiant:

出售Radiant時產生之現金流入淨額：

Cash consideration received 已收現金代價 868,678
   

(b) On 8 October 2014, the Group disposed of its 85%-owned 
subsidiary, namely, 開平市三埠逕頭實業開發公司(“Sanbu 
Jingtao”), at a consideration of RMB32,328,000 (equivalent 
to approximately HK$40,854,000) ( the “Disposal of 
Sanbu Jintao”). Sanbu Jingtao is engaged in property 
development in Kai Ping City, Guangdong Province, the 
PRC and holds the land development rights over 2 parcels 
of land situated at Kai Ping City. The Disposal of Sanbu 
Jingtao was completed on 8 October 2014. The net assets 
of Sanbu Jingtao at the date of disposal were as follows:–

42. 出售附屬公司（續）
(a) （續）
有關出售Radiant之現金及現金等價物
流入淨額分析如下：

(b) 於二零一四年十月八日，本集團出售其
擁有85%權益之附屬公司開平市三埠
逕頭實業開發公司（「三埠逕頭」），代

價為人民幣32,328,000元（相等於約港
幣40,854,000元）（「出售三埠逕頭」）。
三埠逕頭於中國廣東省開平市從事物業

發展業務，持有位於開平市之兩幅土地

之土地開發權。出售三埠逕頭已於二零

一四年十月八日完成。三埠逕頭於出售

日期之資產凈值如下：
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net assets disposed of: 出售之資產淨值：
Properties under development (note 26) 發展中物業（附註26） 59,733
Properties, plants and equipments (note 19) 物業、廠房及設備（附註19） 38
Other receivables 其他應收款項 2,895
Cash and cash equivalents 現金及現金等價物 615
Other payables and accruals 其他應付款項及應計款項 (25,106)
Non-controlling interest 非控制權益 (11,434)

   

26,741
Release of exchange reserve 撥回匯兌儲備 1,409
Gain on the Disposal of Sanbu Jingtao 出售三埠逕頭之收益 12,704

   

Total consideration 總代價 40,854
   

Satisfied by: 支付方式：
Cash 現金 5,064
Consideration receivables* 應收代價* 35,790

   

40,854
   

* The remaining cash receivables of approximately RMB28,320,000 
(equivalent to approximately HK$35,790,000) shall be settled before 31 
December 2016 and therefore this outstanding amount was classified 
as other receivable under “non-current assets” as at 31 December 
2014.

An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in 
respect of the Disposal of Sanbu Jingtou is as follows:

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net cash inflow arising on  
Disposal of Sanbu Jingtao:

出售三埠逕頭時產生之現金流入淨額：

Cash consideration received 已收現金代價 5,064
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 已出售現金及現金等價物 (615)

   

4,449
   

42. 出售附屬公司（續）
(b) （續）

* 餘下應收現金約人民幣28,320,000元（相等於
約港幣35,790,000元）須於二零一六年十二
月三十一日前償付，故於二零一四年十二月

三十一日，該未償還金額分類為「非流動資

產」下之其他應收款項。

有關出售三埠逕頭之現金及現金等價物
流入淨額分析如下：
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(c) On 28 February 2014, Titan Dynasty Limited, a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Group entered into a sales 
and purchase agreement to dispose of a wholly-owned 
subsidiary, namely Arctic Force Limited (“Arctic Force”), 
to an independent third party at the consideration of 
HK$120,100,000 (the “Disposal of Arctic Force”). Arctic 
Force is an investment holding company and holds the 
entire issued share capital of Fully Wide Limited which 
in turn holds certain agricultural lands in New Territories 
(collectively the “Arctic Force Group”). The Disposal of 
Arctic Force was completed on 15 April 2014. The net 
liabilities of Arctic Force Group at the date of disposal were 
as follows:–

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net liabilities disposed of: 出售之負債凈值：

Properties held for development (note 20) 待發展物業（附註20） 18,554
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary 應付一家同系附屬公司款項 (45,025)

   

(26,471)
Loan assignment 貸款轉讓 45,025
Gain on the Disposal of Arctic Force 出售Arctic Force之收益 101,546

   

Total consideration 總代價 120,100
   

Satisfied by: 支付方式：

Cash 現金 120,100
   

An analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in 
respect of the Disposal of Arctic Force is as follows:

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net cash inflow arising  
on the Disposal of Arctic Force:

出售Arctic Force時產生之現金流入淨
額：

Cash consideration received 已收現金代價 120,100
   

42. 出售附屬公司（續）
(c) 於二零一四年二月二十八日，本集團
之全資附屬公司Titan Dynasty Limited
訂立一份買賣協議，以向獨立第三方

出售一家全資附屬公司 Arctic Force 
Limited（「Arctic Force」），代價為港幣
120,100,000元（「出售Arctic Force」）。
Arctic Force為投資控股公司，持有
Fully Wide Limited之全部已發行股本，
而Fully Wide Limited則持有位於新界
之若干農業用地（統稱「Arctic Force集
團」）。出售Arctic Force已於二零一四
年四月十五日完成。Arctic Force集團
於出售日期之負債凈值如下：

有關出售Arctic Force之現金及現金等價物
流入淨額分析如下：



Soundwill Holdings Limited 金朝陽集團有限公司210

31 December 2014 二零一四年十二月三十一日

Notes to the Financial Statements
財務報表附註

42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(d) As set out in note 10 to these financial statements, the 

Group completed the Disposal of Oriental Classic which 
was engaged in urban infrastructure business in the PRC 
on 22 October 2013. The net assets of the Oriental Classic 
Group as at the disposal date were as follows:–

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net assets disposed of: 出售之資產淨值：

Property, plant and equipment 物業、廠房及設備 1,334
Intangible assets (note 24) 無形資產（附註24） 4,398
Inventories 存貨 38,476
Trade and other receivables 貿易及其他應收款項 57,359
Cash and cash equivalents 現金及現金等價物 76,688
Trade and other payables 貿易及其他應付款項 (53,021)
Provision for income tax 所得稅撥備 (5,343)

   

119,891
Non-controlling interests 非控制權益 (9,549)
Release of exchange reserve 撥回匯兌儲備 (18,840)
Gain on the Disposal of  

Oriental Classic (note 10)
出售Oriental Classic之收益（附註10）

31,266
   

Total consideration 總代價 122,768
   

Satisfied by: 支付方式：

Cash 現金 60,600
Deferred and contingent consideration  

(note 27)
遞延及或然代價（附註27）

62,168
   

122,768
   

42. 出售附屬公司（續）
(d) 如該等財務報表附註10所載述，本集團
已於二零一三年十月二十二日完成出售

Oriental Classic（從事中國城市基礎建
設業務）。Oriental Classic集團於出售
日期之資產凈值如下：
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(d) (Continued)

An analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in 
respect of the Disposal of Oriental Classic was as follows:

HK$’000
港幣千元

   

Net cash outflow arising on  
the Disposal of Oriental Classic:

出售Oriental Classic時產生之現金流出
淨額：

Cash consideration received 已收現金代價 60,600
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 已出售現金及現金等價物 (76,688)

   

(16,088)
   

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
On 13 January 2015, the Group entered into a provisional 
agreement for sale and purchase with an independent third 
party for the acquisition of a property site located at 105-113 
Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung at a total consideration of 
approximately HK$452,500,000. The acquisition is expected to 
be completed on 8 May 2015.

42. 出售附屬公司（續）
(d) （續）
有關出售Oriental Classic之現金及現金
等價物流出淨額分析如下：

43. 報告期後事項
於二零一五年一月十三日，本集團就收購位

於葵涌打磚坪街105至113號之物業地盤與
獨立第三方訂立臨時買賣協議，總代價約為

港幣452,500,000元。預期收購事項將於二
零一五年五月八日完成。
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to market risk, specifically to credit 
risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, and interest rate risk in the 
normal course of business. The Group does not have any 
written risk management policies and guidelines. However, 
the board of directors meets periodically to analyse and 
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to 
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies 
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the 
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not 
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging 
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative 
f inancial instruments for trading purposes. The most 
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to 
are described below. A summary of the Group’s financial 
assets and liabilities by category is disclosed in note 44.2.

(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value 
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in the market interest rates. The 
Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the 
impact of interest rate changes on its interest bearing 
borrowings, and cash and cash equivalents. The 
interest rates and repayment terms of the Group’s 
structured bank deposits/cash and cash equivalents 
and borrowings are disclosed in notes 29 and 32 
respectively. The Group currently does not have an 
interest rate hedging policy. However, the Group 
closely monitors its loan portfolio and compares the 
interest margin under loan agreements with existing 
banks against new offers on borrowing rates from 
different banks in the loan re-financing and negotiation 
process.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been 
followed by the Group since prior year are considered 
to be effective.

44. 財務工具
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策
本集團於日常業務承受市場風險，特別

是信貸風險、流動資金風險、貨幣風險

及利率風險。本集團並無任何書面風險

管理政策及指引。然而，董事定期召開

會議分析及制定措施以管理本集團所涉

巿場風險。

一般而言，本集團就其風險管理引入保

守策略。由於本集團所涉巿場風險維持

於最低水平，故本集團並無採用任何衍

生工具及其他工具作對沖之用。本集團

並無持有或發行衍生財務工具作買賣用

途。本集團所承受之最重大財務風險載

列如下。本集團按類別劃分之財務資產

及負債概要披露於附註44.2。

(a) 利率風險
利率風險與財務工具之公平值或現

金流量因市場利率變動而出現波動

之風險有關。本集團因計息借貸，

以及現金及現金等價物之利率變動

影響而面對利率風險。本集團於結

構性銀行存款╱現金及現金等價物

以及借貸之利率及還款條款分別於

附註29及32披露。本集團現時並無
利率對沖政策。然而，本集團密切

監察其貸款組合，並在貸款再融資

及商討過程中，與現有銀行所訂立

貸款協議之融資利率與不同銀行提

供之新造借貸利率作出比較。

本集團自去年起已依循管理利率風

險之政策，且有關政策被視為有

效。
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming 
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the 
reporting date and had been applied to variable-
rate financial instruments at that date. The 25 basis 
point increase or decrease represents management’s 
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest 
rates over the period until the next annual reporting 
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 
the year ended 31 December 2013.

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general 
increase of 25 basis points in interest rates, with 
al l other var iable held constant, would decrease 
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by 
approximately HK$1,947,000 (2013: HK$5,347,000), 
increase the interest capital ised into the Group’s 
i nves tment  p rope r t i es  by  HK$488 ,000 (2013 : 
investment properties: HK$2,553,000 and properties 
under development: HK$156,000 respectively). There 
is no impact on other components of consolidated 
equity in response to the general increase in interest 
rates. A decrease of 25 basis points in interest rate 
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the 
above financial instruments to the amounts shown 
above, on the basis that all other variables remain 
constant.

44. 財務工具（續）
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策（續）

(a) 利率風險（續）
利率敏感度分析
上述敏感度分析乃假設利率於結算

日產生變動而釐定，並應用於該日

之所有浮動利率財務工具。25個基
點之增減指管理層對直至下年度結

算日止之期間內利率之合理可能變

動之評估。於截至二零一三年十二

月三十一日止年度已以相同基準作

出分析。

於二零一四年十二月三十一日，在

所有其他可變數保持不變之情況

下，估計利率整體增加25個基點，
將減少本集團除稅後溢利及保留溢

利約港幣1,947,000元（二零一三
年：港幣5,347,000元）、資本化
為本集團投資物業之利息增加港幣

488,000元（二零一三年：投資物
業：港幣2,553,000元及發展中物
業：港幣156,000元）。利率整體
增加對綜合權益之其他組成部分並

無影響。假設所有其他可變數保持

不變，利率減少25個基點將對上述
財務工具造成相同金額但相反之影

響。
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty 
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its 
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument 
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s 
credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The 
carrying amounts of these financial assets presented in 
the consolidated statement of financial position are net 
of impairment losses. Management has a credit policy 
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are 
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual 
credit evaluations are performed on all customers 
requ i r i ng c red i t  ove r  a ce r ta in  amount .  These 
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of 
making payments when due and current abil ity to 
pay, and take into account information specific to 
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic 
environment in which the customer operates. Normally, 
other than those property leasing rental receivables 
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does 
not obtain collateral from other customers. Further 
quantitat ive disclosure in respect of the Group’s 
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other 
receivables are set out in note 27.

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks. 
The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited 
because most of the Group’s bank deposits are 
deposited with major banks located in Hong Kong and 
the PRC.

The policies to manage credit risk have been followed 
by the Group since prior year are considered to have 
been effective.

44. 財務工具（續）
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策（續）

(b) 信貸風險
信貸風險指財務工具之對手方不履

行根據財務工具條款之責任而導致

本集團遭受財務虧損之風險。本集

團之信貸風險主要來自貿易及其他

應收款項以及現金及現金等價物。

此等財務資產之賬面值經扣除減值

虧損後於綜合財務狀況表呈列。管

理層設有信貸政策，並持續監察所

承受之此等信貸風險。

就貿易及其他應收款項而言，所有

要求超過若干信貸金額之客戶進行

個別信貸評估。該等評估集中於客

戶於到期時繳款之過往歷史紀錄及

目前之繳款能力，並考慮客戶之特

有賬目資料，以及客戶經營之有關

經濟環境。一般而言，除以租賃按

金抵押之物業租賃應收租金外，本

集團並無向其他客戶收取抵押品。

有關本集團因貿易及其他應收款項

產生之信貸風險之進一步數字披露

載於附註27。

本集團已存款至數間銀行。由於本

集團大部分銀行存款存放於位於香

港及中國之主要銀行，故現金及銀

行結餘之信貸風險有限。

本集團自去年起已依循管理信貸風

險之政策，且有關政策被視為有

效。
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or 
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The 
Group/Company mainly operates and invests in Hong 
Kong and the PRC with most of the transactions 
denominated and settled in HK$ and RMB respectively. 
No foreign currency risk has been identified for the 
financial assets in the PRC as they were denominated 
in a currency same as the functional currencies of the 
group entities to which these transactions relate.

(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will 
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity 
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables, accrued 
expenses and other payables and borrowings, and 
also in respect of its cash flow management. The 
Group’s objective is to ensure adequate funds to meet 
commitments associated with its financial liabilities. 
Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. 
The Group will raise funds from the realisation of its 
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that the 
Group will be able to meet in full its financial obligations 
as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual 
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial 
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted 
cash flows (including interest payments computed 
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates 
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the 
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, for term 
loans which contain a repayment on demand clause 
which can be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, 
the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the 
earliest period in which the entity can be required 
to pay, that is i f the lenders were to invoke their 
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate 
effect.

44. 財務工具（續）
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策（續）

(c) 外幣風險
外幣風險指由於匯率變動導致財務

工具之公平值或未來現金流量波動

之風險。本集團╱本公司主要於香

港及中國營運及投資，而大部分

交易均以港幣及人民幣為單位及結

算。由於中國財務資產之貨幣單位

與有關交易之本集團實體之功能貨

幣相同，故並無識別外幣風險。

(d) 流動資金風險
流動資金風險指本集團將無法履行

與財務負債相關之責任之風險。本

集團就結算貿易應付款項、應付費

用及其他應付款項及借貸以及就其

現金流量管理承受流動資金風險。

本集團之目標為確保有足夠資金履

行與其財務負債有關之承擔。現金

流量持續受密切監察。如有需要，

將變現其資產以籌集資金。董事信

納本集團於可見將來將能夠全數償

還到期財務責任。

下表載列本集團之財務負債於結算

日之剩餘合約到期詳情，乃根據合

約未折現現金流量（包括利用合約

利率、或如為浮動利率，則其於報

告日期之利率計算之利息）及本集

團可能須支付之最早日期計算。尤

其是，就包含可按銀行全權酌情行

使之按要求償還條款之有期貸款而

言，該分析顯示倘貸款人援引其無

條件權利立即催繳貸款，則實體可

能須支付之最早期間之現金流出。
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Group

31 December 2014
Maturity Analysis – Undiscounted cash flows

二零一四年十二月三十一日
到期情況分析—未折現現金流量 

Carrying
amount

Total
contractual

undiscounted
cash flow

Within
1 year or

on demand
More than

1 year

賬面值
合約未折現

現金流量總額
一年內或
於要求時 一年以上

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

      

Trade payables 貿易應付款項 10,829 10,829 10,829 –
Accrued expenses and other payables 應付費用及其他應付款項 343,402 343,402 343,402 –
Bank loans, secured, subject to repayment 

on demand clause
銀行貸款，有抵押，附有 
按要求償還條款 2,197,920 2,197,920 2,197,920 –

Other loan 其他貸款 24,011 29,414 1,801 27,613
      

2,576,162 2,581,565 2,553,952 27,613
      

44. 財務工具（續）
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策（續）

(d) 流動資金風險（續）
本集團
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Group (Continued)

31 December 2013
Maturity Analysis – Undiscounted cash flows

二零一三年十二月三十一日

到期情況分析—未折現現金流量 

Carrying
amount

Total
contractual

undiscounted
cash flow

Within
1 year or

on demand

賬面值

合約未折現

現金流量總額

一年內或

於要求時

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

Trade payables 貿易應付款項 10,669 10,669 10,669
Accrued expenses and other payables 應付費用及其他應付款項 316,279 316,279 316,279
Bank loans, secured, subject to repayment 

on demand clause
銀行貸款，有抵押，附有按要求償

還條款 3,955,820 3,955,820 3,955,820
     

4,282,768 4,282,768 4,282,768
     

44. 財務工具（續）
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策（續）

(d) 流動資金風險（續）
本集團（續）
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis 
of the terms loans with a repayment on demand clause 
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in 
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest 
payments computed using contractual rates. As a 
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts 
disclosed in the “within 1 year or on demand” time 
band in the maturity analysis shown above. Taking 
into account the Group’s f inancial posit ions, the 
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the 
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate 
repayment. The Directors believe that such terms will 
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment 
dates set out in their loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis – Term loans subject to a repayment on demand clause 
based on scheduled repayment dates

根據預定還款日期作出之到期情況分析—附有按要求還款條款之有期貸款 

Carrying
amount

Total
contractual

undiscounted
cash flow

Within
1 year or

on demand

More than
1 year

but not
exceeding

2 years

More than
2 years
but not

exceeding
5 years

More than
5 years

賬面值
合約未折現

現金流量總額
一年內或
於要求時

一年以上
但不超過兩年

兩年以上
但不超過五年 五年以上

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

        

31 December 2014 二零一四年 
十二月三十一日 2,197,920 2,318,071 228,558 714,712 1,223,770 151,031

        

31 December 2013 二零一三年 
十二月三十一日 3,955,820 4,121,506 1,682,859 341,482 1,876,666 220,499

        

44. 財務工具（續）
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策（續）

(d) 流動資金風險（續）
下表概述包含按要求償還條款之有

期貸款按貸款協議所載協定預定還

款作出之到期情況分析。該等金額

包括按合約利率計算之利息付款。

因此，該等金額高於上文所示到期

情況分析中「一年內或於要求時」時

間範圍內披露之金額。鑒於本集團

之財務狀況，董事認為銀行不大可

能行使其酌情權要求即時還款。董

事相信，該等有期貸款將按貸款協

議所載之預定還款日期償還。
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Company

31 December 2014
二零一四年十二月三十一日 

Carrying
amount

Total
contractual

undiscounted
cash flow

Within
1 year or

on demand

賬面值
合約未折現

現金流量總額 一年內或於要求時
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

Accrued expenses and other payables 應付費用及其他應付款項 316 316 316
     

Financial guarantee issued 
Maximum amount guaranteed (note 40)

已發出財務擔保 
最高保證金額（附註40） 3,577,722 3,577,722 3,577,722

     

31 December 2013
二零一三年十二月三十一日 

Carrying
amount

Total
contractual

undiscounted
cash flow

Within
1 year or

on demand

賬面值

合約未折現

現金流量總額 一年內或於要求時

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

     

Accrued expenses and other payables 應付費用及其他應付款項 223 223 223
     

Financial guarantee issued 
Maximum amount guaranteed (note 40)

已發出財務擔保 
最高保證金額（附註40） 4,675,832 4,675,832 4,675,832

     

44. 財務工具（續）
44.1 財務風險管理目標及政策（續）

(d) 流動資金風險（續）
本公司
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44.2 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s 
financial assets and liabilities as recognised at the reporting 
dates are categorised as follows. See notes 4.11(i) and 
4.11(iv) for explanations about how the categorisation 
o f  f i nanc ia l  i ns t ruments  a f f ec ts  the i r  subsequen t 
measurements.

Group Company
本集團 本公司    

2014 2013 2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年 二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元 港幣千元

      

Financial assets 財務資產
Available-for-sale financial assets 可供出售財務資產 10 10 – –
Loans and receivables 貸款及應收款項
– Trade receivables, net –貿易應收款項，淨額 11,149 7,457 – –
– Other receivables, net (including 

deferred consideration)
–其他應收款項，淨額 
（包括遞延代價） 40,509 76,708 – –

– Amount due from a joint venture, net 
(note 22)

–應收一家合營企業款項， 
淨額（附註22） 34,427 34,323 – –

– Consideration receivables of disposal 
of a subsidiary

–出售一家附屬公司應收代價
35,790 – –

– Amount due from a subsidiary –應收一家附屬公司款項 – – 2,726,234 226,972
Bank deposit at escrow account 於託管賬戶之銀行存款 179,007 298,236 – –
Structured bank deposits 結構性銀行存款 94,591 104,506 – –
Cash and bank balances 現金及銀行結餘 1,070,403 310,629 75 63

      

1,465,886 831,869 2,726,309 227,035
      

Financial liabilities 財務負債
At amortised cost 按攤銷成本
– Trade payables –貿易應付款項 (10,829) (10,669) – –
– Accrued expenses and other payables –應付費用及其他應付款項 (343,402) (316,279) (316) (223)
– Bank loans, secured –銀行貸款，有抵押 (2,197,920) (3,955,820) – –
– Other loan –其他貸款 (24,011) – – –

      

(2,576,162) (4,282,768) (316) (223)
      

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s 
financial assets and liabilities carried at cost or amortised 
cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 
reporting dates.

44. 財務工具（續）
44.2 按類別劃分之財務資產及負債概要
本集團及本公司之財務資產及負債於結
算日確認之賬面值分類如下。有關財
務工具之分類如何影響其日後計算之解
釋，請參閱附註4.11(i)及4.11(iv)。

於報告日期，本集團及本公司按成本或
攤銷成本計值之財務資產及負債之賬面
值與其公平值並無重大差異。
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45. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to 
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders 
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages i t s  cap i ta l  s t ruc tu re and makes 
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may 
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in 
the objectives, policies or processes during the current and 
previous years.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio, 
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated 
as the sum of its borrowings, and trade and other payables 
less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated 
statement of financial position. Total capital is calculated as 
total equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial 
position. The Group aims to maintain the debt to equity ratio at 
manageable level.

2014 2013
二零一四年 二零一三年

HK$’000 HK$’000
港幣千元 港幣千元

    

Trade and other payables 貿易及其他應付款項 515,668 458,770
Borrowings 借貸 2,221,931 3,955,820

    

Total debt 總債務 2,737,599 4,414,590
Less: Cash and bank balances 減：現金及銀行結餘 (1,070,403) (310,629)

    

Net debt 淨債務 1,667,196 4,103,961
    

Total equity 權益總額 16,662,727 15,036,992
    

Net debt to equity ratio 淨債務對權益比率 0.10:1 0.27:1
    

45. 資本風險管理
本集團資本管理之主要目標為確保本集團持

續經營之能力，以繼續為其股東提供回報及

為其他持份者提供利益。

本集團鑑於經濟情況變動而管理其資本架

構，並對其作出調整。為維持或調整資本架

構，本集團可調整向股東派發之股息、向股

東發還資本或發行新股。於目前及過往年度

內並無對目標、政策或程序作出變動。

本集團利用負債對權益比率基準（即淨債務

除以總資本）監察資本。淨債務以綜合財務

狀況表內其借貸及貿易及其他應付款項之總

和減現金及現金等價物計算。總資本以綜合

財務狀況表所示之權益總額計算。本集團旨

在維持負債對權益比率於可管理之水平。
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 
are as follows:

Name

Place of
incorporation/
operations

Particulars of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered

capital
Percentage of interest 
held by the Company

Principal
activities

公司名稱
註冊成立╱
營運地區

已發行
股本面值╱

註冊資本詳情 本公司所持權益百分比 主要業務
Directly Indirectly
直接 間接

      

Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

– 100% Investment
holding

英屬處女群島 1股每股面值
美金1元之普通股

投資控股

Castle Peak Investment 
Properties Limited

Hong Kong Paid-up capital
of HK$1

– 100% Property 
development

青山道投資有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣1元 物業發展

Charm Wish Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital
of HK$1

– 100% Property 
investment

高希有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣1元 物業投資

Eagle Fund I.L.P Cayman Islands Limited Partnership
with capital

commitment of
US$60,000,000

from the partners

– 47% Property 
investment

開曼群島 有限責任合夥人

美金60,000,000元之
資本承擔

物業投資

Eternal Bonus Group Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

– 100% Investment
holding

英屬處女群島 1股每股面值美金1元
之普通股

投資控股

46. 主要附屬公司詳情
於二零一四年十二月三十一日之主要附屬公

司詳情如下：
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Name

Place of
incorporation/
operations

Particulars of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered

capital
Percentage of interest 
held by the Company

Principal
activities

公司名稱
註冊成立╱
營運地區

已發行
股本面值╱

註冊資本詳情 本公司所持權益百分比 主要業務
Directly Indirectly
直接 間接

      

Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

– 100% Investment
holding

福聯有限公司 英屬處女群島 1股每股面值
美金1元之普通股

投資控股

Golden Relay Company Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$100,000

– 100% Property
investment

崇贊有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣100,000元 物業投資

Goldprofit (Consultant) Services 
Company Limited

Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$2

– 100% Provision of
building repairs,

 maintenance and
 cleaning services

金盈（顧問）服務有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣2元 提供樓宇維修、

保養及清潔服務

Goldwell Property Management Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$100,000

– 100% Provision
of building 

management
service

金衛物業管理有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣100,000元 提供樓宇管理服務

Good Honest Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$10,000

– 100% Property
Investment

裕誠置業有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣10,000元 物業投資

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 
are as follows: (Continued)

46. 主要附屬公司詳情（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日之主要附屬公

司詳情如下：（續）
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Name

Place of
incorporation/
operations

Particulars of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered

capital
Percentage of interest 
held by the Company

Principal
activities

公司名稱
註冊成立╱
營運地區

已發行
股本面值╱

註冊資本詳情 本公司所持權益百分比 主要業務
Directly Indirectly
直接 間接

      

Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

– 100% Investment
holding

英屬處女群島 1股每股面值
美金1元之普通股

投資控股

Haven Investment Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$10,000

– 100% Property 
development

希雲投資地產有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣10,000元 物業發展

Keep New Investment Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$1

– 100% Property
development

保新投資有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣1元 物業發展

Maxrise Construction Engineering 
Limited

Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$1

– 100% Provision
for construction,

 repairs and 
maintenance

services
振昇建築工程有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣1元 提供建築、

維修及維護服務

Mosque Investment Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$10,000

– 100% Property
Investment

摩羅投資地產有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣10,000元 物業投資

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 
are as follows: (Continued)

46. 主要附屬公司詳情（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日之主要附屬公

司詳情如下：（續）
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Name

Place of
incorporation/
operations

Particulars of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered

capital
Percentage of interest 
held by the Company

Principal
activities

公司名稱
註冊成立╱
營運地區

已發行
股本面值╱

註冊資本詳情 本公司所持權益百分比 主要業務
Directly Indirectly
直接 間接

      

School Investment Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$1

– 100% Property
development

書館投資地產有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣1元 物業發展

Sharp Investment Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$10,000

– 100% Property
development

霎東投資地產有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣10,000元 物業發展

Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$10,000

– 100% Property
investment

天福（中國）有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣10,000元 物業投資

Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000
ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

100% – Investment
holding

英屬處女群島 100,001,000股
每股面值

港幣1元之普通股

投資控股

Soundwill Real Estate (China) Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

– 100% Investment
holding

金朝陽地產（中國）有限公司 英屬處女群島 1股每股面值
美金1元之普通股

投資控股

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 
are as follows: (Continued)

46. 主要附屬公司詳情（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日之主要附屬公

司詳情如下：（續）
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Name

Place of
incorporation/
operations

Particulars of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered

capital
Percentage of interest 
held by the Company

Principal
activities

公司名稱
註冊成立╱
營運地區

已發行
股本面值╱

註冊資本詳情 本公司所持權益百分比 主要業務
Directly Indirectly
直接 間接

      

Soundwill Capital Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share of
US$1 each

– 100% General partner
of Eagle Fund I.L.P.

開曼群島 1股每股面值
美金1元之普通股

Eagle Fund I.L.P.之
普通合夥人

Soundwill-ALPS Asset Management 
Limited

Cayman Islands 100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

– 51% Investment
manager of

Eagle Fund I.L.P.
開曼群島 100股每股面值

美金1元之普通股
Eagle Fund I.L.P.之

投資經理

Tang Lung Investment Properties 
Limited

Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$1,000

– 100% Property
investment

登龍投資地產有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣1,000元 物業投資

Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of
HK$1

– 100% Property
investment

康尚有限公司 香港 已繳股本港幣1元 物業投資

珠海市山水城物業管理有限公司* PRC Registered capital of
RMB25,000,000

– 51% Property
development

中國 註冊資本

人民幣25,000,000元
物業發展

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 
are as follows: (Continued)

46. 主要附屬公司詳情（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日之主要附屬公

司詳情如下：（續）
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Name

Place of
incorporation/
operations

Particulars of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered

capital
Percentage of interest 
held by the Company

Principal
activities

公司名稱
註冊成立╱
營運地區

已發行
股本面值╱

註冊資本詳情 本公司所持權益百分比 主要業務
Directly Indirectly
直接 間接

      

廣州天峰裝飾設計有限公司*/** PRC Registered capital of
HK$12,500,000

註冊資本

港幣12,500,000元

– 100% Provision
of building
renovation

and management
service

中國 Paid-up capital of
HK$3,750,000

已繳股本

港幣3,750,000元

提供樓宇裝修及

管理服務

高要市金城房地產發展有限公司* PRC Registered capital of
RMB30,000,000

– 100% Property
development

中國 註冊資本

人民幣30,000,000元
物業發展

漳州金達房地產開發有限公司*/** PRC Registered capital of
RMB23,580,000

– 100% Property
development

中國 註冊資本

人民幣23,580,000元
物業發展

46. 主要附屬公司詳情（續）
於二零一四年十二月三十一日之主要附屬公

司詳情如下：（續）

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 
are as follows: (Continued)
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46. 主要附屬公司詳情（續）
附註：

* 該等附屬公司於中國成立為有限責任公司。

** 該等附屬公司於中國成立為外商獨資有限責任公

司。

董事認為載有所有附屬公司詳情之完整列表

將會過於冗長，故上表僅載有該等對本集團

業績或資產有重大影響力之主要附屬公司詳

情。

47. 批准財務報表
截至二零一四年十二月三十一日止年度之財

務報表已於二零一五年三月十八日獲本公司

董事批准及授權刊發。

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Notes:

* These subsidiaries were established in PRC as limited liability companies.

** These subsidiaries were established in PRC as foreign wholly-owned limited 
liability companies.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the 
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length 
and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of 
the principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or 
assets of the Group.

47. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 
were approved and authorised for issue by the Directors of the 
Company on 18 March 2015.
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